

# D3.1– Urban logistics cooperation Framework





Funded by the European Union





## Legal disclaimer

This document is issued within the frame and for the purpose of the UNCHAIN project. This project has received funding from the European Union's Horizon Europe research and innovation programme under Grant Agreement No. 101103812. The UK participant in Horizon Europe Project UNCHAIN, is supported by UKRI grant number 10078841 Lancaster University.

Funded by the European Union. Views and opinions expressed are however those of the author(s) only and do not necessarily reflect those of the European Union or CINEA or UKRI. Neither the European Union, nor the granting authority, and UKRI, can be held responsible for them.

## **Copyright statement**

The work described in this document has been conducted within the UNCHAIN project. This document reflects only the UNCHAIN Consortium view and the European Union is not responsible for any use that may be made of the information it contains.

This document and its content are the property of the UNCHAIN Consortium. All rights relevant to this document are determined by the applicable laws. Access to this document does not grant any right or license on the document or its contents. This document or its contents are not to be used or treated in any manner inconsistent with the rights or interests of the UNCHAIN Consortium or the Partners detriment and are not to be disclosed externally without prior written consent from the UNCHAIN Partners.

Each UNCHAIN Partner may use this document in conformity with the UNCHAIN Consortium Grant Agreement provisions.



## **Deliverable details**

Deliverable No.	D3.1
Deliverable Type	R - Report
Dissemination Level	PU - Public
Work Package No.	WP3
Work Package Title	Data-driven urban logistics cooperation
	framework
Task No.	3.1
Task Title	Collaboration framework for an enhanced
	urban logistics policymaking
Author(s)	Carol Soriano, Amparo López, Juan F. Giménez
Status (F:final; D:draft; RD:revised draft)	D
File name	D3.1_Urban_Logistics_Cooperation_Framework
Version	V0.1
Task start date and duration	01/08/2023, M12
Due Date	31/07/2024, M18
Delivery Date	31/07/2024

# **Review History of Deliverable**

Version No.	Date	Revision Details	
0.1	05/07/2024	Draft version	
0.2	15/07/2024	Reviewed version	

# **Reviewers of Deliverable**

Reviewers name	Company	Date
Mª Eugenia Martinez	MAD (Ayuntamiento de Madrid)	18/07/2024
Marzia Picciano , Ivan Di Giacomo	UPS	18/7/2024
Elena García	ETRA	19/07/2024
Konstantinos Zografos	ULANC	15/07/2024

# **H**unchain

# **Table of Contents**

Exe	ecutive Su	mmary	10		
1.	Introduction10				
2.	Gender,	ethics and data related issues	11		
	2.1. Ger	der related issues	11		
	2.1.1.	Key Aspects of Gender-Disaggregated Data in Logistics	12		
	2.1.2.	Examples of Gender-Disaggregated Data in Logistics	12		
	2.1.3.	Importance of Gender-Disaggregated Data	13		
	2.1.4.	Gender perspective in KPIs	13		
	2.2. Ethi	cs related issues	17		
	2.3. Dat	a related issues	17		
3.	Framew	ork	17		
	3.1. Rev	iew of logistic data platforms	18		
	3.1.1.	PrepDSpace4Mobility: European Mobility Data Space	18		
	3.1.2.	EuroStat	20		
	3.1.3.	EUs Open Data Platform	21		
	3.1.4.	Statista – Transportation and Logistics	22		
	3.1.5.	Transport/Logistics and Container Tracking Datasets	25		
	3.1.6.	Cargonaut	26		
	3.1.7.	Telekom Data Intelligence Hub	27		
	3.1.8.	Shippeo	28		
	3.1.9.	FourKites	29		
	3.1.10.	Intermodal Map			
	3.1.11.	Movement by project44	32		
	3.1.12.	International Service Reliability - ISR	33		
	3.1.13.	Open Railway Freight EDI User System - ORFEUS	34		
	3.1.14.	Commercial Responsibility Database - COREDA	35		
	3.1.15.	Web Data Interface - WDI	36		
	3.1.16.	Other logistics platforms are:	37		
	3.2. Con	nmon features of logistic data platforms			
	3.3. IDS/	A (Internacional Data Space Association)	39		
	3.3.1.	Introducción to IDSA	40		
	3.3.2.	Basic Characteristics	40		
	3.3.3.	Objectives	40		

# Unchain

	3.3.	4.	Advantages41
	3.3.	5.	IDSA framework structure41
4.	KPIs	and	datasets43
4	.1.	KPIs	
4	.2.	Envi	iroment and social impact45
	4.2.	1.	KPIs and Sub-indicators in Enviroment and social impact45
	4.2. imp	1. act)	Matrix relating KPIs and Sub-indicators with datasets (Enviroment and social 48
	4.2.	2.	Datasets of Enviroment and social impact50
	4.2. Soci	3. ial In	Datasets most used to calculate KPIs / Sub-indicators in Environment and npact
	4.2. data	1. asets	Level of access, level of aggregation and anonymization and ownership of the 55
	4.2.	2.	How Sub-indicators are calculated - Environmental and social impact59
4	.3.	Urba	an Planning (land use, infrastructure, public transport)62
	4.3.	1.	KPIs and Sub-indicators in Urban Planning62
	4.3.	1.	Matrix relating KPIs and Sub-indicators with datasets (Urban Planning)65
	4.3.	2.	Datasets of Urban Planning (land use, infrastructure, public participation)67
	4.3.	3.	Datasets most used to calculated KPIs / Sub-indicators in Urban Planning70
	4.3. data	4. asets	Level of access, level of aggregation and anonymization and who has the 72
	4.3.	5	How Sub-indicators are calculated - Environmental and social impact75
4	.4.	Traf	fic management77
	4.4.	1.	KPIs and Sub-indicators in Traffic management77
	4.4.	2.	Matrix relating KPIs and Sub-indicators with datasets (Traffic Management)80
	4.4.	3.	Datasets of Traffic management82
	4.4.	4.	Datasets most used to calculated KPIs / Sub-indicators in Traffic Management 84
	4.4. data	1. asets	Level of access, level of aggregation and anonymization and ownership of the 86
	4.4.	2.	How Sub-indicators are calculated - Traffic Management
4	.5.	Serv	vice Efficiency
	4.5.	1.	KPIs and Sub-indicators in Service Efficiency94
	4.5.	1.	Matrix relating KPIs and Sub-indicators with datasets (Service Efficiency)98
	4.5.	1.	Datasets of Service Efficiency

# Unchain

	4.5.1.	Datasets most used to calculated KPIs / Sub-indicators in S	Service Efficiency .110
	4.5.1. dataset	Level of access, level of aggregation and anonymization ar s112	nd ownership of the
	4.5.1.	How Sub-indicators are calculated - Service Efficiency	
5.	KPIs and	d KERs	122
	5.1.1.	Methogology to asosiate KERs and KPIs	
	5.1.2.	KERs and KPIs	
	5.1.3.	KER 4	126
	5.1.4.	KER 5	128
	5.1.5.	KER 6	130
	5.1.6.	KER 8	132
	5.1.7.	KER 9	134
	5.1.8.	KER 10	136
	5.1.9.	KER 11	138
	5.1.10.	KER 12	140
	5.1.11.	KER 13	142
6.	KERs an	d datasets	145
6.	1. Ide	ntification of datasets to feed UNCHAIN services	145
6.	2. Wo	rkshop to assess the first collection of datasets	146
6.3. Enrichment of the workshop results.		149	
6.	4. Cor	nectors to exchange the data	149
7.	Conclus	ions	154
8.	Annex (next document)163		



### List of Tables

Table 1. Description of the logistics platform PrepDSpace4Mobility: European Mobility Date	ta
Space	18
Table 2. Description of the logistics platform EuroStat	20
Table 3. Description of the logistics platform EUs Open Data Platform	21
Table 4. Description of the logistics platform Statista	22
Table 5. Description of the logistics platform Transport/Logistics and Container Tracking	
Datasets.	25
Table 6. Description of the logistics platform Cargonaut.	26
Table 7. Description of the logistics platform Telekom Data Intelligence Hub.	27
Table 8. Description of the logistics platform Shippeo.	28
Table 9. Description of the logistics platform FourKites.	29
Table 10. Description of the logistics platform Intermodal maps.	30
Table 11. Description of the logistics platform Movement by project44.	32
Table 12. Description of the logistics platform International Service Reliability- ISR	33
Table 13. Description of the logistics platform Open Railway Freight EDI User System -	
ORFEUS	34
Table 14. Description of the logistics platform Commercial Responsibility Database- COREL	DA
	35
Table 15. Description of the logistics platform Web Data Inetrface -WDI	
Table 16 List of identified KPIs	43
Table 17, KPIs and Sub-indicators in Enviroment and social impact	45
Table 18 Datasets in Environment and social impact	50
Table 19. Level of access for each dataset (Environment and Social Impact)	55
Table 19. Level of aggregation for each dataset (Environment and Social Impact)	
Table 21. Anonymization level for each dataset (Environment and Social Impact).	
Table 22. Entities that have access to the data (Environment and Social Impact).	
Table 22. Entities that have access to the data (Environment and Social Impact).	50
Table 24. KDIs and Sub-indicators in Urban Dianning	
Table 25 Detects in Urban Dianning	02
Table 25. Datasets III Ofball Planning.	07
Table 26. Level of accession for each dataset (Urban Planning).	/2
Table 27. Level of aggregation for each dataset (Urban Planning).	/3
Table 28. Anonymization level for each dataset (Urban Planning).	74
Table 29. Entities that have access to the data (Urban Planning)	74
Table 30. Sub-Indicators and formulas (Urban Planning)	75
Table 31. KPIs and Sub-indicators in Traffic Management	//
Table 32. Datasets in Traffic Management.	82
Table 33. Level of acces for each dataset (Urban Planning)	87
Table 45. KPIs most associated with KER 4	126
Table 46. KPIs most associated with KER 5.	129
Table 47. KPIs most associated with KER 6.	131
Table 48. KPIs most associated with KER 8.	133
Table 49. KPIs most associated with KER 9.	135
Table 50. KPIs most associated with KER 10	137
Table 52. KPIs most associated with KER 12.	141



Table 53. KPIs most associated with KER 13	143
	144
Table 54. First collection of datasets, required by KERs, according to service developers	145
Table 55. List of data COSUMERs and data PUBLISHERs in the UNCHAIN's IDSA platform	149
Table 56. Datasets required by the KERs developers	150
Table 57. Datasets most used for calculating Sub-indicators and KPIs	155

## List of Figures

Figure 1. Relational data structure around logistics
Figure 2. Matrix relating KPIs and Sub-indicators in Enviroment and Soacial Impact with
datasets (I)48
Figure 3. Matrix relating KPIs and Sub-indicators in Enviroment and Soacial Impact with
datasets (II)
Figure 4. Datasets most used for calculated KPIs and Sub-indicators of Enviroment and Social
Impact54
Figure 5. Matrix relating KPIs and Sub-indicators in Urban Planning with datasets (I)65
Figure 6. Matrix relating KPIs and Sub-indicators in Urban Planning with datasets (II)66
Figure 7. Datasets most used for calculated KPIs and Sub-indicators of Urban Planning71
Figure 8. Matrix relating KPIs and Sub-indicators in Traffic Management with datasets (I)80
Figure 9. Matrix relating KPIs and Sub-indicators in Traffic Management with datasets (II)81
Figure 10. Datasets most used for calculated KPIs and Sub-indicators of Traffic Management
85
Figure 11. Matrix relating KPIs and Sub-indicators in Service Efficiency with datasets (I)98
Figure 12. Matrix relating KPIs and Sub-indicators in Service Efficiency with datasets (II)99
Figure 13. Matrix relating KPIs and Sub-indicators in Service Efficiency with datasets (III)100
Figure 14. Matrix relating KPIs and Sub-indicators in Service Efficiency with datasets (IV)101
Figure 15. Datasets most used for calculated KPIs and Sub-indicators of Service Efficiency. 111
Figure 16. Profile of participants123
Figure 17. Categories to which the KPIs most associated with the KERs belong124
Figure 18. KPIs most associated with the KERs125
Figure 19. Categories to which the KPIs most associated with the KER 4126
Figure 20. Categories to which the KPIs most associated with the KER 5128
Figure 21. Categories to which the KPIs most associated with the KER 6
Figure 22. Categories to which the KPIs most associated with the KER 8
Figure 23. Categories to which the KPIs most associated with the KER 9135
Figure 24. Categories to which the KPIs most associated with the KER 10137
Figure 25. Categories to which the KPIs most associated with the KER 11139
Figure 26. Categories to which the KPIs most associated with the KER 12141
Figure 27. Categories to which the KPIs most associated with the KER 13143
Figure 28. Table produced to assess and to gather information related to datasets147
Figure 29. Flip chart generated by workshop's participants for KER5

# Acronyms



Acronym	Meaning
LEZ	Low Emissions Zone
IDSA	International Data Spaces Association
KPIs	Key Performance Indicators
KPAs	Key Performance Areas.
SUMPs	Sustainable Urban Mobility Plans
SULPs	Sustainable Urban Logistics Plans
LEV	Light Electric Vehicles
UFT	Urban Freight Transport



## **Executive Summary**

The executive summary outlines the main objectives and findings of the deliverable focused on advancing sustainable and zero-emissions Urban Freight Distribution (UFD) through coordinated efforts with local authorities and the logistics industry.

The following key points are included in this deliverable:

- The report identifies suitable frameworks for data exchange, essential data types for enhancing policymaking in Sustainable Urban Mobility Plans (SUMPs) and Sustainable Urban Logistics Plans (SULPs), and stakeholder requirements regarding privacy, security, and accountability.
- Barriers and drivers for data sharing in freight transportation are explored, along with considerations such as access levels, aggregation, anonymization, and data ownership.
- The KERs of the use cases demonstrate how data-sharing frameworks are applied, emphasizing gender perspectives in logistics data and ethical considerations across project deliverables.
- The International Data Spaces Association (IDSA) is selected as the preferred data-sharing framework for its emphasis on security, interoperability, and scalability.
- Detailed analyses of Key Performance Indicators (KPIs), Sub-indicators, and associated datasets across four categories already identified in D2.3 (Environment and Social Impact, Urban Planning, Traffic Management, and Service Efficiency) highlight critical data needs and access considerations.
- Findings underscore the importance of collaborative data sharing among stakeholders logistic companies, fleet managers, urban planners—to optimize logistics operations and achieve sustainability goals.

Overall, the executive summary highlights the strategic importance of robust data frameworks and collaborative partnerships in fostering sustainable urban logistics and enhancing efficiency in freight distribution.

## 1. Introduction

The main objectives of this deliverable are to coordinate with local authorities and the logistics industry, and establish public-private cooperation agreements and data-sharing frameworks to advance towards a sustainable and zero-emissions Urban Freight Distribution (UFD). Through literature reviews, source and data searches, and dedicated workshops with stakeholders, the following have been identified:

- 1. The most suitable frameworks for data exchange.
- 2. The type of data needed for the city to improve its policymaking and the strategies outlined in the Sustainable Urban Mobility Plans (SUMPs) and the Sustainable Urban Logistics Plans (SULPs).



- 3. The requirements of large, medium, and small urban logistics stakeholders related to privacy, security, standards, accountability, and competence, thus defining the framework conditions for sharing the different types of data generated.
- 4. The barriers and drivers for data sharing in freight transportation, and clarification of the conditions (who can access the information, level of aggregation, anonymization, etc.).
- 5. Different use cases (KERs) will be shown for each type of data and, in the definition of the "use contracts", and in the data type + conditions pairs for the information shared by the data owners.

To this end, this report analyzes through various points:

- The gender perspective in logistics data and the gender approach for each of the KPIs identified earlier in the project (point 2), as well as ethics and data-related issues present in all project deliverables.
- The review of the main data-sharing platforms related to logistics, as well as the presentation of the framework chosen for our project, which, as we will see in Section 3, is the IDSA.
- Next, we identify and present the relationship between KPIs (indicators), Sub-indicators (sub-indicators), and datasets through a matrix that indicates the datasets we need to calculate each KPA. At the same time, it tells us which are the most "necessary" datasets, the level of access, aggregation, and who owns the data. Finally, how each KPI in the four categories is calculated: environmental and social impact, urban planning, service efficiency.
- Section 4 shows which KPIs are associated with each KER through a workshop held with the project partners in Madrid. If we know which KPIs are associated with each KER, we can indirectly know which Sub-indicators and datasets are needed.
- Finally, Section 5 shows the results of collecting the necessary datasets in each KER, collected by the project partners involved in the development of each KER, as well as the different connectors that the platform must have to share data.

## 2. Gender, ethics and data related issues

## 2.1. Gender related issues

The collection and analysis of gender-disaggregated data in the logistics sector are crucial for understanding and addressing existing gender inequalities and for designing more inclusive policies and practices. Here are some key aspects and examples of relevant genderdisaggregated data for urban logistics.



#### 2.1.1. Key Aspects of Gender-Disaggregated Data in Logistics

#### 1. Labor participation:

- Employment rate by gender: The proportion of men and women employed in the logistics sector.
- Roles and positions: Distribution of men and women across different roles and hierarchical levels, from operational to leadership positions.
- 2. Wages and working conditions:
- Working conditions: Comparison of working conditions, including working hours, job security, and access to benefits.
- 3. Access to training and development opportunities:
- Training programs: Participation of men and women in training and professional development programs.
- Promotions and advancements: Rate of promotions and advancement opportunities disaggregated by gender.
- 4. Mobility patterns and use of infrastructure:
- Travel patterns: Differences in mobility patterns between men and women, including modes of transportation used and travel times.
- Access to infrastructure: Use of logistics infrastructure (such as warehouses and distribution centers) by gender.
- 5. Perception and experience in the sector:
- Work experience: Perception of men and women regarding their work experience in the logistics sector, including job satisfaction and sense of belonging.
- Barriers and challenges: Identification of specific barriers faced by women in the logistics sector, such as discrimination or lack of support.

#### 2.1.2. Examples of Gender-Disaggregated Data in Logistics

#### 1. Labor participation:

- In many countries, women represent a smaller proportion of the total workforce in the logistics sector.
- 2. Gender pay gap:
- Data might reveal that women in operational roles earn on average 15% less than their male counterparts, with the gap potentially being even larger in leadership positions.
- 3. Access to training:
- Analysis might show that women have less access to advanced training programs, with only 30% female participation in professional development courses.
- 4. Mobility patterns:
- Mobility data could indicate that women tend to use public transportation more frequently than men and that their travel times are more concentrated at certain times of the day due to caregiving responsibilities.



#### 2.1.3. Importance of Gender-Disaggregated Data

- **Inclusive policies**: Helps to design policies that promote gender equality and eliminate specific barriers faced by women.
- Improvement of Working Conditions: Enables identification and addressing of wage and working condition inequalities.
- **Increased female participation**: Facilitates the creation of training and professional development programs that encourage the participation and advancement of women in the logistics sector.
- **Urban planning and mobility**: Contribute to designing infrastructure and transportation services that are more accessible and safer for all genders.

In summary, the collection and analysis of gender-disaggregated data are essential for advancing towards a more inclusive, equitable, and efficient logistics sector.

#### 2.1.1. Gender perspective in KPIs

Within this sub section, the 41 KPIs already identified in WP2 and included in D2.3, are analyzed from a gender perspective.

#### KPI\_1: Number of sustainable commercial or freight vehicles (LEV, ZEV)

• To promote equal opportunities for both men and women to access training and use sustainable vehicles. To ensure that policies for acquiring and using these vehicles consider the equitable participation of women in the workforce.

#### **KPI\_2: Fuel consumption**

• To evaluate if there are gender differences in fuel consumption due to factors such as preferred routes, driving styles, or types of vehicles assigned. To implement training programs that include more women drivers.

#### **KPI\_3: GHG emissions**

• To encourage sustainable practices involving all genders and to assess whether there are differences in emissions related to the participation of women and men in various logistics roles.

#### KPI\_4: Particles (PM2.5 and/or PM10)

• To analyze how exposure to particles differently affects men and women, especially those involved in driving and logistics operations in urban areas.

#### KPI\_5: Noise level

• To assess the impact of noise on logistics workers of different genders, considering that women may have greater safety concerns in noisy environments.

#### KPI\_6: Gender/ethnicity of workers in freight-related industries & occupations



• To collect and analyze gender- and ethnicity-disaggregated data to identify and address disparities in representation and working conditions of workers.

#### KPI\_7: Employment rate and annual average income for freight employees in the city

• To analyze wage and employment differences between men and women in logistics, to implement policies to reduce the wage gap, and to promote employment equity.

#### **KPI\_8: Carbon footprint of deliveries**

• To ensure that strategies to reduce the carbon footprint include promoting gender diversity, to allow more women to participate in the implementation of sustainable practices.

#### KPI\_9: Nitrogen Oxide (NO2)

• To evaluate whether there are gender differences in NO2 exposure among logistics workers, and to implement adequate protective measures for all.

#### KPI\_10: Number of logistic centers, platforms, hubs, lockers

• To ensure that the location and design of logistic centers are safe and accessible for women, considering their specific needs and safety concerns.

#### KPI\_11: Number of loading/unloading areas - public space dedicated to urban logistics

• To ensure that loading and unloading areas are safe and accessible for all genders, with special considerations for safety and adequate lighting

#### KPI\_12: Policy related

• To develop and review policies to ensure they promote gender equality and address the specific needs of women in logistics, such as implementing flexible schedules and safety measures.

#### KPI\_13: Stakeholder engagement

• To encourage the equitable participation of men and women in decision-making and consultation processes related to urban logistics.

#### KPI\_14: Energy use and infrastructure available at warehouses, microplatforms, etc.

• To evaluate whether there are gender differences in access to and use of energy infrastructure, and to promote equality in the availability and use of sustainable resources.

#### KPI\_15: Time window in the city for urban logistics

 To analyze whether the time windows for urban logistics operations are convenient for women, especially those with caregiving responsibilities, and to adjust schedules to promote inclusivity.

#### KPI\_16: Revenue from LEZ access fee (EUR)



• To ensure that fee policies are fair and equitable, considering the financial impact on small businesses and female-led logistics operators.

#### KPI\_17: Number of commercial outlets having a cargo area within a 75 m radius

• To evaluate if the proximity of cargo areas affects men and women differently, and to ensure that the areas are safe and accessible for all.

#### KPI\_18: Percentage of freight vehicles in total vehicular traffic

• To promote the equal representation of women as drivers of freight vehicles and ensure that traffic policies include considerations for safety and accessibility

#### **KPI\_19: Congestion**

• To analyze how congestion impacts men and women differently, and to develop solutions that consider these differences, such as alternative routes and schedules.

#### KPI\_20: Freight-related accidents (accidents, people injured, vehicles involved, etc.)

• Evaluate whether there are gender differences in the incidence and consequences of freight-related accidents, implementing specific safety measures to reduce risks.

#### KPI\_21: Severe violations (Speed violations, drivers testing positive for alcohol or drugs)

• Examine if there are gender differences in committing severe violations and address underlying causes, such as training and awareness.

#### KPI\_22: Soft violations (unauthorized parking in loading zones, etc.)

• To evaluate whether there are gender differences in the incidence and consequences of freight-related accidents, and to implement specific safety measures to reduce risks

#### KPI\_23: Customer satisfaction with the delivery

 To collect and analyze satisfaction data disaggregated by gender to understand differences in expectations and experiences of delivery services between men and women.

#### KPI\_24: km traveled by commercial vehicles

• To analyze whether there are differences in distances traveled by vehicles driven by men and women, and to explore underlying causes such as route preferences and safety concerns

#### KPI\_25: Loading/unloading time - time per delivery

• To evaluate whether there are gender differences in loading and unloading times, considering factors such as safety and efficiency in logistics operations (and develop policies that promote equity through flexible allowed times.)

#### KPI\_26: Reliability of just-in-time freight deliveries



• To ensure that just-in-time delivery practices are equitable and non-discriminatory, promoting equal participation in all aspects of the supply chain.

#### KPI\_27: Increased utilization of load capacity of vehicles

• To promote training and ensure equitable access to technologies and practices that enhance vehicle load capacity utilization, benefiting both men and women in logistics

#### KPI\_28: Modal split

• To analyze modal split with a gender perspective to understand how different modes of transportation affect men and women and to develop policies that promote equity.

#### KPI\_29: Freight logistic intensity // delivery productivity

• To ensure that productivity and efficiency metrics consider gender differences in work practices and worker responsibilities

#### KPI\_30: Costs of the last mile per delivery/pick-up

• To evaluate whether there are gender differences in last-mile costs and to develop strategies to reduce costs and improve efficiency inclusively

#### KPI\_31: Percentage of total vehicle-kilometers that run empty

• To promote practices that reduce empty vehicle-kilometers and ensure that these strategies are inclusive and benefit drivers of all genders.

# KPI\_32: Recipient awareness of sustainable delivery options (index) // Recipient willingness to pay for sustainable delivery (index)

• To analyze whether there are gender differences in awareness and willingness to pay for sustainable delivery options, and to develop awareness campaigns that address these differences.

# KPI\_33: Hours that vehicles are in service, e.g., deliveries, pick-ups, transporting, weighting, loading/unloading over 24 hours

• To evaluate whether there are gender differences in work patterns and service hours, to promote flexible schedules and equitable working conditions

#### **KPI\_34: Night deliveries**

• To analyze women's participation in night deliveries and ensure that these operations are safe and accessible for all genders, with adequate safety measures.

#### KPI\_35: Average age of freight vehicles

• To ensure that fleet renewal policies consider gender equity and promote equal access to newer and more efficient vehicles.

#### KPI\_36: Average utilization of the warehouse or distribution centers



• To evaluate whether there are gender differences in the utilization of logistics facilities and to develop strategies to optimize the use of these spaces inclusively.

#### KPI\_37: Occupancy of (un)loading/parking areas

• To analyze whether there are gender differences in the occupancy of loading and parking areas, ensuring these areas are safe and accessible for all.

#### KPI\_38: Privacy

• To evaluate how privacy data is handled in logistics and to ensure policies protect the privacy of all workers and customers, regardless of gender.

#### KPI\_39: Time spent to find parking/(un)loading area

• To analyze whether there are gender differences in the time required to find parking and loading areas, and to implement solutions to improve efficiency and accessibility for all.

#### KPI\_40: Reservation of parking areas

• To ensure that parking area reservation systems are inclusive and accessible for all genders, promoting equity in urban logistics.

#### KPI\_41: Constraints identified during the last mile stage

• To evaluate last-mile constraints from a gender perspective and to develop solutions that address the specific needs and concerns of men and women in logistics.

### 2.2. Ethics related issues

No people external to the UNCHAIN project consortium have participated in the activities reported in this document, so ethics related issues are not applicable.

## 2.3. Data related issues

Data included in this report have been provided by partners, coming from their own sources (service's technical requirements) or from public sources (datasets nomenclature and features and KPIs' calculation algorithms). These data have been managed by ETRA and IBV, by adhering to the GDPR requirements and the project's data management plan.

## 3. Framework

To design the data-sharing framework, we first conducted a review of existing frameworks at both European and global levels. This allowed us to identify the common and essential features needed to develop our platform within the scope of this project.



Subsequently, we selected the IDSA (International Data Spaces Association) framework as the appropriate model for data sharing.

## 3.1. Review of logistic data platforms

Next, we present the review of the main logistics platforms worldwide:

- 1. PrepDSpace4Mobility: European Mobility Data Space.
- 2. EuroStat
- 3. EUs Open Data Platform
- 4. Statista Transportation and Logistics
- 5. Transport/Logistics and Container Tracking Datasets
- 6. Cargonaut
- 7. Telekom Data Intelligence Hub
- 8. Shippeo
- 9. FourKites
- 10. Intermodal Map
- 11. Movement by project44
- 12. International Service Reliability ISR
- 13. Commercial Responsibility Database COREDA
- 14. Open Railway Freight EDI User System ORFEUS
- 15. Web Data Interface WDI
- 16. Others:
  - TradeLens
  - CargoSmarT
  - GT Nexus (Infor Nexus)
  - Transporeon
  - Descartes Systems Group
  - Project44
  - FourKites
  - Samsara
  - Convey
  - IDSA

Name	3.1.1. PrepDSpace4Mobility: European Mobility Data Space
Owner	European Commission
Geographical	Europe
scope	
Content/Descripti	PrepDSpace4Mobility lays the foundation for a secured and
on	controlled way of pooling and sharing mobility data across Europe.

 Table 1. Description of the logistics platform PrepDSpace4Mobility: European Mobility Data Space.



	Preight and Logistics     Stow all     Cear filter x <b>Detravejviser (NAP)</b> Operator: Datavejviser     Geographic area covered: National     Location: Copenhagen, Dermark        Unt: https://datavejviser dk/datasets     Image: Comparison of the state st
PrepDSpace4Mobility	Traffic mode(s) NAP (National Access Point) Ownership of operator
URL	https://mobilitydataspace-csa.eu/inventory/
Data format Gaps	PDF (catalogue) and website (mapping)
	<ul> <li>Country</li> <li>Traffic mode (freight and logistics, multiple traffic modes, air transport, bike transport, inland water way transport, maritime transport, rail transport, road transport)</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>For each data ecosystem the following information is provided:</li> <li>Name of the platform/ecosystem</li> <li>Operator</li> <li>URL</li> <li>Ownership of operator (public/private)</li> </ul>
	The project has created a <b>catalogue summarising all relevant data</b> <b>ecosystems</b> including valuable information about the type and quality of data. The catalogue includes a total of 264 datasets, 14 of which are data ecosystems collecting data on freight and logistics transport.
	The 12-month Coordination and Support Action (CSA) contributes to the development of the common European mobility data space by mapping existing data ecosystems, identifying gaps and overlaps within, and proposing common building blocks and governance frameworks found in existing data space architectures.



Tuble 2. Description of the log	jistics phagorin Eurostat
Name	3.1.2. EuroStat
Owner	European Commission
Geographical scope	Europe
Content/Descripti on	<ul> <li>Different datasets containing freight information, based on the transport mode. There are 7 main categories, each one with different indicators.</li> <li>Multimodal data (tran)</li> <li>Railway transport (rail)</li> <li>Road transport (road)</li> <li>Inland waterways transport (iww)</li> <li>Oil pipeline transport (pipe)</li> <li>Maritime transport (mar)</li> <li>Air transport (avia)</li> </ul>
Data format	.xlsx, .csv, .tsv, .xml, .json
Gaps	Data available at national level.
URL	https://ec.europa.eu/eurostat/web/transport/data/database
Coods transported (onlin Source of data: Eurostat	e data code: RAIL_GO_TOTAL) Bar V Map = V 2 0 tide empty series values Ceographical level: Countries Not represented geopolitical entities Countries Not represented geopolitical entities Countries Coun
≥ 9 066 to 19 660 ≥ 19 660 to 31 103 ≥ 31 103 to 50 035 ≥ 50 035 to 90 5966 ≥ 90 596 to <b>358 858</b> Data not available	

of the logistics platform EuroStat



Name	3.1.3. EUs Open Data Platform
Owner	European Commission
Geographical	Europe
Content/Descripti on	The EU's open data portal already has almost 53,000 datasets in the transport category.
	Different datasets from different European countries can be easily accessible and in different formats.
Data format	.csv, .html, .wms, .json, .zip, .xlsx, .pdf, .shp, .xml, .geojson, .wfs, .xls, .kml, .tsv, .gml, .rdf, .json-stat, .px, .txt, .tiff, .jsonld, .ods, .dxf, .xsd, api, .wmts, .geoTIFF, .sql.
Gaps	Open data platform containing all type of data, not only logistic data.
URL	Open EU Datasets   Official Portal for EU Data   data.europa.eu

Table 3. Description of the logistics platform EUs Open Data Platform





#### Table 4. Description of the logistics platform Statista

Name	3.1.4. Statista – Transportation and Logistics
Owner	Statista
Geographical scope	World
Content/Description	Statista provides a wide range of reports and data insights under the transportation and logistics umbrella. These are comprised of in-depth coverage of vehicles and road traffic, aviation, rail transport, water transport, logistics, as well as public transport and mobility services. Statista's logistics coverage further provides historical data and recent developments in postal services, third- party logistics, as well as courier and express parcels.
	<ul> <li>The main logistics datasets available are listed below:</li> <li>Postal services in Europe - statistics &amp; facts. Overview: Postal industry revenue worldwide 2011-2020; European postal services revenue 2014-2020; Europe: number of postal offices and agencies 2004-2020; European enterprises providing postal services 2012-2020; European letter boxes 2004-2020; EU28: postal services employment figures 2008-2019. Mail traffic: European letter mail services revenue 2014-2020; Domestic letter mail traffic in Europe 2012-2020; Domestic letter mail traffic in Europe by country 2020; European domestic letter delivered on time by country 2012-2020; European international standard letter delivery prices by country 2012-2020. Parcel delivery: Revenue of the parcel market in Europe 2015-2021; Total volume of parcels in Europe 2012-2020; Total international parcel services traffic in Europe 2013-2020; Domestic parcel traffic in Europe by selected country 2021; European domestic parcel delivery prices by country 2012-2020; International outbound parcel services in Europe by country 2020. Companies: Deutsche Post DHL Group - annual revenue 2006-2021; Deutsche Post DHL Group - revenue from the letter sector 2005-2021; Annual revenue of the Royal Mail FY 2018-2022, by business segment; Royal Mail: volume of letters and parcels delivered in the UK FY 2017-2022; Revenue of PostNL 2014-2021; Operating of PostNL 2021, by business segment; Volume of mail and parcels of PostNL 2014-2021; Le Groupe La Poste's consolidated revenue 2014-2021; Le Groupe La Poste's consolidated revenue</li> </ul>



- European courier, express and parcels market statistics & facts. Overview: Parcel shipping revenue worldwide 2017-2020; Revenue share of postal services worldwide by product 2007-2020; Parcel shipping volume worldwide by country 2020; Parcel shipping volume worldwide 2013-2027; Total international parcel services traffic in Europe 2013-2020; Express and small parcels market size in Europe 2012-2020; Growth rate of the express and small parcels market in Europe 2012-2020. Segments: Total volume of parcels in Europe 2012-2020; Domestic parcel traffic in Europe by selected country 2021; International inbound parcel services traffic in Europe 2012-2020; International inbound parcel services traffic in Europe by country 2020; International outbound parcel services traffic in Europe 2013-2020; International outbound parcel services in Europe by country 2020. Companies: Deutsche Post DHL Group - revenue by region 2021; Deutsche Post DHL Group - revenue from express post sector 2005-2021; Hermes Group's revenue in Europe 2015-2019; Hermes Group's worldwide parcel delivery 2015-2019; Revenue of DPD worldwide 2017-2021; Parcels delivered by DPD worldwide 2017-2021; DPD group's parcel delivery by type worldwide 2017-2020; Revenue distribution of the Royal Mail Group plc FY 2018-2022, by business segment.
- Rail freight industry in Europe statistics & facts: Projected global rail freight market size 2020-2026; Rail freight traffic worldwide, by region 2019-2020; Rail freight demand in key markets 2019, European rail traffic in key countries 2019; Rail freight traffic in Europe 2012–2019; European rail freight load factor in key countries 2020; European rail traffic distribution in key countries 2020; Length of railway lines in use in Europe in 2020, by country.
- Reverse logistics statistics & facts. Overview: Parcel shipping volume worldwide 2013-2027; Parcel shipping volume worldwide by country 2020; Global retail e-commerce sales 2014-2026; E-commerce as share of total retail sales worldwide 2015-2027; Global reverse logistics market size forecast 2022-2029; Return deliveries costs by region 2015-2019. Segments: Reverse logistics market size in North America 2015-2019; Return deliveries costs in U.S. 2017-2020; Cost of online retail returns in the U.S. 2019-2022; Cost of retail returns in the U.S. 2007-2022; Reverse logistics market size in South America 2015-2019; Reverse logistics market size in EMEA 2015-2019; Reverse logistics market size in EMEA 2015-2019; Reverse logistics market size in Asia-Pacific 2015-2019. Companies:



	E-commerce companies planning to offer free returns 2021;
	Global e-commerce market share of leading e-retailers
	2021; Alibaba's annual e-commerce revenue FY 2013-FY
	2023, by region; Rakuten Group's quarterly domestic e-
	commerce GMS 2014-2023; Annual net sales of Amazon
	2004-2022; eBay: annual net revenue in the United States
	2013-2022; Revenues of online retailer OTTO 2012-
	2022/23. <b>Consumer behaviour</b> : Leading incentives driving
	purchases among internet users shopping online 2020;
	Methods used by global consumers to return an online
	purchase 2019; Online shoppers satisfaction with the
	rates among digital shappers in Europa 2021: Common
	reasons for returns in the world 2019: Preferred return
	methods for online shoppers in the U.S. 2022
Data format	.PNGPDFXLS.
Gaps	Statista Account needed for unlimited access
URL	Transportation & Logistics   Statista
	statista 🔽
	Prices & Access - Statistics - Reports - Insights Rev - Daily Data Services -
	Industries > Transportation & Logistics EXPLORE INDUSTRY >
	Transportation & Logistics



Longitude

Address 🕐

ID

Name

City

Zip

Float

Integer

String

String

String

Integer

Tuble 3. Description of the lo	jistics platjoini nansport/Logi.	sties und container i	Tucking D	ilusels.	
Name	3.1.5. Transp	ort/Logistics	and	Container	Tracking
	Datasets				
Owner	GREPSR				
Geographical	World				
scope					
Content/Descripti on	As retail increasingly skyrocketed. In order their logistics. These c	moves online, t to remain profi lata are gathere	the cost itable, b ed throu	of last-mile d usinesses mu gh location da	elivery has st optimize ita, such as
	current fleet coordina information.	tes and routes	, map d	etails, and roa	d or route
	Logistics tracking incl resources as they mov is possible to know wh	udes the meth ve and are store nere products, i	ods and d. With material	d systems use logistics track s, or other res	ed to track ing data, it sources are
	physically located and what's on the way.				
Deleferent	Free sample available				
Data format	.bin, .json,.xml, .csv, .>	(ls, .sql, .txt			
Gaps	Private platform, data	access is not fr	ree.		
UKL	Datarade	d Container Tra	acking D	atasets   Grep	osr
<ul> <li>[Sample] Transport &amp; Logistics Sample Datasets.csv</li> </ul>					
Attribute Type	Example		М	apping	
Type Strin	g Kombi-terminal				
Latitude Floa	49.23885			# Latitude	

Table 5. Description of the logistics platform Transport/Logistics and Container Tracking Datasets.

8.37243

Germersheim

**Terminal Germersheim** 

- - -

28421

76726

# Longitude

T Address

T City Name



#### Table 6. Description of the logistics platform Cargonaut.

Name	3.1.6. Cargonaut
Owner	Cargonaut
Geographical scope	The Netherlands
Content/Description	Cargonaut provides information for the air freight hub and gives all market parties and the government the control necessary for fast and error-free handling. In this way, Cargonaut unburdens logistics chains that run through airports. How? By providing complete, reliable and relevant data at the right time via our Information Exchange. Cargonaut processes and combines this data for logistics chain parties at Schiphol and beyond.
Data format	-
Gaps	Air freight information, not containing information from other freight transport modes. Private platform, data access is not free
URL	Cargonaut.nl – Cargonaut





Name		gici				
Name			3.1.7. Telekom Data Intelligence Hub			
Owner			Deutsche Telekom			
Geographical	scop	be	-			
Content/Desc	ripti	ion	Teleko	m Da	ta Intelligence Hub	(DIH) is a pioneer in developing
trustful and s businesses ecosystems t foster busine securely and terms with d			ul and esses stems busin ely and with d	sovereign end-to-end to collaborate wi to create value, becc ess innovation. Organ d trustfully to share, p data sovereignty prote	d data sharing services. It enables ithin standardized data-driven ome compliant to regulations and hisations can connect with others process, and analyse data on their ection	
			The Te	lekon	n Data Intelligence Hu	b has been a founding partner of
			Gaia-X	(, on t	he board of the IDSA	, and shaping technology as well
			as bus	iness	adoption as an active	e participant in the three leading
			datasp	aces	in automotive, Mobil	ithek/ Mobility Data Space, Gaia-
Data format			x 4 Future Mobility, and Catena-X.			
Gaps			Privat	- platf	form, data access is no	ot free. The type of datasets
Capo			includ	ed are	e not clearly identified	I on the website.
URL			Teleko	m Dat	ta Intelligence Hub	
	v 🔶	ATA INTELLIG	ENCE HUB	D	lata spaces 🔸 Browse Data spaces	
	🗄 Da	ashboard		A	vailable data spaces (9)	
	⊞J Da	ata spaces		^	6	1 the sea
	M	y membersh	nips		Catena-X	Telekom Data Space
	Br	rowse data s	paces		data space	and benefit from a pioneer Digital Telco
	🔉 Or	rganization		^	How to connect View Details	Get connected View Details
	Or	rganization p	profile		Mobility Data Space	Coming soo
					Mobility Data Space	EONA-X
					Connect to the software driven future of mobility	Optimize multimodal trips to achieve zero emission target of EU Mobility Strategy
					Get connected View Details	Get connected View Details
					Coming soon	SC ming soot
					EuProGigant	SCSN
	(?) He	elp			It is an Austrian-German lighthouse research project "for calamity avoiding self-orchestr	Smart Connected Supplier Network: It is an open data lighthouse ecosystem along wit
	« Сс	ollapse sidet	bar		Get connected View Details	Get connected. View Details

Table 7. Description of the logistics platform Telekom Data Intelligence Hub.



#### Table 8. Description of the logistics platform Shippeo.

Name	3.1.8. Shippeo
Owner	Shippeo
Geographical scope	Worldwide
Content/Description	Shippeo platform provides real-time visibility, insights and predictions for all transport modes to unlock greater value across supply chains. It tracks shipments (real-time status, location and predictive Estimated Time of Arrival (ETA)) across all modes of transport, and integrates with more than 875 Transport Management Systems (TMS), telematics and Electronic Logging Device (ELD) systems.
Data format	-
Gaps	Private platform, data access is not free.
URL	https://www.shippeo.com/





#### Table 9. Description of the logistics platform FourKites.

Name	3.1.9. Fourl	Kites	
Owner	FourKites		
Geographical scope	Worldwide (200+ co	untries)	
<b>Content/Description</b>	Visibility platform tr	acking over 3 million Sł	nipments daily for their
	global customer bas	se. It offers real-time v	isibility with predictive
	ETAs and real-time s	tatus for shipments in t	ransit and in the yard.
Data format	-		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Gaps	Private platform, dat	ta access is not free.	
URL	https://www.fourkit	es.com/	
G HOME	DLS - 🕸 ADMIN -		
		💭 OTR 👌 Ocean	
Select Carriers V Select Modes V	Select Customers V More Filters Apply	Save Filter Reset All	1 Average States and a second s
AT RISK DETAILS			
73		224	598
NOT YET ASSIGNED PICKUP AT RISK	DELIVERIES AT RISK	LATE ON TIME EARLY 102 49 16	NOT STARTED IN TRANSIT
SEVERE TRAFFIC & WEATHER ALERTS			
NEXT 24 HOURS (2) NEXT 24 - 48 HOURS (2)	48 HOURS OR LATER (2)		
Construction 26 - impacted	Miscellaneous 14 - impacted		
ि HOME ◎ TRACKING - 🍣 LANE CONN	ifct 🖻 tools 🗸 🔯 admin 🗸		
TRACK LOAD			F
FTA 00/00/			
Load Number	OTR_TI_Dtn_P_010510_1_2_1_USA		•
Pickup Locations Destination	stop_20960 Western Ave S stop_1000 Vaughn Rd	stop_20960 Western Ave S 08/31/2020 12:10 PM CDT : Pickup Time	
Shipper Carrier	SALES DEMO-SHIPPER SALES DEMO-CARRIER	08/31/2020 10:20 PM CDT : Truck Detected Ne	ar Facility
TRACKING LIPDATES	LISER MESSAGES	TRACKING MAP TRACKING DETAILS	411,070-521,1078-10700,
	OULY INCOMACO	Victoria	KAN TOTO
Tracking Load has started receiving lo	cation updates 09/01/2020 12:21 AM CDT	Olympia WASHINGT	DN Helena MONTANA
Awaiting Tracking Data Load is past plann	ed pickup time	Portland	TO ANY TO ANY
Control Carried ink not installed	09/01/2020 12:20 AM CD1	"Salem	
Carrier Link Hot installed	09/01/2020 12:10 AM CDT	OREGON	Boise IDAHO WYOMING
Managing Carrier Assigned Managing Carrier	erAssigned 09/01/2020 12:10 AM CDT	7.4 2531	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
SCAC Changed 🛣 Carrier changed to SA	LES DEMO-CARRIER (TLARA) 09/01/2020 12:10 AM CDT		ion NEVADA
Driver Assigned Driver +16529040987 a	ssigned via Create API for tracking	San Francisc	D. Rocky



Name	3.1.10.Intermodal Map		
Owner	SGKW		
Geographical scope	Worldwide (mainly focused on Europe)		
Content/Description	Comprehensive representation of Combined Transport (CT) terminals in Europe and beyond. It contains a range of information such as the handling equipment, terminal services, contact details, CT connections, among other things and is also completely free of charge.		
	Potential applications: Shippers who are interested in identifying alternative transport options; service providers, manufacturers of terminal equipment and public authorities, who are contemplating the plans for a new CT terminal. The Transport Planners can also quickly get information on transport infrastructure in starting and destination regions of new transports.		
	Data included:		
	<ul> <li>Representation of all CT-Terminals in Europe and beyond</li> <li>Information on the CT connections and the CT Truckers for the pre- and post-carriage</li> <li>Inclusive of extensive information about transhipment facilities and relations</li> </ul>		
	<ul> <li>Filtering option according to specific transport modes and facility type</li> </ul>		
	Completely free access to all users		
	<ul> <li>Free of charge representation for all Terminals, Depots, Rail transport companies and CT Operators</li> </ul>		
Data format			
Gans	Data cannot be downloaded		
URL	https://www.intermodal-map.com/		

Table 10. Description of the logistics platform Intermodal maps.







#### Table 11. Description of the logistics platform Movement by project44.

Name	3.1.11. Movement by project44
Owner	Project44
Geographical scope	Worldwide
<b>Content/Description</b>	Supply chain visibility platform delivering visibility, insights, and
	workflow tools — all seamlessly integrated with each shippers,
	carriers, and LSP systems.
Data format	-
Gaps	Private platform, data access is not free.
URL	https://www.project44.com/





Tuble 12. Description of the tog	sines philjorn mernanonal Service Relability- ISR.
Name	3.1.12. International Service Reliability- ISR
Owner	RailData (International Union of Railways – UIC)
Geographical scope	Europe
Owner Geographical scope Content/Description	<ul> <li>RailData (International Union of Railways – UIC)</li> <li>Europe</li> <li>ITS is an information system developed and operated by RailData. It is a common tool of ISR railway undertakings for concentration and exchange information about movements of freight wagons in international traffic through a central platform. It makes possible to track both loaded and empty freight wagons and consignments across significant part of Europe.</li> <li>ISR offers the following data: <ul> <li>Wagon Status: ISR registers position and status of freight wagons. Railway Undertakings (RUs) involved in transport of the wagon or responsible for the wagon can see or get information where the wagon is and what is happening with it. Information is available on ISR web centre or is automatically sent to ISR Users with means of messages. Event information is stored for two months. Many different wagon event types are followed.</li> <li>Train running: information about movements of freight trains is stored in RTIS database (Running Train Information System). It is used mainly for advanced wagon tracking based on the real time position of trains while running. RTIS also makes train run information available to RUs through web interface and also means of data messages.</li> <li>Wagon performance: ISR collects wagon performance data (km) from some RUs and estimates distance done by wagons on behalf of other RUs using own calculation engine. Performance data are sent to interested Users and to the wagon keepers through the RSRD2 database (will be switched to the GCU Broker).</li> </ul> </li> </ul>
	• Experienced plan: after a transport has finished, a part of
	the transport description as well as the first and last event is used to create an Experienced Transport Plan (ETP). For new transports running in the same relation and departing the same week day, ETPs can be used to estimate the arrival date & time (ETA).
	In average there are about 780 000 events reported each day. ISR processes more than 280 million of wagon events vearly.
Data format	-

Table 12. Description of the logistics platform International Service Reliability- ISR.



Gaps	Data access is not free, and it is only available under some
	conditions (being an active freight Railway Undertaking, having a
	RICS code, paying the ISR annual fee, delivering data to ISR).
URL	https://www.raildata.coop/services/isr
International Service Reliability	

Name	3 1 13 Open Bailway Freight FDI User System - OREFUS
	5.1.15. Open Mailway Freight EDI Oser System- ON EOS
Owner	RailData (International Union of Railways – UIC)
Geographical scope	Europe
Content/Description	It is an information system developed and operated by RailData. It ensures the exchange of railway CIM consignment notes and CUV wagon notes data between the co-operating railway undertakings
	(RU) using a Central Data management System (CDS). Orfeus functions are listed below:
	<ul> <li>CIM/CUV data: Railway Undertakings send data content of the consignment/wagon notes to ORFEUS, which distributes these data to other carriers involved in the transport. The CIM/CUV notes in paper form exist and accompany the wagons still.</li> </ul>
	• Electronic Notes: Data Exchange is performed as above, but the data fulfil the role of the Electronic Consignment Note (ECN). There is no paper note issued nor transported anymore.
	In average there are about 110 000 consignments reported via ORFEUS monthly. ORFEUS processes more than about 2,7 million messages yearly.
Data format	Messages use modern XML syntax.
Gaps	Data access is not free, and it is only available under some
	conditions (being an active freight Railway Undertaking, having a
	RICS code, paying the ORFEUS annual fee, delivering data to
	URFEUS).
URL	https://www.raildata.coop/services/orfeus

 Table 13. Description of the logistics platform Open Railway Freight EDI User System - ORFEUS.





Name					
Name	3.1.14. Commercial Responsibility Database - COREDA				
Owner	RailData (International Union of Railways – UIC)				
Geographical scope					
Content/Description	It is central database of freight wagons where authorized				
	companies can find who is wagon's keeper and mainly which				
	railway undertaking is currently commercially responsible for the				
	wagon. This is needed because each keeper can delegate rights for				
	use of the wagon to another party. This database was designed by				
	RailData on request and functional order from the UIC Wagon users				
	Study group. This tool provides an important IT support for the				
	European freight railway undertakings. COREDA functions are listed				
	below:				
	Wagon Database: COREDA database includes list of wagon				
	numbers with indications of its keeper (means of Vehicle				
	Keeper Marking) and commercial/operational responsible				
	RU. Because the situation of wagon changes in time, there				
	is also interval of validity and last modification date.				
	Records are kept online for two years and the offline history				
	is stored for 10 years. There are also functions for conflict				
	detabase usage COPEDA also maintains needed reference				
	data for validity chocks				
	• Communications: Users can unload their wagen changes				
	(insert undate delete) as data in form of csy of yml filos				
	over communication interface (web service or ETP/SETP)				
	Received data are validated and stored in opposite				
	direction Users can get wagon data periodically or				
	download on request when needed. Distribution options				
	are specific for communication interface, and enable to get				
	data for given wagons, changes from a date, daily changes				
	up to general download.				
	Web Centre: Web application enables to authorised users				
	to create, update or delete wagon records. Web also				
	responds queries concerning current wagon situation or				
	history of wagon keeper and commercial responsible. Users				
	can alternatively upload files with wagon changes or				
	request download data selected by various parameters. Of				
	course user management and authentication is included				
	too.				

Table 14. Description of the logistics platform Commercial Responsibility Database- COREDA

Data format

.CSV, .XML



Gaps	Data access is not free, and it is only available under some conditions (being an active freight Railway Undertaking, having a RICS code, paying the ORFEUS annual fee, delivering data to ORFEUS).
URL	https://www.raildata.coop/services/coreda
	CORPOR Commercial Responsibility Database

Table 15	5. Description	of the logistic	es platform V	Veh Data	Inetrface -WDI.
I doit 15	. Description	of the togistic	s plugorn r	ico Duiu	menjace mpn.

Name	3.1.15. Web Data Interface- WDI				
Owner	RailData (International Union of Railways – UIC)				
Geographical scope					
Content/Description	<ul> <li>The aim of WDI (Web Data Interface) is to offer to RUs having low or small IT facilities a user-friendly web interface to operate electronic message exchange with RailData railway undertakings.</li> <li>WDI functions are listed below: <ul> <li>Train Pre-Advice: WDI enables to capture data for the Train composition pre-advice message for the collaborating railway undertaking, which will take over the train. When completed, the tool sends out so called Hermes 30 message to the partner RU. In opposite direction, WDI can receive H30 messages from RU partners, who are going to hand</li> </ul> </li> </ul>				
	<ul> <li>Wagon Status: WDI also allows capture wagon status information (e.g. arrival departure or delivered) which is</li> </ul>				
	then sent to the ISR application. This way, tracking of wagons is also possible at first/last mile operators.				
Data format	WDI User can see the train data on the web, with option to print				
	or download the data for internal use				
Gaps	Data access is free of charge, but only Railway Undertaking willing to exchange data through WDI with another RailData ISR User can have access to it.				
URL	https://www.raildata.coop/services/wdi				
	Web Data Interface				


### 3.1.16. Other logistics platforms are:

1. **TradeLens:** Developed by IBM and Maersk, TradeLens is a blockchain-based platform connecting global supply chain participants.

Link: https://www.tradelens.com/

#### Features:

- Transparent and secure recording of supply chain events.
- Real-time collaboration among different parties.
- Enhanced visibility and efficiency in the supply chain.
- 2. **CargoSmart:** Offers digital solutions for supply chain management, including collaboration among different stakeholders.

Link: https://www.cargosmart.com/

#### Features:

- Real-time tracking of shipments.
- Collaboration and communication tools for business partners.
- Data analytics to improve operational efficiency.
- 3. **GT Nexus (Infor Nexus):** Provides a cloud-based platform for global supply chain management.

Link: https://www.gtnexus.com/

Features:

- End-to-end visibility of the supply chain.
- Collaboration among multiple business partners.
- Integrated order management and fulfillment.
- 4. **Transporeon:** Focuses on logistics process optimization and collaboration in the supply chain.

Link: https://www.transporeon.com/es

Features:

- Efficient carrier assignment and shipment tracking.
- Real-time information exchange between carriers and businesses.
- 5. **Descartes Systems Group:** Offers solutions for supply chain management, including collaboration and visibility.

Link: https://www.descartes.com/home



### Features:

- Global network platform for collaboration among business partners.
- Shipment tracking and event management.
- **6. Project44** (https://www.project44.com/): Project44 is a logistics visibility platform that provides real-time visibility into global shipping processes. It connects shippers, carriers, and logistics service providers.
- **7.** FourKites (https://www.fourkites.com/es/): FourKites is a real-time supply chain visibility platform that helps organizations track and manage their shipments. It provides predictive analytics and collaborative tools.
- 8. Samsara (https://www.samsara.com/): Samsara offers an integrated platform for fleet management, including real-time tracking, route optimization, and performance analytics. It is designed to improve efficiency in transportation and logistics.
- **9. Convey:** Convey provides a logistics management platform that focuses on enhancing the end-to-end visibility of shipments and improving customer experiences through predictive analytics.
- **10. IDSA (International Data Space Association):** The International Data Spaces Association (IDSA) is a global initiative focused on creating a secure, standardized framework for data sharing across organizations and sectors. It aims to facilitate data sovereignty, allowing data owners to maintain control over their data and how it is used. The IDSA's framework supports interoperability and trust among participants, fostering innovation and collaboration in the digital economy. By setting guidelines and standards for data exchange, the IDSA seeks to enable the safe and efficient utilization of data in various industries.

### 3.2. Common features of logistic data platforms

Here are some common features of logistics data-sharing platforms:

- **1. Real-time visibility:** Platforms offer real-time tracking and monitoring of shipments, providing stakeholders with immediate access to critical data.
- **2.** Collaboration tools: Collaboration features facilitate communication and information exchange between different parties involved in the supply chain, fostering efficient coordination.
- **3.** End-to-End connectivity: Platforms often provide end-to-end connectivity, linking various stakeholders such as shippers, carriers, suppliers, and distributors for seamless data sharing.
- 4. Document management: Document sharing capabilities allow for the secure and efficient exchange of important logistics documents, reducing paperwork and streamlining processes.



- **5. Predictive analytics:** Some platforms incorporate predictive analytics to forecast potential disruptions, delays, or issues in the supply chain, enabling proactive decision-making.
- 6. Security and Compliance: Robust security measures ensure the confidentiality and integrity of shared data, and compliance features help adhere to industry regulations and standards.
- **7. Data standardization:** Standardized data formats and protocols help ensure consistency in information exchange, promoting interoperability among different systems.
- **8.** Automation of processes: Automation features help optimize logistics processes, reducing manual intervention and enhancing overall operational efficiency.
- **9. Performance analytics:** Platforms often include analytics tools to assess the performance of logistics operations, enabling data-driven decision-making and continuous improvement.
- **10. Multi-Modal integration:** Integration capabilities across various transportation modes (road, rail, sea, air) provide a comprehensive view of the entire supply chain, irrespective of the transportation method.
- **11. Visibility into inventory:** Some platforms offer visibility into inventory levels, helping stakeholders monitor stock levels and anticipate potential shortages or surpluses.
- **12. Scalability:** Scalability features allow the platform to adapt to the changing needs and growing scale of the logistics operations, accommodating increased data volumes and user numbers.
- **13. Environmental impact tracking:** Certain platforms include features to track and analyze the environmental impact of logistics operations, supporting sustainability initiatives.
- **14. Notification and alert systems:** Instant notification and alert systems inform stakeholders about critical events, disruptions, or changes in the supply chain, enabling timely response.
- **15. User-Friendly interface:** Intuitive and user-friendly interfaces enhance the adoption of the platform across different stakeholders, promoting effective use of the shared data.

### 3.3. IDSA (Internacional Data Space Association)

Based on the review shown in the previous section and as explained and developed in deliverable 3.2, the platform chosen as the most suitable is the IDSA. Below, a brief introduction, basic features, main objectives, advantages, and structure are presented. Additionally, the advantages of IDSA as a platform for data sharing in urban logistics and delivery are discussed.



### 3.3.1. Introducción to IDSA

The International Data Spaces Association (IDSA) is a global initiative dedicated to creating a secure, standardized framework for data sharing across organizations and sectors. Established to foster trust and interoperability in the digital economy, the IDSA focuses on ensuring data sovereignty, allowing data owners to maintain control over their data and its usage. By setting guidelines and standards for data exchange, the IDSA aims to enable safe and efficient data utilization, driving innovation and collaboration across various industries. The association brings together a diverse group of stakeholders, including companies, research institutions, and public bodies, to collectively develop and implement solutions that support secure and fair data ecosystems.

### 3.3.2. Basic Characteristics

The basic characteristics of the International Data Spaces Association (IDSA) are:

- 1. **Data Sovereignty**: Ensures that data owners retain control over their data, including how it is used and shared.
- 2. **Standardization**: Develops and promotes standardized frameworks and protocols for secure data exchange across different organizations and sectors.
- 3. Interoperability: Facilitates seamless data sharing and integration between diverse systems and platforms.
- 4. **Security**: Emphasizes robust security measures to protect data from unauthorized access and breaches.
- 5. **Trust**: Builds trust among participants through transparent and auditable data usage policies and practices.
- 6. **Innovation**: Encourages innovation by enabling new business models and data-driven solutions.
- 7. **Collaboration**: Brings together a wide range of stakeholders, including companies, research institutions, and public bodies, to collaborate on developing and implementing data sharing solutions.
- 8. **Data Ecosystem**: Supports the creation of a fair and efficient data ecosystem that benefits all participants by enabling value creation from shared data.

### 3.3.3. Objectives

The main objetives of IDSA are:

- **Data Sovereignty**: Ensure data owners retain full control over their data, including access and usage rights.
- **Standardization**: Develop and promote standardized frameworks and protocols for secure and efficient data exchange.
- Interoperability: Enable seamless data integration and sharing across diverse systems and platforms.

- **Security**: Implement robust security measures to protect data from unauthorized access, breaches, and misuse.
- **Trust Building**: Foster trust among participants through transparent, auditable data usage policies and practices.
- Innovation Facilitation: Encourage the development of new business models and data-driven solutions.
- **Collaborative Ecosystem**: Promote collaboration among companies, research institutions, and public bodies to drive collective progress in data sharing technologies.
- Fair Data Economy: Support the creation of a fair and efficient data economy where all participants can benefit from shared data.

### 3.3.4. Advantages

The advantages are:

- Enhanced Data Control: Data owners have full control over their data, ensuring it is used according to their terms.
- Improved Security: Strong security protocols protect data from unauthorized access and breaches.
- **Increased Trust:** Transparent and auditable processes build trust among data-sharing participants.
- Interoperability: Standardized frameworks enable easy data exchange between different systems and platforms.
- Innovation Opportunities: Access to shared data fosters innovation and the creation of new data-driven business models.
- **Collaborative Growth:** The association promotes collaboration, leading to shared advancements and solutions in data technologies.
- Efficiency: Standardized data sharing processes streamline operations and reduce costs associated with data integration.
- **Market Competitiveness:** Organizations can gain competitive advantages through efficient data utilization and new service offerings.

### 3.3.5. IDSA framework structure

The IDSA framework is designed to facilitate secure, interoperable, and standardized data sharing across various organizations and sectors. Its structure includes several key components:

### 1. Data Sovereignty Principles:

- Ensures data owners retain control over their data.
- Defines clear policies for data access, usage, and sharing.

### 2. Reference Architecture Model:

- Provides a comprehensive blueprint for implementing data spaces.
- Consists of multiple layers including business, functional, and technical layers.

• Ensures alignment with industry standards and best practices.

### 3. Connector Framework:

- Defines standard interfaces and protocols for connecting different data systems.
- Ensures interoperability between diverse IT systems and platforms.
- Provides secure and trusted data exchange mechanisms.

### 4. Security and Trust Mechanisms:

- Implements robust security protocols to protect data integrity and confidentiality.
- o Includes authentication, authorization, and encryption techniques.
- o Utilizes trust certification processes to verify participant credentials.

### 5. Governance Framework:

- Establishes rules and guidelines for data space operation and management.
- Defines roles and responsibilities of participants.
- Ensures compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.

### 6. Data Usage Control:

- Enables fine-grained control over how data is accessed and used.
- Implements policy enforcement points to manage data usage according to predefined rules.

### 7. Standardization and Interoperability Guidelines:

- Provides standardized data models and vocabularies.
- Ensures data can be easily shared and understood across different systems.

### 8. Monitoring and Auditing Tools:

- Offers tools for monitoring data transactions and usage.
- Provides auditing capabilities to ensure compliance and transparency.

### 9. Collaboration and Ecosystem Support:

- Promotes collaboration among stakeholders including businesses, research institutions, and public bodies.
- Supports the development of a vibrant data ecosystem through community engagement and shared resources.

### 10. Innovation and Development:

- Encourages the creation of innovative data-driven solutions and business models.
- Provides a sandbox environment for testing and developing new applications.

All the IDSA features described in this section match seamlessly to UNCHAIN project, which to achieve its main objectives requires data exchange. Indeed, on the one hand, datasets are required to calculate the KPIs measuring the impact of the project services in urban logistics at urban level. On the other hand, the project services tested in the project Living Labs and Follower cities need dynamic datasets to progress in efficiency and sustainabity of logistics services.



### 4. KPIs and datasets.

In this section, we present the KPIs and associated Sub-indicators<sup>1</sup> related to the field of logistics, which we have grouped into four categories:

- 1. Environment and social impact
- 2. Urban Planning (land use, infrastructure, public participation)
- 3. Traffic management
- 4. Service Efficiency

First, the 41 KPIs (Section 4.1) are shown, followed by a detailed examination of the four categories and the definition of Sub-indicators for each KPI. Additionally, the necessary datasets (Section 4.2.1) for calculating Sub-indicators (and indirectly KPIs), the formulas to calculate them, and aspects such as who can access the information, level of aggregation, and anonymazation, among others, are defined.



### 4.1.KPIs

Table 16 shows the list of KPIs identified throughout the project, which serves as a starting point for defining the possible datasets that make up the initial list. This list needs to be cross-referenced with the different profiles participating in data sharing: companies, cities, and database services.

#### Table 16. List of identified KPIs

Categories	KPI
Environme	(1) Number of sustainable commercial or freight vehicles (LEV, ZEV)
ntal and	(2) Fuel consumption
social	(3) GHG emissions
impact	(4) Particles (PM2.5 and/or PM10)
	(5) Noise level

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Deliverable D2.3. (https://unchainproject.eu/content/uploads/2024/06/20240430-IBV-UNCHAIN-D2.3\_Technical-and-legal-requirements-KPIs-and-use-cases\_vf-1.pdf)



	(6) Gender/ethnicity of workers in freight-related industries & occupations
	(7) Employment rate and annual average income for freight employees in
	city
	(8) Carbon footprint of deliveries
	(9) Nitrogen Oxide (NO2)
Urban	(10) Number of logistic centres, platforms, hubs, lockers
Planning	(11) Number of loading/unloading areas - public space dedicated to urban
(land use,	logistics
infrastructu	(12) Policy related
re, public	(13) Stakeholder engagement
participatio	(14) Energy use and infrastructure available at warehouses, microplatforms,
n)	etc
	(15) Time window in city for urban logistics
	(16) Revenue from LEZ access fee (EUR)
	(17) N. of commercial outlets having a cargo area within a 75 m radius.
Traffic	(18) Percentage of freight vehicles in total vehicular traffic
manageme	(19) Congestion
nt	(20) Freight-related accidents (accidents, people injured, vehicles involved,
	etc)
	(21) Severe violations (Speed violation, drivers testing positive on alcohol or
	drugs)
	(22) Soft violations (unauthorized parking in loading zones // commercial
	vehicles with parking-related fines)
Service	(23) Customer satisfaction with the delivery
Efficiency	(24) Km traveled by commercial vehicles
	(25) Loading/unloading time - time per delivery
	(26) Reliability of just-in-time freight deliveries
	(27) Increased utilisation of load capacity of vehicles
	(28) Modal split
	(29) Freight logistic intensity // delivery productivity
	(30) Costs of the last mile per delivery/ pick up
	(31) Percentage of total vehicle-kilometers that run empty
	(32) Recipient awareness of sustainable delivery options (index) //
	Recipient willingness to pay for sustainable delivery (index)
	(33) Hours that vehicles are in service, e.g. deliveries, pick ups,
	transporting, weighting, loading/unloading over 24 hours
	(34) Night deliveries
	(35) Average age of freight vehicles
	(36) Average utilization of the warehouse or distribution centers
	(37) Occupancy of (un)loading/parking areas
	(38) Privacy
	(39) Time spent to find parking/(un)loading area
	(40) Reservation of parking areas



(41) Constraints identified during the last mile stage

### 4.2. Enviroment and social impact

The following sub section 4.2.1 presents the KPIs, Sub-indicators, and datasets associated with topic "Environment and Social Impact". Additionally, it analyzes how they are calculated, the datasets most commonly used, and finally, aspects related to who can access the information, level of aggregation and anonymazation, among others.

This KPA (category) consists of: 9 KPIs, 53 sub-indicators, and 133 datasets.

4.2.1. KPIs and Sub-indicators in Enviroment and social impact

In this section, we will define the datasets needed for each sub-indicator related to "Environmental and Social Impact." The Sub-indicators are:

Table 17. KPIs and Sub-indicators in Enviroment and social impact								
KPI_1: Number of sustainable commercial or freight vehicles (LEV, ZEV)								
1. Subsidized Clean Vehicles								
2. Sustainable Commercial Vehicles in Restricted Traffic Areas								
3. Emissivity Class of Vehicles								
4. Electric Vehicles								
5. Percentage of Alternative Fuel Vehicles								
6. Share of LEVs and ZEVs in Urban Freight Vehicle Fleet								
7. Renewable Fuel Sources for Low and Zero-Emission Vehicles								
8. Type of Vehicle								
9. Clean Delivery Vehicles								
10. Total Number of Vehicles								
11. Vehicles per Business								
12. Fleet Composition								
13. Micromobility Vehicles								
14. Shared Vehicles								
KPI_2: Fuel consumption								
15. Annual Fuel Consumption per Capita								
16. Average Fuel Consumption per 100 Vehicle-km								
17. Fuel Consumption for In-Boundary Transportation per Fuel Type								
18. Type of fuel								
KPI_3: GHG emissions								
19. Emissions from logistics buildings: Share of emissions from logistics buildings to total logistics operations (%)								
20. GHG emissions from the freight sector (Road freight transport): Average GHG emitted from the freight sector annually within the city (ton CO2e/year gCO2/ton-km)								



21. GHG emissions from the freight sector (Road freight transport): Percentage of emissions from freight amongst total transport-related GHG emissions (%)

22. GHG emissions according to the type of vehicle: Average GHG emissions from different types of vehicles per km (gCO2 emissions/km)

23. Exposure to vulnerable communities – air pollution: Percentage of transport-related pollutants (NOx, PM) emissions that are emitted by urban freight in transport-related emissions at neighborhoods with lowincome population or vulnerable communities (%)

24. Greenhouse gas emissions (GHG): Well-to-wheels GHG emissions by all urban area passenger and freight transport modes (t CO2 equivalent)

25. GHG emission from transport: greenhouse gas emissions from the operations of vehicles (source: SUMI) (t CO2 equivalent)

KPI\_4: Particles (PM2.5 and/or PM10)

26. Particles (PM10 and PM2.5) Measurements

27. Air Quality Index (AQI) - Particulate Matter (PM10 and PM2.5) Exposures

28. Air Pollutant Emissions from Passenger and Freight Transport

KPI\_5: Noise level

29. Noise Level: Data collected through sensors and surveys geared at local traders

**30.** Day noise exposure: Percentage of inhabitants exposed to Lden noise levels higher than 55 dB (ISO 1996-1:2016)

31. Night noise exposure: Percentage of inhabitants exposed to Lnight noise levels higher than 50 dB (ISO 1996-1:2016)

**32.** Life years lost to noise

**KPI\_6:** Gender/ethnicity of workers in freight-related industries & occupation

**33.** Gender Distribution in the Freight Industry

34. Gender Pay Gap in the Freight Industry

**35. Ethnic Diversity in Managerial Positions in the Freight Industry** 

36. Income Disparities Among Different Ethnic Groups in the Freight Industry

KPI\_7: Employment rate and annual average income for freight employees in city

**37. Employment Rate** 

38. Annual Average Income

**KPI\_8: Carbon Footprint of Deliveries** 

39. Emission Data by Transportation Mode

40. Vehicle Efficiency and Fuel Type

41. Delivery Routes and Optimization

42. Package Size and Weight

43. Last-Mile Delivery Data

44. Alternative Transportation Adoption

45. Emission Factors by Region

46. Vehicle Maintenance and Upkeep

**47. Green Delivery Initiatives** 

48. Delivery Company Carbon Policies

**49. Consumer Behavior and Preferences** 

50. Carbon Offsetting Practices



51. Traffic Conditions and Congestion

52. Regulatory Compliance Data

KPI\_9: Nitrogen Oxide (NO2)

53. Air Quality Dataset - Nitrogen Dioxide (NO2)



### 4.2.1. Matrix relating KPIs and Sub-indicators with datasets (Enviroment and social impact)

			к	PI 1:	r: Number	r of sustai	nable commercia	al or freigh	nt vehicle	es (LEV, ZE	EV)			KPI_	2: r: Fi	iel consum	ption					I	(PI_3:	r: GHG (	missions	5			ł	KPI_4	Particle	es (PM2.	.5 and/or F	PM10)		KPI 5:	: :•	Noise
			1	2 3	4	5 6	578	9	10	11 1	2 13	14	15	16 1	7 18	19 2	0 21	22	23 24	4 25	26	27 28	3 29	30	31 3	12 3	34	35 3	6 37	38	39	40 4	41 42	43	44	45	46 /	47
		DATASETS		Nur	mh Partri		(%)				Date /	1	Locati	Tota	al Fuel	Ave	era	Emissi	Tot	tal Emissi	i Share	Annua Ave	ra Total	Perce P	erce Per	rce We	I- Well-	GH	G PM10	) PM2.5	Perce Pe	erce Tra	ans Exhau	J Non-				
			Nu	umb er o	of cted		Numb ative	Rene		Nu	imb /		on	Con	nsu mptio	Total Fue	el	(in Se	ourc <sub>CS</sub>	from	of emissi	emissi GHG	transp 6 ort-	ntage n of o	tage nta f of F	age to- PM whe	to- el wheel	Sourc ons	issi (µg/m s ³)	1 (μg/m 3)	of of	tage po f Mo	ode Emise	si st	ion	S	ourc Pr	erce
			Vehicl er	of Veh	hicl Traffic E	missi Reg	al er of Fuel rist Flectri Vehi	wable	Busin	er o Fleet Sha	of Temp		(Neig bborb Pr	mpi onul n (in	itio n per	Vehici Cor	nsu ntio Fuel	units e	оре	era logisti	ons	ons emi	ssi relate	emissi N	Ox em	nissi s Gl	IG s GHG	e fro	m		Inhabi In	nhabi (Pa	asse ons	Emissi	(Latit l	Noise e	nt	tage
			e ize	ed Tota	al (ZTL)	vity ere	d c es/	Energ	ess T	Type d	Data /	Year	ood, at	tion liter	ers (calcu	e-km n p	er Type	ied by Pi	roto emi	ns cs issi buildi	logisti	road per	d GHG emissi	ons e from o	missi ons ns fro	s em m ons	ons	(SUMI the	era		Expos Expos	ants ng xpos Ca	ar (g/km ur, )	for	ude I	Level (S	iens of	f abab
	Sub-		Ve	ehicl Nur	mb Exten	Car	s Vehicl Perc	Share	Name	Vel	hicl Times		City,	or	lated	ed 10	D	the co	ol for ons	ngs	cs i	freigh ton	ons	freigh fr	om urb	ban fror	n from	other) tio	ns		ed to e	d to tru	uck,	PM2.5	Longi	(ab) or S	urve it	ants
KPIS	indicators		es	Car	s (km²)		of	*		es	(Date		n,	er	Total	e-k	m	Proto	CO2	n (ton 2e CO2e	ngs to	t (ton km CO2e (gCl	(ton 02 CO2e	t u amon fr	rban frei eigh tin	n nge	e freigh r t	of vel	nid		Excee Excee	M2.5) xcee		(g/ km )	tude)	y)	)	
	1 Subsidized Clean Vehicles			~		_	LFVs				and		Count	unit	it) Fuel	lca	leu	col	/vo	ar) /voar)	total	/vear) /to	n. /voar)	oct t	in yul	lner trar	en tranen	90	(+		th anneh	ance		-	┝━━┿			-
	2. Sustainable Commercial V	abiclas in Pastrictad Traffic Arazs	X.	X	, ,	_					X			_	_		_									_			_	++		_		+	$\vdash$			-
	2. Sustainable Commercial V				( X	v v	,	+			×										+									++				+	$\vdash$		$\rightarrow$	-
	4 Electric Vehicles	3			·	^ ^	v			-	×			-			-		-	-		-	-		-	-				++				+	$\vdash$			-
	5 Percentage of Alternative	Fuel Vehicles	+	^	<b>`</b>		^ ¥	+ +			×				_		_				+ +									++				+	$\vdash$		-	-
	6. Share of LEVs and ZEVs in L	Urban Freight Vehicle Fleet	x				X	+ +			x				_		_				+ +									++				+	$\vdash$		-	-
KPI_1: Number of sustainable	7. Renewable Fuel Sources for	or Low and Zero-Emission Vehicles	x					x			x								-	-			-		-					++				+	$\vdash$		-	-
commercial or freight vehicles (LEV,	8. Type of Vehicle		x	×	<i>.</i>			~			x								-				-		-					++				+	$\vdash$	-	-	-
ZEV)	9. Clean Delivery Vehicles		x	x	(						x			-						-		-			-	-			-	+ +			-	+	$\vdash$		-	-
	10. Total Number of Vehicles	5	x	x	(			+ +			x						_			_			-						_	++				+			+	
	11. Vehicles per Business			x	(			+ +	x		x						_			_			-						_	++				+			+	
	12. Fleet Composition			X	(			+ +		x	x						_			_			-						_	++				+			+	
	13. Micromobility Vehicles		x	x	(						x												-									-	-	+	-+	-	+	
	14. Shared Vehicles		x							,	хх																			++			_	+			-	
	15. Annual Fuel Consumption	n per Capita										x	x	x x	K X					-			-										_	+			-	
	16. Average Fuel Consumption	on per 100 Vehicle-km										х	x	X	ĸ	x x	ĸ																_				-	
KPI_2: Fuel consumption	17. Fuel Consumption for In-	Boundary Transportation per Fuel Type										х	x				х	x	х														_					
	18. Type of fuel																х																_					
	19. Emissions from logistics b	ouildings: Share of emissions from logistics									х		x						X	( X	X												_				-	
	20. GHG emissions from the	freight sector (Road freight transport):									х		x									хх											_					
	21. GHG emissions from the	freight sector (Road freight transport):									x		x									x	х	x									_					
KPI_3: GHG emissions	22. GHG emissions according	to the type of vehicle: Average GHG	х								x											х																
	23. Exposure to vulnerable of	ommunities – air pollution: Percentage of									х		x												X )	x												
	24. Greenhouse gas emission	ns (GHG): Well-to-wheels GHG emissions b	y N								х		x													Х	X											
(	25. GHG emission from trans	port: greenhouse gas emissions from the									х																	X J	(									
	26. Particles (PM10 and PM2	.5) Measurements									х		X																x	x								
KPI_4: Particles (PM2.5 and/or PM10)	27. Air Quality Index (AQI) - I	Particulate Matter (PM10 and PM2.5)									х		x																		x	х						
	28. Air Pollutant Emissions fr	rom Passenger and Freight Transport									х																						хх	X				
	29. Noise Level: Data collecte	ed through sensors and surveys geared at									х																								х	x	x	
KPL 5: Noise level	30. Day noise exposure: Perc	entage of inhabitants exposed to Lden									х																								X			х
	31. Night noise exposure: Pe	rcentage of inhabitants exposed to Lnight									х																								х		·	х
	32. Life years lost to noise			_							х																		_						X			
	33. Gender Distribution in th	e Freight Industry		_																									_						$\square$			
KPI_6: Gender/ethnicity of workers in	34. Gender Pay Gap in the Fr	eight Industry		_											_				_				_		_				_						$\vdash$			_
freight-related industries & occupation	35. Ethnic Diversity in Manag	gerial Positions in the Freight Industry		_							_				_		_		_	_			_		_		_		_						$\vdash$		_	_
KPL 7: Employment rate and annual	36. Income Disparities Amon	g Different Ethnic Groups in the Freight						+			_				_		_			_									_					+	$\vdash$			_
average income for freight employees	37. Employment Rate			_		_					_	X	X				_		_	_			_		_	_			_			_	——		$\vdash$		$\rightarrow$	_
in city	38. Annual Average Income			_		_					_	x	X				_			_	$ \rightarrow $	_	_		_	_	_		_	$\rightarrow$				+	$\vdash$			_
	39. Emission Data by Transpo	ortation Mode		_		_				_	_	X		_			_		_	_			_		_	_		x	_				<u>×</u>		$\vdash$		$\rightarrow$	_
	40. Vehicle Efficiency and Fu	el Type	X	_		_								X	ĸ		x		_				_		_	_	_					_	—	+/	$\vdash$		$\rightarrow$	_
	41. Delivery Routes and Opti	mization		_		_		++			x		X	_	_		_		_	_	+				_	_	_		_	++		_		+	$\vdash$	_		_
	42. Package Size and Weight			_		_		++			_			_	_				_	_	+				_	_	_		_	++		_		+	$\vdash$	_		_
	43.Last-wille Delivery Data		X	_						_	_						x		-	_		-				_			_	+		_		+	$\vdash$			-
	44.Alternative Transportation	n Adoption		_				++			_				_		_		_	_	+				_	_	_		_	++		_		+	$\vdash$	_		_
KPI_8: Carbon Footprint of Deliveries	45. Emission Factors by Regio			-		-					-										+			$\vdash$	_					+			+	+	$\vdash$	$\rightarrow$	$\rightarrow$	_
1	47. Green Delivory Initiation	e a ohvedh									-										+			$\vdash$		_				++				+/	$\vdash$	$\rightarrow$	+	_
	48. Delivery Company Carbo	n Policies									-			- *	<b>`</b>		X				+									++				+	<b>⊢</b> −+	$\rightarrow$	+	_
1	49 Consumer Rehavior and D	Preferences	+ +						-										-	-	+			$\vdash$						+ - +				+	$\vdash$	$\rightarrow$	+	_
1	50. Carbon Offsetting Practic	es																					-	$\vdash$					-	+ - +				+	$\vdash$	+	+	-
	51. Traffic Conditions and Co	ngestion	+ +						-	-	×						-	x	-		+									++				+	$ \rightarrow$	+	+	-
	52. Regulatory Compliance D	Jata							-		~	x									+-+							x		++		-	x	+	<u> </u>	+	+	-
KPL 9: Nitrogen Oxide (NO2)	53. Air Quality Dataset - Nitre	ogen Dioxide (NO2)									x	^	x								+ +									++			· —	+	<u> </u>	$\rightarrow$	+	-
			12	1	0 1	1	1 1 -	1	1	1	1 24	-	1.4	1	F 4	1	1 -	2	1	1 4	1	2	2 4	1	1	1	1 1	2	1 4		1	1	2 4			1	1	2
			12	T	9 1	T	1 1 4	2 1	1	T	1 31	1	14	1	2 I	1	1 5	2	1	1 1	1	2	z 1	1	T	T	1 1	3	1 1	. 1	T	T	5 1	. 1	4	1	1	2

Figure 2. Matrix relating KPIs and Sub-indicators in Enviroment and Soacial Impact with datasets (I).







# Unchain

																•	<pre></pre>	Carbon Footpr	int of Deliverie	es															KPI 8:	Nitrogen "JO2)
	DATASETS	Emiss ion Emi Type ion (CO2, Valu Nox)	iss Vehic ue <sup>le ID</sup>	73 74 CO2 Emiss ions (g/k Engin m) / e Siz Carb (liten on s) Emiss	Powe Ac r er Outp on ut 60 (hp) mj	Effici cel ency nti Ratin Lo (0-g / io fuel IC sh) effici	ncat Locat ion Roi Nam e II e	Origi De na ut n n D Locat Lo ion ior	isti E tio Dista a nce I cat (km) T n	stim ted rave Restri c c c c c im tim tim tim	affi Packa ge Dime nd sior s	Packa Deliv ge ery Weig Reco ht ds	90 9 Vehic De le ery Track Fre ing end Data Da	Vehic le y squ cy capa ta city, city	93 94 Traffi c and atial atial Cond itions Data	95 96 Deliv ery Custo Rout mer es Data and Addr	97 98 Deliv ery Time Logs	99 100 Custo mer/ Cons unme r Prefe rence tory and Grden Data and	Electr ic Bike Adop tion Data	Innov Ca ative on Trans En porta ion Solut cti ions c	arb n Energ on y Mix Con ition Data	ir Emiss Deliv ion ery Facto Locat rs Data Data	Vehic Vehi le le Main Perfo t tenan rmar ce ce Recor Metr	C Vehic le Mair Age tena and ce i Milea Cost	Envir n n onme Deli n ntal s ct tive Data	e Fu Subsi ar iv dies Er and y ia Incen Co s Data io	uel 117 Ind organ organo ogra port organo mpt Data a	118 119 Deliv ery Com pany es and Practi s	120 12 Regul atory Com plian ce Data / Per Local rma , ce Natio Met nal, cs or Dat	Third- rfo Party H icatio r icatio r and e and e ta Repo	123 124 Deliv Histo ery fical Com Deliv pany ery Initia Data tives	125 12 Rer wal e Plant Jing Data tm	5 127 128 Carb on J Progr estir est progr estir est progr estir est on progr estir est on progr estir	g Deliv (N ery ) ers areas Lf	30 131 itro 9 ioxi 402 102 102 102 102 102 102 102 102 102 1	132 133 Excee Percidanc ntag e of Statu Inhal s itant (Yes/ Expc
KPIs	Sub- indicators			ions Data		ency								etc.)		esses		Satisf actio n Surve ys		Data	ata		ds cs		Dat	a Di	ata I	Data Data	Inter natio nal Regul ation s	rts	Data	t Daf	on a Data	μg 3)	/m	No) sed:
	1. Subsidized Clean Vehicles																									+ +								+	++	_
	2. Sustainable Commercial Vehicles in Restricted Traffic Areas																																			
	3. Emissivity Class of Vehicles																																			
	4. Electric Vehicles																																			
	5. Percentage of Alternative Fuel Vehicles																																			
	6. Share of LEVs and ZEVs in Urban Freight Vehicle Fleet																																			
KPI_1: Number of sustainable commercial or freight vehicles (LEV.	7. Renewable Fuel Sources for Low and Zero-Emission Vehicles			$\square$							_																							+		
ZEV)	8. Type of Vehicle			$\vdash$		+																				+				$\rightarrow$			+	++	$\square$	
	9. Clean Delivery Vehicles					_					_																							+		
	10. Total Number of Vehicles										_																							+		
	11. Venicies per Business			$\square$		_					_																			_				+		
	12. Freet Composition			$\vdash$		_					_						_											_					+	+	$\rightarrow$	
	14. Shared Vehicles			$\vdash$							_									+ +														+-+-		
	15. Annual Fuel Consumption per Capita			$\vdash$																														++-		
	16. Average Fuel Consumption per 100 Vehicle-km			$\vdash$																+ +													+	+-+-		
KPI_2: Fuel consumption	17. Fuel Consumption for In-Boundary Transportation per Fuel Type			$\vdash$	+ +															+ +					+ +-	+ +							+	++-		_
	18. Type of fuel																																+	+-+-		
	19. Emissions from logistics buildings: Share of emissions from logistics																																+	+++		_
	20. GHG emissions from the freight sector (Road freight transport):																									+ +		_					+	+-+-		
	21. GHG emissions from the freight sector (Road freight transport):																									+ +							+	+-+		_
KPI_3: GHG emissions	22. GHG emissions according to the type of vehicle: Average GHG																									+ +		_					+	+-+-		
-	23. Exposure to vulnerable communities – air pollution: Percentage of																									+ +		_					+	+-+-		
	24. Greenhouse gas emissions (GHG): Well-to-wheels GHG emissions by	,																								+ +		_					+	+-+-		
	25. GHG emission from transport: greenhouse gas emissions from the																																+	+-+-		
	26. Particles (PM10 and PM2.5) Measurements																																			
KPI_4: Particles (PM2.5 and/or PM10)	27. Air Quality Index (AQI) - Particulate Matter (PM10 and PM2.5)																																			
	28. Air Pollutant Emissions from Passenger and Freight Transport																																			
	29. Noise Level: Data collected through sensors and surveys geared at																																			
KPL E: Noise lovel	30. Day noise exposure: Percentage of inhabitants exposed to Lden																																			
KFI_3. NOISE IEVEI	31. Night noise exposure: Percentage of inhabitants exposed to Lnight																																			
	32. Life years lost to noise																																			
	33. Gender Distribution in the Freight Industry																																			
KPI_6: Gender/ethnicity of workers in	34. Gender Pay Gap in the Freight Industry																																			
freight-related industries & occupation	35. Ethnic Diversity in Managerial Positions in the Freight Industry																																			
	36. Income Disparities Among Different Ethnic Groups in the Freight																																			
average income for freight employees	37. Employment Rate			$\square$							_	/																						+		
in city	38. Annual Average Income										-																								$\rightarrow$	
	39. Emission Data by Transportation Mode	X X		$\vdash$							-			_																				+		
	40. Venice Enciency and rule Type 41. Delivery Routes and Ontimization		x	X X	X	( X																					_							+		
	42. Backage Size and Weight			$\leftarrow$			x x )	x x x	x x	XX	x	~								+ +														+-+-		
	43.Last-Mile Delivery Data											× ×	× .	v v	v v	v v	× ×	<b>v v</b>		+ +						+								+		
	44.Alternative Transportation Adoption										-	^	^ /	<u> </u>	^ ^	^ ^	^ ^	^ ^	x x	x	x							_					+	+		
	45. Emission Factors by Region			$\vdash$																	л х х	x x				+ +							+	+		
KPI_8: Carbon Footprint of Deliveries	46. Vehicle Maintenance and Upkeep			$\vdash$							-												x x	x x	x								+	+-+	++	
	47. Green Delivery Initiatives																								x x	x	x						+	+-+		
	48. Delivery Company Carbon Policies														x						x						x	x x	x x	K X			+++-	++	+	
	49. Consumer Behavior and Preferences														x			x							x		x				x			+	$\rightarrow$	
	50. Carbon Offsetting Practices			x																											x	x x	1 <b>x</b>			
	51. Traffic Conditions and Congestion					x									x														x				x	x		
	52. Regulatory Compliance Data	x x													x														x							
KPI_9: Nitrogen Oxide (NO2)	53. Air Quality Dataset - Nitrogen Dioxide (NO2)																																		хх	x x
		2	2 1	2 1	. 1	1 2	1 1	1 1	1 1	1 1	1 1	. 1 1	. 1	1 1	4 2	1 1	1 1	. 21	1 1	l 1	2 1 3	1 1 1	. 1 1	. 1 1	L 3 :	1 1	1 2	1 1	3	1 1	1 1	. 1	1 1 1	1 1	1 1	1 1

Figure 3. Matrix relating KPIs and Sub-indicators in Enviroment and Soacial Impact with datasets (II).



These two screenshots (Error! Reference source not found. and Error! Reference source not found.) show the generated matrix that relates KPIs and Sub-indicators with the datasets needed to understand and calculate them. In the future, these matrices can be employed to implement a data-sharing platform that guides users on the specific data needed to calculate the KPIs (which consist of sub-indicators). In the context of the UNCHAIN project, these matrices will serve as the reference for calculating KPIs related to the environmental and social impacts generated by the implementation of KERs during the project's pilot tests.

### 4.2.2. Datasets of Enviroment and social impact

From the initial list of datasets were defined/proposed by the service developers of the consortium and refined by all the partners, a list of necessary datasets has been compiled that would provide information on each KPA. The previous matrix indicates which datasets are required for each KPA. Below, Table 18, is the list of datasets with a unique numerical code. Annex (8.1) contains the description of what each dataset entails.

Table 18.	Datasets in	Enviroment an	d social	impact
				•

1	Vehicle Type
2	Number of Subsidized Vehicles
3	Number of Vehicles / Total Number of Cars
4	Restricted Traffic Area (ZTL) Extension (km <sup>2</sup> )
5	Emissivity Class
6	Total Registered Cars
7	Number of Electric Vehicles
8	(%) Alternative Fuel Vehicles / Percentage of LEVs and ZEVs
9	Renewable Energy Share
10	Business Name
11	Fleet Type
12	Number of Shared Vehicles
13	Date / Time / Temporal Data / Timestamp (Date and Time)
14	Year
15	Location (Neighborhood, City, Region, Country etc.)
16	Population
17	Total Fuel Consumption (in liters or another unit)
18	Fuel Consumption per Capita (calculated as Total Fuel Consumption / Population)
19	Total Vehicle-km Traveled
20	Average Fuel Consumption per 100 Vehicle-km (calculated as Total Fuel Consumption / Total Vehicle-km * 100)
21	Fuel Type
22	Emissions (in units specified by the GHG Protocol for cities)
23	Source (GHG Protocol for cities)
24	Total logistics operations emissions (ton CO2e/year)
25	Emissions from logistics buildings (ton CO2e/year)
26	Share of emissions from logistics buildings to total logistics operations (%)







- 27 Annual GHG emissions from road freight (ton CO2e/year) / GHG emissions from road freight (ton CO2e/year)
- 28 Average GHG emissions per ton-km (gCO2/ton-km) / Average GHG emissions per km (gCO2 emissions/km)
- 29 Total transport-related GHG emissions (ton CO2e/year)
- 30 Percentage of emissions from freight amongst total transport-related GHG emissions (%)
- 31 Percentage of NOx emissions from urban freight in vulnerable communities (%)
- 32 Percentage of PM emissions from urban freight in vulnerable communities (%)
- 33 Well-to-wheels GHG emissions from passenger transport (t CO2 equivalent)
- 34 Well-to-wheels GHG emissions from freight transport (t CO2 equivalent)
- **35** Source (SUMI or other)
- 36 GHG emissions from the operations of vehicles (t CO2 equivalent)
- 37 PM10 (μg/m<sup>3</sup>)
- 38 PM2.5 (μg/m<sup>3</sup>)
- **39** Percentage of Inhabitants Exposed to PM10 Exceedances (%)
- 40 Percentage of Inhabitants Exposed to PM2.5 Exceedances (%)
- 41 Transport Mode (Passenger Car, truck, ...)
- 42 Exhaust Emissions (g/km)
- 43 Non-Exhaust Emissions for PM2.5 (g/km)
- 44 Location (Latitude and Longitude)
- 45 Noise Level (dB)
- 46 Data Source (Sensor or Survey)
- 47 Percentage of Inhabitants
- 48 Threshold (Day 55dB and Night 50 dB)
- 49 Life Years Lost
- 50 Occupation
- 51 Gender (Male/Female)
- 52 Percentage of Male Workers
- 53 Percentage of Female Workers
- 54 Average Income for Males
- 55 Average Income for Females
- 56 Pay Gap Percentage (Difference between male and female incomes)
- 57 Occupation Level (Managerial Positions)
- 58 Ethnicity/Race
- 59 Percentage Representation in Managerial Positions
- 60 Comparison with Overall Workforce Representation
- 61 Average Income for Each Ethnic Group
- 62 Comparative Analysis with Similar Sectors
- 63 Total Workforce (Total number of workers in the city)
- 64 Freight Employment (Number of workers employed in the freight sector)
- 65 Employment Rate (%) (Percentage of workers employed in the freight sector)
- 66 Market Sector (Retail, Express, Hotel, Construction, Waste)
- 67 Source (Source of the data)

- 68 Average Annual Income (Average annual income of workers in the specified market sector)
- 69 Comparable Role (Similar roles for income comparison)
- 70 Emission Type (CO2, Nox)
- 71 Emission Value
- 72 Vehicle ID
- 73 CO2 Emissions (g/km) / Carbon Emissions Data
- 74 Engine Size (liters)
- 75 Power Output (hp)
- 76 Acceleration (0-60 mph)
- 77 Efficiency Rating / fuel efficiency
- 78 Location ID
- 79 Location Name
- 80 Route ID
- 81 Origin Location
- 82 Destination Location
- 83 Distance (km)
- 84 Estimated Travel Time (hrs)
- 85 Traffic Restrictions
- 86 Traffic Condition
- 87 Package Dimensions
- 88 Package Weight
- 89 Delivery Records
- 90 Vehicle Tracking Data
- 91 Delivery Frequency Data
- 92 Vehicle Specifications (capacity, etc.)
- 93 Geospatial Data
- 94 Traffic and Road Conditions Data
- 95 Customer Data
- 96 Delivery Routes and Addresses
- 97 Delivery Time Logs
- 98 Weather Data
- 99 Customer/Consummer Preferences, Feedback and Satisfaction Surveys
- 100 Inventory and Order Data
- 101 Electric Bike Adoption Data
- 102 Drone Adoption Data
- **103** Innovative Transportation Solutions Data
- 104 Carbon Emission Reduction Data
- 105 Energy Mix Data
- 106 Environmental Conditions Data
- **107** Emission Factors Data
- **108** Delivery Location Data
- 109 Vehicle Maintenance Records
- **110** Vehicle Performance Metrics
- 111 Vehicle Age and Mileage
- **112** Maintenance Costs



- **113** Environmental Impact Data
- 114 Green Delivery Initiatives Data
- 115 Subsidies and Incentives Data
- 116 Fuel and Energy Consumption Data
- 117 Demographic Data
- 118 Delivery Company Operations Data
- 119 Environmental Policies and Practices Data
- 120 Regulatory Compliance Data / Local, National, or International Regulations
- 121 Performance Metrics Data
- 122 Third-Party Certifications and Reports
- **123** Historical Delivery Data
- 124 Delivery Company Initiatives Data
- 125 Tree Planting Data
- 126 Renewable Energy Investment Data
- 127 Carbon Offset Program Participation Data
- **128** Congestion levels
- 129 Delivery areas
- 130 Nitrogen Dioxide (NO2) Levels (in μg/m<sup>3</sup>)
- 131 Air Quality Index (AQI)
- 132 Exceedance Status (Yes/No)
- 133 Percentage of Inhabitants Exposed:

#### 4.2.3. Datasets most used to calculate KPIs / Sub-indicators in Environment and

#### Social Impact

The characterization of the most used data depends on the type of monitoring and impact assessment decisions that one would like to make, e.g strategic, tactical, operational decisions, use data sets with different spatial, temporal granularity and at different level of aggregation. In this section we are providing a general characterization, which might be modified according to the itended purpose of the KPIs and sub-indicators that the data sets will estimate. This might imply that depending on the nature and the objectives of the different UNCHAIN KERs different types of data sets might be considered as the most used.

As seen in the previous section, there are many datasets needed to understand and calculate the Sub-indicators, specifically 133, but there are 13 that are most frequently repeated and therefore important to know, as shown in the following figure (Figure 4):



Figure 4. Datasets most used for calculated KPIs and Sub-indicators of Enviroment and Social Impact

The datasets most used are, in descending order of usage:

- Date / Time / Temporal Data / Timestamp (Date and Time)
- Location (Neighborhood, City, Region, Country etc.)
- Vehicle Type
- Number of Vehicles / Total Number of Cars
- Year
- Total Fuel Consumption (in liters or another unit)
- Fuel Type
- Location (Latitude and Longitude)
- Geospatial Data
- Transport Mode (Passenger Car, truck...)
- Environmental Impact Data



- Regulatory Compliance Data / Local, National, or International Regulations
- Source (SUMI or other)

### 4.2.1. Level of access, level of aggregation and anonymization and ownership of

### the datasets

Below, the access level, aggregation level, anonymization level, and data holders are shown. This information is derived from a review of the literature and workshops.

### 4.2.1.1. Level of access

In the following table, an example of classification of the access level of the most necessary data to calculate the KPIs and Sub-indicators for the category Environment and Social Impact is shown.

- 1 (Public): Generally accessible to the public without restrictions.
- **2 (Varies)**: Access level can vary; it might be public in some cases (with limitations) or restricted (requiring authorization or special conditions).

Data Type	Access Level	Example Access
Date / Time / Temporal Data / Timestamp	1 (Public)	Publicly available
Location (Neighborhood, City, Region, Country etc.)	2 (Varies)	Public (general locations) / Restricted (specific addresses)
Vehicle Type	1 (Public)	Publicly available
Number of Vehicles / Total Number of Cars	2 (Varies)	Public (aggregate statistics) / Restricted (specific entity data)
Year	1 (Public)	Publicly available
Total Fuel Consumption (in liters or another unit)	2 (Varies)	Public (aggregate data) / Restricted (specific or detailed data)
Fuel Type	1 (Public)	Publicly available
Location (Latitude and Longitude)	2 (Varies)	Public (general coordinates) / Restricted (precise or sensitive locations)
Geospatial Data	2 (Varies)	Public (general maps) / Restricted (detailed or sensitive data)
Transport Mode (Passenger Car, truck, etc.)	1 (Public)	Publicly available
Environmental Impact Data	2 (Varies)	Public (general data) / Restricted (specific or sensitive data)

Table 19. Level of acces for each dataset (Enviroment and Social Impact).



Regulatory Compliance Data /	2 (Varies)	Public (general regulations) / Restricted
Local, National, or		(specific compliance details)
International Regulations		
Source (SUMI or other)	2 (Varies)	Public (general sources) / Restricted (specific
		or proprietary sources)

This table provides a structured overview of access levels based on typical classifications for each type of dataset.

We can observe that 50% of the data would be public, and the other 50% could vary between public, with limitations, or restricted. There is no case of restricted data.

### 4.2.1.2. Level of aggregation

In the following table, the level of aggregation of the most necessary data to calculate the KPIs and Sub-indicators for the category Environment and Social Impact is shown:

Aggregation levels:

- Detailed: Data is aggregated at a fine granularity (e.g., by seconds, specific locations).
- Generally Detailed: Aggregation covers various levels of detail depending on context.
- General: Data is aggregated broadly without detailed breakdowns.
- Aggregated: Data is summarized into totals, averages, or similar metrics.
- Discrete Temporal Unit: Aggregated based on discrete time periods (e.g., years).
- Varies: Aggregation level can vary depending on specific data characteristics or needs.

Data Type	Aggregation Level	Example Aggregation
Date / Time / Temporal Data / Timestamp	Detailed	Aggregated by seconds, minutes, hours, etc.
Location (Neighborhood, City, Region, Country etc.)	Generally Detailed	Aggregated by different levels of granularity
Vehicle Type	General	Aggregated by standard vehicle types (e.g., cars, trucks)
Number of Vehicles / Total Number of Cars	Aggregated	Totals or averages
Year	Discrete Temporal Unit	Aggregated by year
Total Fuel Consumption (in liters or another unit)	Aggregated	Totals or averages
Fuel Type	General	Aggregated by standard fuel types (e.g., gasoline, diesel)
Location (Latitude and Longitude)	Detailed	Aggregated by specific geographic coordinates

Table 20. Level of aggregation for each dataset (Enviroment and Social Impact).



Geospatial Data	Varies	Aggregated based on geographic regions or specific points
Transport Mode (Passenger Car, truck, etc.)	General	Aggregated by common transport modes
Environmental Impact Data	Varies	Aggregated by measurement units or specific metrics
Regulatory Compliance Data / Local, National, or International Regulations	Varies	Aggregated by specific regulations or compliance requirements
Source (SUMI or other)	Varies	Aggregated from individual sources or multiple sources

This table provides a structured overview of aggregation levels for each dataset type, reflecting common practices and potential variations based on data specifics.

### 4.2.1.3. Anonymization level

In the following table, the level of anonymization of the data is shown; only in 2 out of 13 cases (15.4%) the level is high.

Anonymization levels:

- 1 (Low): Little to no anonymization needed; data is generally non-sensitive.
- 2 (Moderate): Some anonymization required to protect privacy or sensitive details.
- **3 (High)**: Significant anonymization needed due to high sensitivity or potential for identification.

Data Type	Anonymization	Notes
	Level	
Date / Time / Temporal Data /	3 (High)	Specific timestamps can identify
Timestamp (Date and Time)		individual events
Location (Neighborhood, City,	2 (Moderate)	General locations less sensitive, but
Region, Country etc.)		specific addresses need more anonymity
Vehicle Type	1 (Low)	Basic vehicle types usually non- sensitive
Number of Vehicles / Total Number of Cars	2 (Moderate)	Aggregated data is less sensitive
Year	1 (Low)	Year alone is generally non-sensitive
Total Fuel Consumption (in	2 (Moderate)	Can be sensitive if linked to specific
liters or another unit)		entities
Fuel Type	1 (Low)	General information usually non- sensitive

Table 21. Anonymization level for each dataset (Enviroment and Social Impact).



Location (Latitude and Longitude)	3 (High)	Precise coordinates can identify specific locations
Geospatial Data	2 (Moderate)	General maps are less sensitive, detailed data needs more anonymity
Transport Mode (Passenger Car, truck, etc.)	1 (Low)	General transport mode information usually non-sensitive
Environmental Impact Data	2 (Moderate)	Can be sensitive depending on the level of detail
Regulatory Compliance Data / Local, National, or International Regulations	2 (Moderate)	General regulations are less sensitive, specific compliance data needs more anonymity
Source (SUMI or other)	2 (Moderate)	General source information less sensitive, specific sources might need anonymity

### 4.2.1.4. Who has access

Table 22. Entities that have access to the data (Enviroment and Social Impact).

Data Type	Who Has Access
Date / Time / Temporal Data / Timestamp (Date and Time)	Public entities, transport agencies, researchers
Location (Neighborhood, City, Region, Country etc.)	Public entities, government agencies, mapping services
Vehicle Type	Vehicle manufacturers, transport agencies, researchers
Number of Vehicles / Total Number of Cars	Government agencies, transport authorities, researchers
Year	Public entities, transport agencies, researchers
Total Fuel Consumption (in liters or another unit)	Fuel companies, transport agencies, government agencies
Fuel Type	Fuel companies, transport agencies, vehicle manufacturers
Location (Latitude and Longitude)	Public entities, mapping services, transport agencies
Geospatial Data	Public entities, government agencies, mapping services
Transport Mode (Passenger Car, truck, etc.)	Transport agencies, researchers, vehicle manufacturers
Environmental Impact Data	Environmental agencies, researchers, government agencies
Regulatory Compliance Data / Local, National, or International Regulations	Government agencies, regulatory bodies, researchers



Source (SUMI or other)	Data providers (e.g., SUMI),
	researchers, transport agencies

Description of Entities:

- **Public entities**: Organizations or institutions that provide services to the public and hold open data, such as city councils or public transportation systems.
- **Government agencies**: National, regional, or local government bodies responsible for various sectors, including transportation, environment, and regulatory compliance.
- **Transport agencies**: Organizations that manage and operate transportation systems, including public transport and infrastructure planning. Also includes the ULOs.
- **Researchers**: Academic or private sector researchers who analyze data for studies or innovation.
- Vehicle manufacturers: Companies that produce vehicles and often collect data on vehicle types, fuel consumption, and compliance.
- Fuel companies: Companies involved in the production, distribution, and sale of fuel.
- **Mapping services**: Companies and organizations that create and manage geospatial data and mapping services (e.g., Google Maps, national mapping agencies).
- **Environmental agencies**: Organizations dedicated to monitoring and protecting the environment, often holding data on environmental impacts and regulations.
- **Regulatory bodies**: Organizations responsible for ensuring compliance with local, national, or international regulations in various sectors.
- **Data providers (e.g., SUMI)**: Organizations that collect, process, and distribute data, which might be specific to transportation or environmental metrics.

The profiles most likely to have the most needed data are:

- Transport agencies and researchers (61.5%)
- Governament agencies (46.1%)
- Public entities (38.46%)

### 4.2.2. How Sub-indicators are calculated- Environmental and social impact

In the following table, a preliminary approach is shown on how Sub-indicators related to the category Environment and Social Impact can be calculated:

Sub-indicators	Formula
1. Subsidized Clean Vehicles	Number of subsidized clean vehicles / Total vehicles x 100
2. Sustainable Commercial Vehicles in Restricted Traffic Areas	Number of sustainable commercial vehicles in restricted traffic areas / Total commercial vehicles x 100

Table 23. Sub-indicators and formulas



3. Emissivity Class of Vehicles	Classification of vehicles according to their emission levels (e.g., Euro 1-6)
4. Electric Vehicles	Number of electric vehicles / Total vehicles x 100
5. Percentage of Alternative Fuel Vehicles	Number of vehicles using alternative fuels / Total vehicles x 100
6. Share of LEVs and ZEVs in	Number of LEVs and ZEVs / Total urban freight
Urban Freight Vehicle Fleet	venicles x 100
7. Renewable Fuel Sources for	Number of vehicles using renewable fuel sources /
Low and Zero-Emission Vehicles	Iotal low and zero-emission vehicles x 100
8. Type of Vehicle	bicycles)
9. Clean Delivery Vehicles	Number of clean delivery vehicles / Total delivery vehicles x 100
10. Total Number of Vehicles	Total count of registered vehicles
11. Vehicles per Business	Number of vehicles operated per business / Total businesses
12. Fleet Composition	Distribution of fleet by vehicle type, size, and capacity
13. Micromobility Vehicles	Number of micromobility vehicles (e.g., bicycles,
	scooters) / Total vehicles x 100
14. Shared Vehicles	Number of shared vehicles / Total vehicles x 100
15. Annual Fuel Consumption per Capita	Total annual fuel consumption / Total population
16. Average Fuel Consumption	Total fuel consumption / (Total kilometers traveled /
per 100 Vehicle-km	100)
per 100 Vehicle-km 17. Fuel Consumption for In- Boundary Transportation per Fuel Type	100) Fuel consumption by fuel type within city limits
per 100 Vehicle-km 17. Fuel Consumption for In- Boundary Transportation per Fuel Type 18. Type of Fuel	100) Fuel consumption by fuel type within city limits Classification of fuels used (e.g., gasoline, diesel, electric)
per 100 Vehicle-km 17. Fuel Consumption for In- Boundary Transportation per Fuel Type 18. Type of Fuel 19. Emissions from logistics buildings	100) Fuel consumption by fuel type within city limits Classification of fuels used (e.g., gasoline, diesel, electric) (Emissions from logistics buildings / Total logistics operations emissions) x 100
per 100 Vehicle-km 17. Fuel Consumption for In- Boundary Transportation per Fuel Type 18. Type of Fuel 19. Emissions from logistics buildings 20. GHG emissions from the	<ul> <li>100)</li> <li>Fuel consumption by fuel type within city limits</li> <li>Classification of fuels used (e.g., gasoline, diesel, electric)</li> <li>(Emissions from logistics buildings / Total logistics operations emissions) x 100</li> <li>Annual GHG emissions from freight transport sector</li> </ul>
per 100 Vehicle-km 17. Fuel Consumption for In- Boundary Transportation per Fuel Type 18. Type of Fuel 19. Emissions from logistics buildings 20. GHG emissions from the freight sector	100) Fuel consumption by fuel type within city limits Classification of fuels used (e.g., gasoline, diesel, electric) (Emissions from logistics buildings / Total logistics operations emissions) x 100 Annual GHG emissions from freight transport sector (ton CO2e/year)
per 100 Vehicle-km 17. Fuel Consumption for In- Boundary Transportation per Fuel Type 18. Type of Fuel 19. Emissions from logistics buildings 20. GHG emissions from the freight sector 21. GHG emissions from the	<ul> <li>100)</li> <li>Fuel consumption by fuel type within city limits</li> <li>Classification of fuels used (e.g., gasoline, diesel, electric)</li> <li>(Emissions from logistics buildings / Total logistics operations emissions) x 100</li> <li>Annual GHG emissions from freight transport sector (ton CO2e/year)</li> <li>(Freight transport emissions / Total transport-related</li> </ul>
per 100 Vehicle-km 17. Fuel Consumption for In- Boundary Transportation per Fuel Type 18. Type of Fuel 19. Emissions from logistics buildings 20. GHG emissions from the freight sector 21. GHG emissions from the freight sector	<ul> <li>100)</li> <li>Fuel consumption by fuel type within city limits</li> <li>Classification of fuels used (e.g., gasoline, diesel, electric)</li> <li>(Emissions from logistics buildings / Total logistics operations emissions) x 100</li> <li>Annual GHG emissions from freight transport sector (ton CO2e/year)</li> <li>(Freight transport emissions / Total transport-related emissions) x 100</li> </ul>
per 100 Vehicle-km 17. Fuel Consumption for In- Boundary Transportation per Fuel Type 18. Type of Fuel 19. Emissions from logistics buildings 20. GHG emissions from the freight sector 21. GHG emissions from the freight sector 22. GHG emissions according to	<ul> <li>100)</li> <li>Fuel consumption by fuel type within city limits</li> <li>Classification of fuels used (e.g., gasoline, diesel, electric)</li> <li>(Emissions from logistics buildings / Total logistics operations emissions) x 100</li> <li>Annual GHG emissions from freight transport sector (ton CO2e/year)</li> <li>(Freight transport emissions / Total transport-related emissions) x 100</li> <li>Average GHG emissions per vehicle type per km</li> </ul>
per 100 Vehicle-km 17. Fuel Consumption for In- Boundary Transportation per Fuel Type 18. Type of Fuel 19. Emissions from logistics buildings 20. GHG emissions from the freight sector 21. GHG emissions from the freight sector 22. GHG emissions according to the type of vehicle	<ul> <li>100)</li> <li>Fuel consumption by fuel type within city limits</li> <li>Classification of fuels used (e.g., gasoline, diesel, electric)</li> <li>(Emissions from logistics buildings / Total logistics operations emissions) x 100</li> <li>Annual GHG emissions from freight transport sector (ton CO2e/year)</li> <li>(Freight transport emissions / Total transport-related emissions) x 100</li> <li>Average GHG emissions per vehicle type per km (gCO2/km)</li> </ul>
per 100 Vehicle-km 17. Fuel Consumption for In- Boundary Transportation per Fuel Type 18. Type of Fuel 19. Emissions from logistics buildings 20. GHG emissions from the freight sector 21. GHG emissions from the freight sector 22. GHG emissions according to the type of vehicle 23. Exposure to vulnerable	<ul> <li>100)</li> <li>Fuel consumption by fuel type within city limits</li> <li>Classification of fuels used (e.g., gasoline, diesel, electric)</li> <li>(Emissions from logistics buildings / Total logistics operations emissions) x 100</li> <li>Annual GHG emissions from freight transport sector (ton CO2e/year)</li> <li>(Freight transport emissions / Total transport-related emissions) x 100</li> <li>Average GHG emissions per vehicle type per km (gCO2/km)</li> <li>(Pollutant emissions from transport in vulnerable</li> </ul>
per 100 Vehicle-km 17. Fuel Consumption for In- Boundary Transportation per Fuel Type 18. Type of Fuel 19. Emissions from logistics buildings 20. GHG emissions from the freight sector 21. GHG emissions from the freight sector 22. GHG emissions according to the type of vehicle 23. Exposure to vulnerable communities – air pollution	<ul> <li>100)</li> <li>Fuel consumption by fuel type within city limits</li> <li>Classification of fuels used (e.g., gasoline, diesel, electric)</li> <li>(Emissions from logistics buildings / Total logistics operations emissions) x 100</li> <li>Annual GHG emissions from freight transport sector (ton CO2e/year)</li> <li>(Freight transport emissions / Total transport-related emissions) x 100</li> <li>Average GHG emissions per vehicle type per km (gCO2/km)</li> <li>(Pollutant emissions from transport in vulnerable communities / Total transport-related emissions) x 100</li> </ul>
per 100 Vehicle-km 17. Fuel Consumption for In- Boundary Transportation per Fuel Type 18. Type of Fuel 19. Emissions from logistics buildings 20. GHG emissions from the freight sector 21. GHG emissions from the freight sector 22. GHG emissions according to the type of vehicle 23. Exposure to vulnerable communities – air pollution 24. Greenhouse gas emissions	<ul> <li>100)</li> <li>Fuel consumption by fuel type within city limits</li> <li>Classification of fuels used (e.g., gasoline, diesel, electric)</li> <li>(Emissions from logistics buildings / Total logistics operations emissions) x 100</li> <li>Annual GHG emissions from freight transport sector (ton CO2e/year)</li> <li>(Freight transport emissions / Total transport-related emissions) x 100</li> <li>Average GHG emissions per vehicle type per km (gCO2/km)</li> <li>(Pollutant emissions from transport in vulnerable communities / Total transport-related emissions) x 100</li> <li>Well-to-wheels GHG emissions for all urban passenger</li> </ul>
per 100 Vehicle-km 17. Fuel Consumption for In- Boundary Transportation per Fuel Type 18. Type of Fuel 19. Emissions from logistics buildings 20. GHG emissions from the freight sector 21. GHG emissions from the freight sector 22. GHG emissions according to the type of vehicle 23. Exposure to vulnerable communities – air pollution 24. Greenhouse gas emissions (GHG)	<ul> <li>100)</li> <li>Fuel consumption by fuel type within city limits</li> <li>Classification of fuels used (e.g., gasoline, diesel, electric)</li> <li>(Emissions from logistics buildings / Total logistics operations emissions) x 100</li> <li>Annual GHG emissions from freight transport sector (ton CO2e/year)</li> <li>(Freight transport emissions / Total transport-related emissions) x 100</li> <li>Average GHG emissions per vehicle type per km (gCO2/km)</li> <li>(Pollutant emissions from transport in vulnerable communities / Total transport-related emissions) x 100</li> <li>Well-to-wheels GHG emissions for all urban passenger and freight transport modes (t CO2 equivalent)</li> </ul>
per 100 Vehicle-km 17. Fuel Consumption for In- Boundary Transportation per Fuel Type 18. Type of Fuel 19. Emissions from logistics buildings 20. GHG emissions from the freight sector 21. GHG emissions from the freight sector 22. GHG emissions according to the type of vehicle 23. Exposure to vulnerable communities – air pollution 24. Greenhouse gas emissions (GHG) 25. GHG emission from transport	<ul> <li>100)</li> <li>Fuel consumption by fuel type within city limits</li> <li>Classification of fuels used (e.g., gasoline, diesel, electric)</li> <li>(Emissions from logistics buildings / Total logistics operations emissions) x 100</li> <li>Annual GHG emissions from freight transport sector (ton CO2e/year)</li> <li>(Freight transport emissions / Total transport-related emissions) x 100</li> <li>Average GHG emissions per vehicle type per km (gCO2/km)</li> <li>(Pollutant emissions from transport in vulnerable communities / Total transport-related emissions) x 100</li> <li>Well-to-wheels GHG emissions for all urban passenger and freight transport modes (t CO2 equivalent)</li> <li>GHG emissions from vehicle operations (t CO2 equivalent)</li> </ul>



26. Particles (PM10 and PM2.5)	Measurement of PM10 and PM2.5 particle
Measurements	concentrations (μg/m <sup>3</sup> )
27. Air Quality Index (AQI) -	Calculation of AQI based on PM10 and PM2.5
Particulate Matter (PM10 and	exposures
PM2.5) Exposures	
28. Air Pollutant Emissions from	Air pollutant emissions from passenger and freight
Passenger and Freight Transport	transport (NOx, PM)
29. Noise Level	Noise level data collected by sensors and surveys of local merchants
30. Day noise exposure	Percentage of population exposed to daytime noise levels >55 dB (ISO 1996-1:2016)
31. Night noise exposure	Percentage of population exposed to nighttime noise levels >50 dB (ISO 1996-1:2016)
32. Life years lost to noise	Years of life lost due to noise exposure
33. Gender Distribution in the	Gender distribution in the freight industry
Freight Industry	(percentage of men and women)
34. Gender Pay Gap in the	Income difference between men and women in the
Freight Industry	freight industry
35. Ethnic Diversity in	Ethnic diversity in managerial positions in the freight
Managerial Positions in the	industry
Freight Industry	
36. Income Disparities Among	Income disparities among different ethnic groups in
Different Ethnic Groups in the	the freight industry
27 Employment Pate	Employment rate in the freight industry
38 Annual Average Income	Annual average income of workers in the freight
36. Alinual Average income	industry
39. Emission Data by Transportation Mode	Emission data by transportation mode
40. Vehicle Efficiency and Fuel Type	Vehicle efficiency and fuel type used
41. Delivery Routes and Optimization	Data on delivery routes and optimization
42. Package Size and Weight	Size and weight of packages
43. Last-Mile Delivery Data	Data on last-mile deliveries
44. Alternative Transportation Adoption	Adoption of alternative transportation means
45. Emission Factors by Region	Emission factors by region
46. Vehicle Maintenance and Upkeep	Data on vehicle maintenance and upkeep
47. Green Delivery Initiatives	Green delivery initiatives
48. Delivery Company Carbon Policies	Carbon policies of delivery companies



49. Consumer Behavior and Preferences	Consumer behavior and preferences						
50. Carbon Offsetting Practices	Carbon offsetting practices						
51. Traffic Conditions and	Traffic conditions and congestion						
Congestion							
52. Regulatory Compliance Data	Regulatory compliance data						
53. Air Quality Dataset -	Air quality dataset - Nitrogen Dioxide (NO2)						
Nitrogen Dioxide (NO2)							

In Annex (8.8), the origin of the formulas and the list of bibliographic references are described.

### 4.3. Urban Planning (land use, infrastructure, public

### transport)

The following presents the KPIs, Sub-indicators, and datasets associated with topic "Urban planning". Additionally, it analyzes how they are calculated, the datasets most commonly used, and finally, aspects related to who can access the information, level of aggregation, anonymization, etc.

This KPA (category) consists of: 8 KPIs, 44 sub-indicators, and 170 datasets.

### 4.3.1. KPIs and Sub-indicators in Urban Planning

In this section, we will define the datasets needed for each sub-indicator related to "Urban planning" The Sub-indicators are:

Table 24. KPIs and Sub-indicators in Urban Planning									
KPI_10: Number of logistic centres, platforms, hubs, lockers									
54. Types and characteristics of logistics centers									
55. Number of logistic centres									
56. Number of microplatforms									
57. Number of lockers									
58. Sustainability of the urban distribution of goods (last mile): Number of centers in the city / Urban area (km2)) x 100									
59. Multi modal hubs									
60. Number of pickup micro hubs									
61. Interoperability									
KPI_11: Number of loading/unloading areas - public space dedicated to urban logistics									
62. Number of monitored loading & unloading areas									
63. Number of loading & unloading areas									
64. Number of public parking places for freight vehicles									
65. More efficient use of existing public space: Public space used for UFT activities (hrs per m2)									

- 66. Density of loading zones
- 67. Charging points freight
- 68. Count of delivery spaces
- 69. Zoning data
- 70. Availability
- 71. Availability of parking spaces on streets
- 72. Available municipal space
- 73. Delivery parking places
- 74. Parking data and information
- 75. Land authorization for use
- 76. Areas designated as Urban Logistics (UL) areas
- KPI\_12: Policy related

77. Overall and integrated regulatory system (goods and passengers) to be implemented through tariff policies for vehicle access (ZTL paid access) rewarding an eco-sustainable last mile 78. Policy existence: The level of political and managerial vision and support for public participation related to Sustainable Urban Freight/ EcoLogistics strategy and how far the senior staff and politicians lead the policy both strategically and at an implementation level.

79. Existence of a politically endorsed policy on safety: Addresses road safety at the Sustainable Urban Mobility Plan/EcoLogistics strategy that is politically endorsed and implemented 80. Speed regime

KPI\_13: Stakeholder engagement

81. Set up of a permanent FQP (stakeholder collaboration)

82. Contact persons for each municipality adhering to the permanent FQP, or annual meetings with the FQP

83. Participation rate of freight agents in discussion forum for freight logistics: Number of registrations

84. Existence of Stakeholder working group and extent of participation: Percentage of actual participants in ecologistics-related stakeholder meetings and working groups.

85. Existence of Stakeholder working group and extent of participation: Percentage of participation representing marginal or underrepresented community groups, e.g., people of color, poor income group, impacted communities

86. Existence of Stakeholder working group and extent of participation: The degree to which the city investigates the current and future needs of all supply chain users and collects relevant baseline data on the ecologistics status (freight- related data, livability, safety) of the city and the public participation process to understand their views.

87. Trust

88. Involvement degree

89. Level of duty

KPI\_14: Energy use and infrastructure available at warehouses, microplatforms, etc

90. Number of EV charging points in microplatforms

91. Energy consumption at warehouses: Energy use for each floor space (m2)

92. Energy consumption at warehouses: Energy use for a cubic capacity of shelf space (m3)

93. Electricity consumption

### KPI\_15: Time window in city for urban logistics

- 94. Delivery hours
- 95. Time city authoristation
- KPI\_16: Revenue from LEZ access fee (EUR)
- 96. Revenue from LEZ access fee (EUR)
- KPI\_17: N. of commercial outlets having a cargo area within a 75 m radius.
- 97. N. of commercial outlets having a cargo area within a 75 m radius.



4.3.1. Matrix relating KPIs and Sub-indicators with datasets (Urban Planning)

																																		·	
		KPI	: Number of lo	ogistic cent	res, platforms,	s, hubs, lockers	s												KPI	: Number of load	ding/unloa	ding areas - public sp	ace dedicated to	urban logisti	cs										
		134 135	136 137 138	139 14	40 141 143	42 143 144	4 145 44	13 146 1	147 1 14	48 149 150	151 152	153 154	155 156	5 157 15	8 159 16	0 161 162	163 164 16	5 166 167	168 16	9 170 171 1	72 173	174 175 176 177	7 178 179 180	0 181 182	183 184	185 186 1	87 188 189	190 191	192 193 194	4 195 196	197 198 199 20	0 201 202	203 204	205 200	j 207 208 20
	DATASET	TS Logist Owne	Near L	Logist Micro	o Locke Num	n picku	Asses Locat	Date		Com	Type Capa	Statu Num	Type Hour		Num	Char	Туре	Othe		Zoni Land Bui	ild Lot Pa	arki Spec Addi		Time						Par I	Но	Type	٤	Spati Geo	Class Attri Met
		ic rship/ of	Stora by id	ic platf	fors bero	of moda p	smen ion /	/ Ve	hi	plian Note	of city	s ber	of s per	Geo	ber Usag	Acce ging	of Char	r Num	Type	ng use ing	; cove na	g ial tion Stre	Total Occu Avai	I base Parki	Acce Area	Pa	rk Park Park	Park Park	Park Park	king u	urs Acc	of Issui	_ Lega	al grap	ificat bute ada
		Cente Oper Ha	andl ge Trans o	cente rms	availa cente	e I hubs	t of Latit	, Durat cle	es Vehi Activ	v ce s/Co	area of	(activ of	Publi Squa	Data gra	of e	ssibi Poin	Char ging Avai	I Rele ber	of Rest	tr distri regul reg	gul rage re	egul zoni al et	Parki pied able	d ng	ssibi (squ	sa Add in	g ing ing	ing ing	ing ing ing	Enf	of Fee essi Sec	u Auth ng <sup>6</sup>		data hic	ion/z s a
	Sub-	rs ator ed	I Capac	rs with	i ble rs ii	withi withi	the ude, /	/ ion Pre	es Tuno ity	Rogu	(load the	e or publi	c re Spac Mot	Sour hic	Load Patt	Lity t ID /	Capa abili	t vant of	Spac nc	ct ation atio	on and at	tion ng zoni Nam	ng Spac Spac	: Avail	Lity are	e ress	ca Cap Avai	Prici Rest	Typ Am Util	orc g	Op s bilit rity	oriz Auth	Statu	outli coor	onin desc prov
KPIs	indicators	cteris matio	ood ity Infras n	n the sneci	if logist city	/ n the n the	e e of	noral	t <sup>rype</sup>	latio	unio /	inacti narki	e er	Are	a Zone erns	ures Char	city y	hute es	es <sup>IIS</sup>	data data dat	ta area da	ata ation regu	es es	abili Type	ures ers)		v itv	ng ons	es ies on	em ID e	era y	atio ority	s s		g ribin iain f codo a III a
14115	Indicators	tics n s	tructu s	specif ied	ics Urba	area area	inter tude)	Data		ns	ading Size/	ve) ng	(stre (UFT		s	ging	ture	s		set set set	ratio se	et s latio		ty '''	unes choy	5	,,	0.1.5	105 011	ent t	tion	n	Ľ	area III	s for area dat
	Types and characteristics of logistics	X X	ххх				x				0.1	Ű				00		-																	s lor area data
	Number of logistic centres			x																															
	Number of microplatforms			X																															
KPI : Number of logistic	Number of lockers				x																														
centres, platforms, hubs, lockers	Sustainability of the urban distribution	n			x																														
	Multi modal hubs					x	+																									+			
	Number of pickup micro hubs					X												+ $+$ $+$ $+$														++			
	Interoperability						X											+ + +												+ $+$ $+$		++			
	Number of monitored loading &					+	X	xxx	x x x	XX	v v	v						+ + + +		+										+ $+$ $+$		++			
	Number of public parking places for					+					× ×	× ×																				+			
	More efficient use of existing public					+	×					^	x x	x				+ + +														+-+++			
	Density of loading zones					+					x x		~ ~	X	x x	X																+-++			
	Charging points freight					+	x									X X	x x x	x														+-+-+			
KPI : Number of	Count of delivery spaces						X									X		X	хх																
loading/unloading areas - public space	Zoning data																			x x x	ίх	ххх													
dedicated to urban logistics	Availability																x																		
	Availability of parking spaces on street	ts																				x x	x x x	x x	x										
	Available municipal space						x																		x	x									
	Delivery parking places						x			X							X	X			_					X						+	$\rightarrow$		
	Parking data and information					4																				,		X X	x x x	XX	x x x x		<b>x x</b>		+
	Areas designated as Urban Logistics (U	u)					-	×										+ + + +		+										+ $+$ $+$			× ×	× ×	<b>x x x</b>
	Areas designated as orban togistics (o	,,,				+												+ + +		+ + + + -												++		<u> </u>	<b>^ ^ ^</b>
	Delievevistences The level of political																	+ + + +														++			
KPI : Policy related	Functional and a politically and aread political	Ini																+ + + +														++			
	Existence of a politically endorsed poli						++											+ + + +		+										+ $+$ $+$		++			
	Speed regime			_			+							~				+ + + +														++			
	Set up of a permanent PQP (stakehold	er					++							x				+ + + +		+										+ $+$ $+$		++			
	Destination rate of finisht country							× .							+ + -	+ $+$ $+$		+		+ $+$ $+$	+ +		+ + + -		$\vdash$					+ $+$ $+$		+-+-+	$\rightarrow$		++
	Farticipation rate of freight agents in							^							+ + -					+ $+$ $+$										+ $+$ $+$		+ $+$ $+$	$\rightarrow$		+ $+$ $+$ $+$
KPI	Existence of Stakeholder working grou	ib in the second s				4	+											+ + + +														++			
: Stakeholder engagemer	Existence of Stakeholder working grou	1b					4											+ + +												+ $+$ $+$		+-+-+			+ + + - + - + - + - + - + - + - + - +
	Existence of Stakeholder working grou	ib				_	4											+ + +												+ $+$ $+$		++			
							4			X								+ + +												+ $+$ $+$		+-+-+			+ + + - + - + - + - + - + - + - + - +
	Involvement degree						4											+ + +												+ $+$ $+$		++			
	Level of duty						4											+ $+$ $+$ $+$														++			
	Number of EV charging points in							~								X																+			+
KPI : Energy use and infrastrue	cti					+		x																								+-++			
	Electricity consumption					+ + + -																										+	$\rightarrow$		
KPI r: Time window in city for	r Delivery hours					+-+-									+ +-																	++++	$\rightarrow$		
urban logistics	Time city authoristation					+																										+-+-+	++		
KPI pr: Revenue from LEZ acces	Revenue from LEZ access fee (EUR)																																		
KPI : N. of commercial outlet	N. of commercial outlets having a carge	0																																	
		1 1	1 1 1	1 1	1 1 1	1 1 1	1 1 10	3 2	1 1 1	1 1 3	2 2	1 1	1 1	2	1 1 1	L <u>3</u> 2	1 1	3 1 2	1 1	1 1 1	1 1	2 1 1 1	1 1 1	L 1 1	1 1	1 1	1 1 1	1 1	1 1 1	. 1 1	1 1 1	1 1 1	1 1	1 1	1 1 1

Figure 5. Matrix relating KPIs and Sub-indicators in Urban Planning with datasets (I).









Figure 6. Matrix relating KPIs and Sub-indicators in Urban Planning with datasets (II).

								-	KP	1	-		-						Revei	KPI nue tro	)m LEZ	of co outle cargo	omme ets hav area v	rcial ing a vithin
es	, mi	cropl	atform	ns, etc							. Time	winde	ow in c	ity for	urban	logistic	s		acces	ss fee (	(EUR)	a 75	m rad	ius.
I	272	106	273	274	98	275	94	93	16	276	123	120	277	90	278	279	280	281	282	283	284	285	286	287
ľ	ub											Regui												
ľ	c	Envi	Buil									Comp												
ľ	Сар	ron	dina				Troffi		Urba		Hist	liance	Publi	Vehi	Cust		City		Acce	Reve		Com		GIS
ł	icit	tal	Char	Geo	Wee	Occu	c and	Geos	n	Datai	orica	Data	c	de	ome	Even	Baum	Logic		nue	Time	merc	Carg	Soft
b	/ of	Con	Char	grap	wea	panc	Road	patia	Рор	retai	1	<i>!</i> .	Tran	T	r	Even	Boun	LUGIS	55	Colle	Dawl	ial	0	ware
s	She	ditio	acte	hical	uler	у	Condi	I	ulati	·	Deliv	Natio	sport		Beha	·	uarie	ucs	ree	ction	ren	Outl	Area	or
2	f	ns /	ristic	Data	Data	Data	tions	Data	on	Data	ery	nal,	ation	king	vior	Data	s	Data	Kate	Reco	od	et	Data	Tool
	Spa	ors	s				Data		Data		Data	or	Data	Data	Data		Data		s	rds		Data		s
٦,	e	Data	Data									Inter												
li												natio												
T																								
t	-	_	-						-	-	-		-			-	-							
1																								
t																								
ł	_	_																				_		
1																								
t																								
+	-				-					-														
1																								
t																								
╉	_				-	-	-		-	-	-		-	-		-	-		-	-	-			
1																								
t	-	_	-		-					-														
1																								
t																								
ł	_	_	_						_													_		_
1																								
t	-	_	-						-	-												_		
1																								
t																								
ł	_	_	_						_													_		_
1																								
+	-				-					-														
Ļ																								
t																								
t	-				-	-	-		-	-	-		-	-		-	-		-	-	-			
Ļ	_													<u> </u>						<u> </u>				
t	-				-	-	-																	
1																								
Ť																								
t	-				-	-																		
+	_													<u> </u>										
t																								
t	-				-		-																	
ł	_			-				-				-			-									
	х	х																						
			х	x	x	x																		
t	-				×		x	x	v	Y	v	×	x	×	×	v								
╀	_				^		^	^	^	^	^	^	^	^	^	^								
1							x	x			x	x					x	x						
							х	x						х					х	х	x			
								х														х	х	х
	1	1	1	1	2	1	2		1	1	2	2	1	2	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1
	1	1	1	1	2	1	2	4	1	1	2	2	1	2	. 1	1	1	1	1	1	_ <b>1</b>	1	1	1



These two screenshots (Error! Reference source not found. and Error! Reference source not found.) show the generated matrix that relates KPIs and Sub-indicators with the datasets needed to understand and calculate them. In the future, this matrix will help implement a data-sharing platform that guides its users on which data they need to calculate the KPIs (which are composed of Sub-indicators). This will help users and unify concepts and terms, as well as dataset names.

### 4.3.2. Datasets of Urban Planning (land use, infrastructure, public participation)

From the search on how to calculate the Sub-indicators, a list of necessary datasets has been compiled that would provide information on each KPA. The previous matrix indicates which datasets are required for each KPA. Below is the list of datasets with a unique numerical code. Annex (8.2) contains the description of what each dataset entails.

#### Table 25. Datasets in Urban Planning.

- <sup>134</sup> Logistic Centers Characteristics (size, capacity, functions, and services)
- <sup>135</sup> Ownership/Operator Information
- <sup>136</sup> Type of Handled Goods
- <sup>137</sup> Storage Capacity
- <sup>138</sup> Nearby Transportation Infrastructure
- <sup>139</sup> Logistic centers within the specified area
- <sup>140</sup> Microplatforms within the specified area
- <sup>141</sup> Lockers available for logistics within the area
- <sup>142</sup> Number of centers in the city / Urban area (km<sup>2</sup>)) x 100
- <sup>143</sup> Multi-modal hubs within the area
- <sup>144</sup> Pickup micro hubs within the area
- <sup>145</sup> Assessment of the degree of interoperability among logistics centers, platforms, and hubs
- <sup>44</sup> **Location** (Latitude, Longitude)
- <sup>13</sup> Date / Time / Temporal Data / Timestamp (Date and Time)
- <sup>146</sup> Duration
- <sup>147</sup> Vehicles Present
- <sup>1</sup> Vehicle Type
- <sup>148</sup> Activity
- <sup>149</sup> Compliance with Regulations
- <sup>150</sup> Notes/Comments
- <sup>151</sup> Type of area (loading, unloading, or both) / Type of Loading Zones
- <sup>152</sup> Capacity of the area / Size/Capacity of Loading Zones
- <sup>153</sup> Status (active or inactive)
- <sup>154</sup> Number of public parking places for freight vehicles
- <sup>155</sup> Type of Public Space (street parking, loading docks, delivery zones, etc)
- <sup>156</sup> Hours per Square Meter (UFT Activities)
- <sup>157</sup> Data Source(s)
- <sup>158</sup> Geographic Area
- <sup>159</sup> Number of Loading Zones
- <sup>160</sup> Usage Patterns
- <sup>161</sup> Accessibility Features
- <sup>162</sup> Charging Point ID
- <sup>163</sup> Type of Charging Infrastructure







164	Charging Capacity
165	Availability
166	Other Relevant Attributes
167	Number of Spaces
168	Type of Spaces
169	Restrictions
170	Zoning district dataset
171	Land use regulations dataset
172	Building regulations dataset
173	Lot coverage and floor area ratio dataset
174	Parking regulations dataset
175	Special zoning regulations dataset
176	Additional zoning regulations dataset
177	Street Name
178	Total Parking Spaces
179	Occupied Spaces
180	Available Spaces
181	Time-based Availability
182	Parking Space Type
183	Accessibility Features
184	Area (square meters)
185	Usage
186	Address
187	Parking Locations
188	Parking Capacity
189	Parking Availability
190	Parking Pricing
191	Parking Restrictions
192	Parking Types
193	Parking Amenities
194	Parking Utilization
195	Parking Enforcement
196	Parking Lot ID
197	Hours of Operation
198	Fees
199	Accessibility
200	Security
201	Type of Authorization
202	Issuing Authority
203	Conditions
204	Legal Status
205	Spatial data outlining UL areas
206	Geographic coordinates of UL areas
207	Classification/zoning codes for UL designation
208	Attributes describing UL area characteristics/regulations
209	Metadata providing dataset information (source, accuracy, etc.)
210	ZTL Access
211	Tariff Policies
212	Vehicle Emissions



- <sup>213</sup> Last Mile Delivery
- <sup>214</sup> Passenger Transport
- <sup>113</sup> Environmental Impact Data /assesment
- <sup>215</sup> Compliance and Enforcement
- <sup>216</sup> Sustainable Urban Freight/EcoLogistics policy dataset
- <sup>217</sup> Government resolutions/decrees dataset
- <sup>218</sup> Supportive reports/publications dataset
- <sup>219</sup> Meeting/forum records dataset
- <sup>220</sup> Public participation documentation dataset
- <sup>99</sup> Customer/Consunmer Preferences, Feedback and Satisfaction Surveys
- <sup>221</sup> Meeting minutes/transcripts dataset
- <sup>15</sup> City/Region
- <sup>222</sup> Sustainable Urban Mobility Plan (SUMP) or EcoLogistics Strategy
- <sup>223</sup> Presence of Safety Policies
- 224 Endorsement Status
- <sup>225</sup> Implementation Details
- <sup>226</sup> Speed regime dateset
- <sup>227</sup> Dataset Name
- 228 Description
- 229 Data Fields/Attributes
- <sup>230</sup> Frequency of Updates
- <sup>231</sup> Geographic Coverage
- <sup>232</sup> Temporal Coverage
- <sup>233</sup> Access Restrictions
- <sup>234</sup> Data Format
- <sup>235</sup> Data License
- <sup>236</sup> Data Quality
- <sup>237</sup> Use Cases/Examples
- <sup>238</sup> Contact information (e.g., name, title, email, phone number) for municipal representatives in the permanent FQP
- <sup>239</sup> Meeting schedules, attendees, and related details (e.g., agenda, minutes) for annual FQP meetings
- <sup>240</sup> Number of registrations in the discussion forum for freight logistics
- <sup>241</sup> Existence of ecologistics-related stakeholder working groups
- <sup>242</sup> Percentage of actual participants in stakeholder meetings
- <sup>243</sup> Percentage of Participation representing Marginalized or Underrepresented Community Groups
- <sup>244</sup> Investigation of Current and Future Needs
- <sup>245</sup> Ecologistics Status Baseline Data
- <sup>246</sup> Public Participation Process Data
- <sup>247</sup> Stakeholder Group
- <sup>248</sup> Trust Level (Scale)
- <sup>249</sup> Engagement Activities
- <sup>250</sup> Metrics for assessing engagement (stakeholder engagement, such as number of interactions or diversity of participants)
- <sup>251</sup> **Quantitative measures** (stakeholder input frequency and extent of involvement.)
- 252 Qualitative assessments (engagement effectiveness, including satisfaction surveys or perception studies)

- <sup>253</sup> **Benchmark data** (Comparative data from similar urban planning projects or initiatives for benchmarking purposes.)
- <sup>254</sup> Land Use Data
- <sup>255</sup> Transportation Data
- <sup>117</sup> Demographic Data
- 256 Economic Data
- <sup>257</sup> Infrastructure Data
   <sup>258</sup> Microplatform Data
- <sup>258</sup> Microplatform Data
- <sup>259</sup> Warehouse Data
   <sup>260</sup> Energy Use Data
- <sup>260</sup> Energy Use Data
- <sup>261</sup> Electricity Consumption (kWh)
- <sup>262</sup> Heating Fuel Consumption (kWh)
- <sup>263</sup> Cooling Energy Use (kWh)
- <sup>264</sup> Floor Space (m<sup>2</sup>)
- <sup>265</sup> Lighting System
- <sup>266</sup> HVAC System
- <sup>267</sup> Insulation Level
- 268 Renewable Energy Installation
- 269 Microplatform ID
- <sup>270</sup> Microplatform Size (m<sup>2</sup>)
- <sup>271</sup> Microplatform Energy Consumption (kWh)
- <sup>116</sup> Fuel and Energy Consumption Data
- <sup>272</sup> Cubic Capacity of Shelf Space Data
- <sup>106</sup> Environmental Conditions / Factors Data
- <sup>273</sup> Building Characteristics Data
- <sup>274</sup> Geographical Data
- 98 Weather Data
- <sup>275</sup> Occupancy Data
- <sup>94</sup> Traffic and Road Conditions Data
- 93 Geospatial Data
- <sup>16</sup> Urban Population Data / Population
- 276 Retail Data
- <sup>123</sup> Historical Delivery Data
- <sup>120</sup> Regulatory Compliance Data / Local, National, or International Regulations
- <sup>277</sup> Public Transportation Data
- <sup>90</sup> Vehicle Tracking Data
- <sup>278</sup> Customer Behavior Data
- <sup>279</sup> Event Data
- <sup>280</sup> City Boundaries Data
- <sup>281</sup> Logistics Data
- <sup>282</sup> Access Fee Rates
- <sup>283</sup> Revenue Collection Records
- <sup>284</sup> Time Period
- <sup>285</sup> Commercial Outlet Data
- <sup>286</sup> Cargo Area Data
- <sup>287</sup> GIS Software or Tools



### 4.3.3. Datasets most used to calculated KPIs / Sub-indicators in Urban Planning

The characterization of the most used data depends on the type of monitoring and impact assessment decisions that one would like to make, e.g strategic, tactical, operational decisions, use data sets with different spatial, temporal granularity and at different level of aggregation. In this section we are providing a general characterization, which might be modified according to the itended purpose of the KPIs and sub-indicators that the data sets will estimate. This might imply that depending on the nature and the objectives of the different UNCHAIN KERs different types of data sets might be considered as the most used.

As seen in the previous section, there are many datasets needed to understand and calculate the Sub-indicators, specifically 170, but there are 13 that are most frequently repeated and therefore important to know, as shown in the following figure (Figure 7):



Figure 7. Datasets most used for calculated KPIs and Sub-indicators of Urban Planning

[UNCHAIN] D3.1 – Urban logistics cooperation framework

The datasets most used are, in descending order of relevance:

- Location (Latitude, Longitude)
- Geospatial Data
- Notes/Comments
- Accessibility Features
- Availability
- Environmental Impact Data /assesment
- Existence of ecologistics-related stakeholder working groups
- Percentage of actual participants in stakeholder meetings
- Infrastructure Data
- Warehouse Data
- Energy Use Data
- Traffic and Road Conditions Data
- Date / Time / Temporal Data / Timestamp (Date and Time)

### 4.3.4. Level of access, level of aggregation and anonymization and ownership of

### the datasets

Below, the access level, aggregation level, anonymization level, and data holders are shown. This information is derived from a review of the literature and workshops.

### 4.3.4.1. Level of access

In the following table, an example of classification of the access level of the most necessary data to calculate the KPIs and Sub-indicators for the category Urban Planning is shown.

- 1 (Public): Generally accessible to the public without restrictions.
- 2 (Varies): Access level can vary; it might be public in some cases (with limitations) or restricted (requiring authorization or special conditions).
- **3 (Restricted)**: Access is limited to authorized personnel or entities due to privacy, security, or proprietary reasons.

Dataset	Access classification						
Location (Latitude, Longitude)	1 (Public) or 3 (Restricted) (based on sensitivity)						
Geospatial Data	1 (Public) or 3 (Restricted)						
Notes/Comments	3 (Restricted)						
Accessibility Features	3 (Restricted)						
Availability	3 (Restricted)						
Environmental Impact Data / Assessment	3 (Restricted)						
Existence of ecologistics-related stakeholder working groups	3 (Restricted)						

Table 26. Level of acces for each dataset (Urban Planning).


Percentage of actual participants in stakeholder meetings	3 (Restricted)
Infrastructure Data	3 (Restricted)
Warehouse Data	3 (Restricted)
Energy Use Data	3 (Restricted)
Traffic and Road Conditions Data	3 (Restricted)
Date / Time / Temporal Data / Timestamp (Date and Time)	1 (Public) or 3 (Restricted) (based on sensitivity)

This table 26 provides a structured overview of access levels based on typical classifications for each type of dataset.

In this case, most of the datasets (76.9%) are restricted.

#### 4.3.4.2. Level of aggregation

In the following table, the level of aggregation of the most necessary data to calculate the KPIs and Sub-indicators for the category Urban Planning is shown:

Aggregation levels:

- 1. **Individual Data Points**: Refers to specific data entries that are distinct and typically not combined with other entries.
- 2. Aggregated Data: Refers to data that is summarized or combined from multiple sources or instances.

Table 27	Lovalof	agarogation	for each	datacat	/I Irhan	Dianning)
TUDIE 27.	Leveroj	uyyreyullon	joi eucii	uutuset	(UIDUII	riunning).

Dataset	Aggregation Level
Location (Latitude, Longitude)	Individual Data Points
Geospatial Data	Aggregated Data (Spatial datasets)
Notes/Comments	Individual Data Points
Accessibility Features	Aggregated Data (Features)
Availability	Aggregated Data (Availability)
Environmental Impact Data / Assessment	Aggregated Data (Impact assessment)
Existence of ecologistics-related stakeholder working groups	Individual Data Points
Percentage of actual participants in stakeholder meetings	Aggregated Data (Percentage)
Infrastructure Data	Aggregated Data
Warehouse Data	Aggregated Data
Energy Use Data	Aggregated Data
Traffic and Road Conditions Data	Aggregated Data
Date / Time / Temporal Data / Timestamp	Individual Data Points



#### 4.3.4.3. Anonymization level

In the following table, the level of anonymization of the data is shown; only in 3 out of 13 cases (23.1%) the level is moderate, and none have a high level.

Anonymization levels:

- 1 (Low): Little to no anonymization needed; data is generally non-sensitive.
- 2 (Moderate): Some anonymization required to protect privacy or sensitive details.
- **3 (High)**: Significant anonymization needed due to high sensitivity or potential for identification.

Table 20		Inval fam.	and data at	11146	
10DIE 28. F	Anonymization	ievei tor e	ach aataset	iurban.	Plannina).
				0.200.00	

Dataset Description	Level of Anonymization
Location (Latitude, Longitude)	1 (Low)
Geospatial Data	1 (Low)
Notes/Comments	2 (Moderate)
Accessibility Features	1 (Low)
Availability	1 (Low)
Environmental Impact Data / Assessment	2 (Moderate)
Existence of ecologistics-related stakeholder working groups	1 (Low)
Percentage of actual participants in stakeholder meetings	2 (Moderate)
Infrastructure Data	1 (Low)
Warehouse Data	1 (Low)
Energy Use Data	1 (Low)
Traffic and Road Conditions Data	1 (Low)
Date / Time / Temporal Data / Timestamp (Date and Time)	1 (Low)

#### 4.3.4.4. Who has access

Table 29. Entities that have access to the data (Urban Planning).

Dataset Description	Entities with Access
Location (Latitude, Longitude)	Public, Government Agencies, Specific
	Service Providers
Geospatial Data	Government Agencies, Researchers,
	Public
Notes/Comments	Authorized Personnel, Public
Accessibility Features	Government Agencies, Accessibility
	Organizations
Availability	Public, Researchers
Environmental Impact Data / Assessment	Environmental Agencies, Researchers
Existence of ecologistics-related stakeholder working groups	Stakeholders, Researchers



Percentage of actual participants in stakeholder meetings	Stakeholders, Researchers
Infrastructure Data	Government Agencies, Public
Warehouse Data	Logistics Companies, Researchers
Energy Use Data	Government Agencies, Researchers
Traffic and Road Conditions Data	Government Agencies, Public
Date / Time / Temporal Data / Timestamp (Date and Time)	Public, Researchers

The profiles that possess the most important datasets in the Urban Planning category are:

- Public and researchers (53.8%)
- Government agencies (46.1%

#### 4.3.5 How Sub-indicators are calculated- Environmental and social impact

In the following table 30, a preliminary approach is shown on how Sub-indicators related to the category Urban Planning can be calculated:

Sub-indicators	Formula
1. Types and characteristics of logistics conteres:	Listing types and characteristics (size, capacity, functions,
2 Number of logistic control	Total count of logistics contars
2. Number of logistic centres	
3. Number of microplatforms	lotal count of microplatforms
4.Number of lockers:	Total count of lockers
5. Sustainability of the urban distribution of goods (last mile):	(Number of centers in the city / Urban area $(km^2)$ ) × 100
6.Multi modal hubs:	Total count of multimodal hubs
7.Number of pickup micro hubs:	Total count of micro pickup hubs
8.Interoperability	Number of efficient connections between centers / Total number of possible connections
9.Number of monitored loading & unloading areas	Count of total monitored areas
10.Number of loading & unloading areas:	Count total of loading and unloading areas
<b>11.Number of public parking places</b> for freight vehicles	Count total parking spaces.
12.More efficient use of existing public space:	Total hours of UFT activities / Area (m <sup>2</sup> )
13.Density of loading zones:	Number of loading zones / Urban area (km <sup>2</sup> ) loading
14.Charging points freight	Total count of charging points for cargo vehicles
15.Count of delivery spaces	Count total delivery spaces

Table 30. Sub-indicators and formulas (Urban Planning)



16.Zoning data	Listing and analyzing zoning data
17.Availability	Number of available items / Total number of items
18.Availability of parking spaces on streets	Number of available spaces / Total number of spaces
19.Available municipal space	Total area of available space (m <sup>2</sup> )
20.Delivery parking places	Count total number of delivery parking spaces
21.Parking data and information	Collection and analysis of parking data
22.Land authorization for use	Number of authorizations issued
23.Areas designated as Urban Logistics (UL) areas	Count total of areas designated as UL
24.Overall and integrated regulatory system	Description of the regulatory system and access policies (ZTL)
25.Policy existence	Evaluate level of political support and leadership.
26. Existence of a politically endorsed policy on safety	Verify if the security policy is approved and in implementation
27.Speed regime	Listing and analyzing speed limits.
28.Set up of a permanent FQP (stakeholder collaboration):	Verify the existence and activity of the FQP
29.Contact persons for each municipality adhering to the permanent FQP	List contacts by municipality
30.Participation rate of freight agents in discussion forum for freight logistics	Number of freight agent registrations / Total number of invited freight agents
<b>31.Existence of Stakeholder working group and extent of participation</b>	Number of actual participants / Total expected participants × 100
32.Percentage of participation representing marginal or underrepresented community groups	Number of participants from marginalized groups / Total number of participants × 100
33.The degree to which the city investigates the current and future needs	Qualitative and quantitative assessment of the research conducted
34.Trust	Measurement of confidence through surveys and analysis of results.
35.Involvement degree	Number of interactions and active participations / Total number of participants



36.Level of duty	Qualitative assessment of fulfilling responsibilities
<b>37.Number of EV charging points in microplatforms</b>	Count total EV charging points
38.Energy consumption at warehouses (Energy use for each floor space):	Total energy consumption of the warehouse (kWh) / Total area of the warehouse (m <sup>2</sup> )
39.Energy consumption at warehouses (Energy use for a cubic capacity of shelf space):	Total energy consumption of the warehouse (kWh) / Total cubic capacity (m <sup>3</sup> )
40. Electricity consumption	$\Sigma$ (Electricity consumption (kWh))
41. Delivery hours	Total delivery operation hours
42. Time city authorisation	Average time to obtain municipal authorizations
43.Revenue from LEZ access fee (EUR):	∑ (Revenue generated from access fees)
44.N. of commercial outlets having a cargo area within a 75 m radius	Count total businesses with loading area within 75 m

In Annex (8.8), the origin of the formulas and the list of bibliographic references are described.

### 4.4. Traffic management

The following presents the KPIs, Sub-indicators, and datasets associated with topic "Traffic Management". Additionally, it analyzes how they are calculated, the datasets most commonly used, and finally, aspects related to who can access the information, level of aggregation, anonymization, etc.

This KPA (category) consists of: 5 KPIs, 38 sub-indicators, and 105 datasets.

#### 4.4.1. KPIs and Sub-indicators in Traffic management

In this section, we will define the datasets needed for each sub-indicator related to "Traffic Managment" The Sub-indicators are:

Table 31. KPIs and Sub-indicators in Traffic Management

# **Unchain**

#### KPI\_18: Number of logistic centres, platforms, hubs, lockers

98. Share of freight vehicles

99. Number of freight trucks

KPI\_19: Congestion

**100.** Reduction of congestion (ratio between the total time spent on a congested road network and the total "virtual" time spent in the absence of congestion)

101. Road congestion

**102.** Congestion: Average duration of delay due to traffic congestion or a vehicle in a day (mins/vehicle/day)

103. Congestion: Percentage of freight traffic at main traffic corridors (%)

104. Reduced congestion: Obstruction of other road users during loading / unloading (Veh/hrs)

105. Reduced congestion: UFT (urban freight transport) vehicles travelling on congested streets / shared spaces (Veh/hrs)

106. Traffic indicator

107. Traffic congestion

108. Traffic flow intensity

109. Traffic intensity

110. Traffic counters

111. Floating car data

112. Traffic movement

113. Sensors of traffic

114. Smart city control room

KPI\_20: Freight-related accidents (accidents, people injured, vehicles involved, etc)

115. Freight vehicles involvement rate: Percentage of incidents involving freight vehicles in the total traffic incidents (including LGVs and HGVs) (%)

**116.** Freight vehicles involvement rate: Percentage of freight-related incidents according to roaduser types (pedestrians, cyclists, car drivers, truck drivers) (%)

117. Freight vehicles involvement rate: Percentage of freight-related fatalities according to roaduser types (pedestrians, cyclists, car drivers, truck drivers) (%)

118. Delivery drivers' injuries/fatalities: The number of drivers injured or killed on the job per year (e.g., via crashes, vehicle/tire malfunction) (Number of drivers/year)

119. Freight employees' injuries/fatalities: The number of employees injured or killed on the job per year (e.g., warehouse accidents. (Number of warehouse workers/ year)

120. Improved traffic safety: Road accidents, injuries and fatalities (number)

121. Improved traffic safety: Damages to freight vehicles (number)

122. Improved traffic safety: Perceived safety (index)

KPI\_21: Severe violations (Speed violation, drivers testing positive on alcohol or drugs)

**123.** Driver safety: Percentage of freight drivers testing positive on alcohol or drug use versus total drivers tested

**124.** Speed violations: The number of speed violators

125. Security









126. Accidents vru

127. Road safety

128. Safety

129. Number of all crashes

130. Crash mapper

131. Police historical data

132. nformation from police

**KPI\_22:** Soft violations (unauthorized parking in loading zones // commercial vehicles with parking-related fines)

**133.** Loading and unloading in a zone: Percentage of unauthorized parking in loading zones for HGV

**134.** Loading and unloading in a zone: Total number of commercial vehicles with parking-related fines per million freight vehicle km

135. Data fine

# **Unchain**

4.4.2. Matrix relating KPIs and Sub-indicators with datasets (Traffic Management)

		KPI_1	18: Nu	imber o	of logi	stic										KPI :	19: Con	gestion	1	· · · ·								T i	KPI	20: Fre	eight-r	elated	accide	nts (accid	ents, pe	ople in	jured, v	ehicles	s invol	ved, etc	c)	
		288	289	93	290	291 2	92 <b>128</b>	293	<b>84</b> 29	4 29	5 13 29	96 29	7 298	299 30	0 301	302	98	<b>16</b> 30	03 304	4 277 30	5 279	306	307	1 308	8 309	310 3	11 312	2 313	314	315 3	316 33	17 274	109	318 31	9 320	321	322 32	23 32	24 325	326	327	99
	DATASETS	Traf	Frei	Geo	Traf	Vehi Fre	ei Con	Roa	Trav Hist	t	Tim	Loa	Dur V	UFT	Traf	Traf	P	op Tra	f Veh	i Pub Tra	f	Vehi	Vohi V	ohi Traf	F Publ	Re Re	al <sup>.</sup> Sma	۱ N	ehi R	oa Ve	ehi Inj	u	Vehi		, Hea	War L	.aw	Saf	e Perc	: Roa (	Cri P	ub
		fic	ght	spat f	fic	cle gh	t gest	d	el orio	Dela	e-of-Lo	c din	<sup>g</sup> atio c	le Veh	fic	fic \	Ne u	lat fic	cle	lic fic	Eve	cle	cle cl	e fic	ic	ic Tir	n rt	Roa c	le d	cle	e ry/	Fgra	cle	upat cle	" Ith	eho E	info Da	ty	eive	d r	me li	ic
		Volu	Vehi	ial /	Flo	Clas Tr	uc ion	Net	Tim _	. у	Day ati	o and	n of F	lo	Spe	Inci a	ath io	on Sig	n GPS	Tra Der	n nt	Loc	Spe Ty	yp Can	n Tran S	Sens e	City	d C	at A	cci Re	egi ata	li phic	Mai	iona Ace	and	use r	ce ma	ig Imp	¢ d	Infr [	Dat C	)pi
		me	cle	Spat	w	sific k	leve	wor	e Tra	Dat	Dat n	Unl	Obs w	V Tra	ed	den e	er a	nd al	Trac	c nsp sity	Dat	atio	ed e	era	sit o	or Da	t Infr	User a	/ do	en st	ra ty	al	nten	l dei	nt Safe	Wor n	nen es	rov	Safe	astr a	1/ n ⊡	iio
KDIe	Sub-	Dat	Cou		Dat	n nt	Dat	K Dat	Dat Dat	а	a Da /Ti a	t oad	truc P	att	Dat	t L Dot 2			t King	bat	a	n Dat I	Dat Da	at Dat	Dat I	Dat Fo	astr			at Dr	on Da	t Dat	anc	Rej	Ben	Ker t	Dat a	t em	e ty	uct C	uri n	1
KPIS	Indicators	а	Dat	a	a	Dat Da	t a	a	a a		me	Act	tion e		a		·	an /Tr	aa	Dat		a	a a	а	a a	i ds	re		ha a		ala //fa	t a	Rec	y Rec	orts	a		Initi	i vev	Dat	ine s Inci v	vevs
KPI_18: Number of logistic	98. Share of freight vehicles	х	X	X				-		-				-		-						-									, ,	-							,			-,-
centres, platforms, hubs,	99. Number of freight trucks				х	x x	(																																			
	spent on a congested road network and the total "virtual" time				х			х	хх																																	
	101. Road congestion			х	х			х																																		
	congestion or a vehicle in a day (mins/vehicle/day)		х	х	х				x	х	х																															
	corridors (%)		х		х		х				хх	:																														
	during loading / unloading (Veh/hrs)			х	х			х	x			x	x	х																												
	vehicles travelling on congested streets / shared spaces			х	х		х				x			х																												
	106.Traffic indicator	х		х	х				x						х	х	х	х																								
KPI_19: Congestion	107. Traffic congestion				х			х	x						х	х	х	хх	х	x																			-			
	108. Traffic flow intensity	х		х	х				x		x				х		х			x																						
	109. Traffic intensity	х		х				х			x				х		х			x	х																		-			
	110. Traffic counters	х				х		х			x x	:																											-			
	111. Floating car data			х	х			х	х		x						х					х	x	х																		
	112. Traffic movement	х		х	х				х						x	х	х	x						x	х																	
	113. Sensors of traffic			х		х		х	x								х			x	х					xx	(															
	114. Smart city control room				х		х	х	x								х			x	х						х															
	involving freight vehicles in the total traffic incidents															х								x																		
	related incidents according to road- user types (pedestrians,			х	х											x												X	х													
KPI 20: Freight-related	related fatalities according to road- user types (pedestrians,										х							х												x x	х х	х										
accidents (accidents,	injured or killed on the job per year (e.g., via crashes,																													x	X		х	хх	Х							
people injured, vehicles	employees injured or killed on the job per year (e.g.,																														х					х						
involved, etc)	fatalities (number)	х		х					x								х	х											X	х	х						х					
	(number)		х								x x																			x							x	x				
	122. Improved traffic safety: Perceived safety (index)	х																х												х									х	х	х	х
	on alcohol or drug use versus total drivers tested																																									
	124. Speed violations: The number of speed violators										х												х	Х						3	x											
	125. Security																																				х				х	
KPI_21: Severe violations	126. Accidents vru										хх							x												х												
(Speed violation, drivers	127: Road safety										x																			x x	x						Х					
testing positive on alcohol	128: Safety										x							х												x x	x						х					
or drugs)	129: Number of all crashes	х						х										х												х							х				х	
	130: Crash mapper	х						х									x	х											x													
	131: Police historical data												/																						Х						X	
	132: Information from police															х			_			$\mid$			$ \downarrow \downarrow$							_			х		X			$\vdash$	X	
KPI_22: Soft violations	133: Loading and unloading in a zone: Percentage of						_			-	X						$\rightarrow$								+					2	x						X			++	$\rightarrow$	
(unauthorized parking in	134: Loading and unloading in a zone: Total number of		X	v			-			-	X	X		_		$\rightarrow$				+ +-		-+	_	_	+		_	+	X		+					$\vdash$			+	+ +	$\rightarrow$	
ioaung zones //	T22. Data IIII6	10		X 14	14	2	1 2	11	1 1	1 .	<b>X</b>	4	2 1	1	1 5	6	10	9	2 .	1 4	1 2	1	2	2 .	2 1	1	1 1	1	~	0	5	1 .	1 1	1	1 2	1	7	1	1 1		5	1
		10		- 14	14	3	1 3			-	10			-	- 5	0	10	-				-	2			-			5	-	5		- 1	-		-		-		-	-	-

Figure 8. Matrix relating KPIs and Sub-indicators in Traffic Management with datasets (I).





# Unchain

														KPI 21	: Seve	re vio	lation	s (Spee	ed viol	lation,	driver	s testin	ng posi	tive on	alcoh	ol or dr	ugs)												KP	יו_22: <mark>\$</mark>	oft vio	parkin	ıg in Ic	g in loading zo					
		328	329	330	331	332	333 3	34 33	35 33	6 337	338	339	94	340 3	341 34	42 34	43 <b>10</b>	6 34	4 345	5 254	346	347	99	348 2	56 34	49 350	351	352	353	354	355 3	56 35	7 358	359	360	361	362 3	363 3	64 1	159 3	65 36		57 17	/4 36	8 36	59 25	37 ان	0 37	1 37
	DATASETS		Driv	Geo	v	ial Ci	ta Se	v	Tra	F					<b>C</b>	Em	e					c	Co _			Roa													-		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	Frei	i Put
			er	gra	v	tio tio	on eri	it 🔒	fic						6	rge	2					n	nm		Spa	at dwa						Con	n								Hea	a Tra	if Par	·	Put	b	Par	ght	lic
			lden	phic	a	Re	ec y	IVIE	Enf		Vehi I	Inju _	H	list	. n	ncy	/ Env	ri Traf	f Ped	Lan	Leg	u	unit si	por 	ial	у						plai		<b>.</b>	Poli	c	om Po	oli 👝		Un	a vy	fic	kin/	g	lic	Star	kin	g Tra	Rec
		Dru	tific	Info S	Spe _	01	rds Cla	as dic	orc	e Pub	cle	rv R	loa o	ric Di	IV Da	Res	s ror	n fic	estr	id	al	veni . v	/ ta	ati EC	Ana	al Desi		- P	nci	Pa	atr Us	e nts		Cri	ce (	alls n	nu ce	0	Lo	a ut!	n Gor	o and	d Reg	z V	. Cor	m eno	Find	e nsp	ord
		g .	atio	rma e	ed K	ec /	sif	ic	. mei	n lic	and	and	a	I er	a/	po	n me	n Con	n an	Use	and	E	Eng	n no	m ysis	s gn	Arre	G	den	cou ol	l of	and	Pers	me	Dep f	or n	ity Po	oli mu	di	ng ori	z ds	par	r ula <sup>r</sup>	and	plai	i der		ort	a or
		and	n/	tion l	Limi <sup>0</sup>	rds Tr	af ati	io and	d	Heal	Driv (	Cas	ion A	cci Be	eh His	st '	tal	trol	and	and	Rea	Teca	age	lan ic	Too	ol and	st	Case	t r	t ar	nd Fo	rc Inte	onn	Clea	art	erv P	oli ci	es nit	y Zc	on ed	Vet	ni kin	ion	Sur	nts	Eng	Fine	e tior	a Sur
		Alco	Driv	Syst t	, /	fie	n	To	xi Poli	th	er	ualt d	liti d	en av	vio ori	c Dat	t Fac	t Dev	i Cvc	I Zoni	ulat	hnol	nen	ing Im	P s	Engi	Rec	Files F	Res .	ec Di	isn e	rna	el	ranc	men i	e c	ing an	Su	r p	Pa	r cle	Vio	and and	d veil'	I or	age	and	I Rec	vev
		hol	er	em [	V Dat		ta Da	t col		Rec	Info	0	ons t	r	al	a /	ors	ces	ist	na	orv	ogy t	a	nd ac	t and	d neer	ords	F	pon	ords at	ch Re	n Affa	Rec	e	t [	Dat P	ro Pr	ve	y Dr	at kir	va (HC	atic		anc	Rer	n mer	n Per	ı ula	t on
		Test	info		a	tio tio		, gy	and	ords	rmal	Dat D	Dat b	Da Da	at Cra	as Fm	e Dat	Dat	Dat	Dat	Dat	Dat	and P	oli Da	t Sof	ft ing	0103	s	se 🕻				ords	Rat	Rud a			d Da	it 2	Da	5 (IIG	, atio	Cior	'e	ort	í t	alty	ion	c Dar
	Cut	ing		, 010 1	"n			Re		orus	tion	a		a	h				2	2	2	a		y a		r Stan		L	logs		JES UI	Doc		es		5		a	a	2	· •/	t Dat	+ Dat	, Dat	Dat	Jat			i kin
KDIc	Sub-		tion	) Dat	D	at		ort	ts			a	ľ	ius	Da	t	, a	a	a	a	a	4	D	at	wa	dar						net	_		ger	- "	is ui	es		a	Dat	Dat	, Dat	a	Dat	a	nec		: Dok
KP15	indicators		uon	Dat	а	ar c.	10 0e	ent	ulat						а	ncy	<u></u>					a	a a		e	dar						ora	S								а	а	а		а		ora	S POI	веп
KPI 18: Number of logistic	98. Share of freight vehicles		/	a		51	im se	v	ion	5			-		-	Cal		-	-			C	ĸ		-	as							-		-	-				+-	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	cies	avic
centres platforms hubs	99. Number of freight trucks																																-						+	+-	+	+	+-	+	+	+	+	+	+
centres, platforms, hubs,	100 Reduction of congestion (ratio between the total time																																-						+	+-	+	+	+-	+	+	+	+	+	+
	101 Road congestion																																-						+	+-	+	+	+-	+	+	+	+	+	+
	102 Congestion: Average duration of delay due to traffic																																-						+	+-	+	+	+-	+	+	+	+	+	+
	103. Congestion: Percentage of freight traffic at main traffic												-				-	-	-						-										-	-			+-	+-	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
	104 Reduced congestion: Obstruction of other road users								-	-		-	-			-	-	-	-			-	-		-			-	-			-	-		-	-			+	+-	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+
	105. Reduced congestion: UET (urban freight transport)																																-						+-	+-	+	+	+-	+	+	+	+	+	+
	106.Traffic indicator																																-						+	+-	+	+	+-	+	+	+	+	+	+
KPI 19: Congestion	107. Traffic congestion								-	-		-	-			-		-	-						-	-		-	-				-		-				+	+-	+	+-	+	+	+	+	+	+	+-
	108. Traffic flow intensity								-	-		-	-			-		-	-						-	-		-	-				-		-				+	+-	+	+-	+	+	+	+	+	+	+-
	109. Traffic intensity									-		-	-				-	-	-						-	-		-	-				-		-	-			+		+	+-	+-	+	+	+	+-	+	+-
	110. Traffic counters																	-	-									-	-										+	+	+	+	+-	+	+	+-	+-	+	+
	111. Floating car data																	-	-									-	-										+	+	+	+	+-	+	+	+-	+-	+	+
	112. Traffic movement									-								-	-									-	-										+	+	+	+	+-	+	+	+-	+-	+	+
	113. Sensors of traffic								-			-	-			-	-	-	-						-			-	-				-		-				+	+-	+	+-	+	+	+	+	+	+	+-
	114. Smart city control room								-			-	-			-	-	-	-						-			-	-				-		-				+	+-	+	+-	+	+	+	+	+	+	+-
	115. Freight vehicles involvement rate: Percentage of incidents	;								-		-	-				-	-	-						-	-		-	-				-		-	-			+		+	+-	+-	+	+	+	+-	+	+-
	116. Freight vehicles involvement rate: Percentage of freight-									-		-	-				-	-	-						-	-		-	-				-		-	-			+		+	+-	+-	+	+	+	+-	+	+-
KPI 20: Freight-related	117. Freight vehicles involvement rate: Percentage of freight-									-		-	-				-	-	-						-	-		-	-				-		-	-			+		+	+-	+-	+	+	+	+-	+	+-
accidents (accidents.	118. Delivery drivers' injuries/fatalities: The number of drivers									-								-	-									-	-										+	+	+	+	+-	+	+	+-	+-	+	+
people injured, vehicles	119. Freight employees' injuries/fatalities: The number of																	-	-									-	-										+	+	+	+	+-	+	+	+-	+-	+	+
involved. etc)	120. Improved traffic safety: Road accidents, injuries and																	-	-									-	-										+	+	+	+	+-	+	+	+-	+-	+	+
	121. Improved traffic safety: Damages to freight vehicles																	-	-									-	-										+	+	+	+	+-	+	+	+-	+-	+	+
	122. Improved traffic safety: Perceived safety (index)												-				-	-	-							-													+	-	+-	+-	+	+	+	+-	+-	+	+-
	123. Driver safety: Percentage of freight drivers testing positive	x	х															-	-									-	-										+	+	+	+	+-	+	+	+-	+-	+	+
	124. Speed violations: The number of speed violators			х	x	x	x											-	-									-	-										+	+	+	+	+-	+	+	+-	+-	+	+
	125. Security	х	х			x							-				-	-	-							-													+	-	+-	+-	+	+	+	+-	+-	+	+-
KPI 21: Severe violations	126. Accidents vru	x				x	)	< 1					-				-	-	-							-													+	-	+-	+-	+	+	+	+-	+-	+	+-
(Speed violation, drivers	127: Road safety	x	х	х		x		x	x	х			-				-	-	-							-													+	-	+-	+-	+	+	+	+-	+-	+	+-
testing positive on alcohol	128: Safety	x		x		x		x	x	X			-				-	-	-							-													+	-	+-	+-	+	+	+	+-	+-	+	+-
or drugs)	129: Number of all crashes		х	X			)	(	- ii	x	х	x	x	x	x	-	-	-	-						-										-				+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	1	+
	130: Crash mapper		X	X			,	(	X	X			x		x	x	x	х	х	x	х	x	х	хv	x	X													+	-	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	1	+
	131: Police historical data						x								- ^	x		- "					X	- <b>- -</b>	- ^		x	x	x	X	x )	x	х	х					+	-	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	1	+
	132: Information from police						-						-				-	-	-						-		X			-	)	x	X	X	x	x	X X	х х	x	+	+-	+-	+-	+-	+-	+-	+-	+-	+
KPI 22: Soft violations	133: Loading and unloading in a zone: Percentage of			х									-			-	-	-	-						-						1				-				)	х У	x	X	X	X	x	X	+	1	+
(unauthorized parking in	134: Loading and unloading in a zone: Total number of			х					x				$\rightarrow$			-	-	-	1						-										$\rightarrow$			$\neg$	+	+	+	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	+	X	X	x
loading zones //	135. Data fine								X							-	-	-	1						-														$\top$	-	+	x	. —	+	+	+	x	1	1
<b>2</b> 11		5	5	7	1	5	2	3	2	5 4	1	1	2	1	1	1	2	1	1 1	1 1	1	1	2	1	1	1 1	2	1	1	1	1	2	2 2	2	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	2	1	1	1	1	2	1

Figure 9. Matrix relating KPIs and Sub-indicators in Traffic Management with datasets (II).



Table 22 Datacets in Traffic Management

These two screenshots (Error! Reference source not found. and Error! Reference source not found.) show the generated matrix that relates KPIs and Sub-indicators with the datasets needed to understand and calculate them. In the future, this matrix will help implement a data-sharing platform that guides its users on which data they need to calculate the KPIs (which are composed of Sub-indicators). This will help users and unify concepts and terms, as well as dataset names.

#### 4.4.3. Datasets of Traffic management

From the search on how to calculate the Sub-indicators, a list of necessary datasets has been compiled that would provide information on each KPA. The previous matrix indicates which datasets are required for each KPA. Below is the list of datasets with a unique numerical code. Annex (8.3) contains the description of what each dataset entails.

Tuble J	
288	Traffic Volume Data
289	Freight Vehicle Count Data
93	Geospatial / Spatial Data
290	Traffic Flow Data
291	Vehicle Classification Data
292	Freight Truck Count Data
128	Congestion level Data /metrics
293	Road Network Data
84	Travel Time Data
294	Historical Traffic Data
295	Delay Data
13	Time-of-Day Data /Time stamp data / Temporal Data
296	Location Data
297	Loading and Unloading Activity Data
298	Duration of Obstruction
299	Vehicle Flow Patterns
300	UFT Vehicle Tracking Data
301	Traffic Speed Data
302	Traffic Incident Data
98	Weather Data
16	Population and Demographic Data
303	Traffic Signal Data /Traffic Signal Timing Data
304	Vehicle GPS Tracking Data
277	Public Transportation Data
305	Traffic Density Data
279	Event Data
306	Vehicle Location Data
307	Vehicle Speed Data
1	Vehicle Type Data
308	Traffic Camera Data
309	Public Transit Data
310	Traffic Sensor Data
311	Real-Time Data Feeds / Real-Time Traffic Data







- <sup>312</sup> Smart City Infrastructure
- <sup>313</sup> Road User Data
- <sup>314</sup> Vehicle Data / Vehicle Characteristics Data
- <sup>315</sup> Road Accident Data /Traffic Accident data
- <sup>316</sup> Vehicle Registration Data / Vehicle Ownership and Registration Data
- <sup>317</sup> Injury/Fatality Data /fatality records
- <sup>274</sup> Geographical Data
- <sup>109</sup> Vehicle Maintenance Records
- <sup>318</sup> Occupational Injury Records
- <sup>319</sup> Vehicle Accident Reports
- <sup>320</sup> Health and Safety Reports / Public Safety Reports
- <sup>321</sup> Warehouse Worker Data
- 322 Law Enforcement Data
- 323 Damages Data
- 324 Safety Improvement Initiatives Data
- 325 Perceived Safety Survey Data
- <sup>326</sup> Road Infrastructure Data
- 327 Crime Data / Crime Incident Reports / Crime Mapping Data / incident reports
- <sup>99</sup> Public Opinion Surveys
- <sup>328</sup> Drug and Alcohol Testing
- <sup>329</sup> Driver Identification / Driver information / Driver Demographic Data / Driver Characteristics Data
- <sup>330</sup> Geographic Information System (GIS) Data
- 331 Speed Limit Data
- <sup>332</sup> Violation Records / Violation Data
- <sup>333</sup> Citation Records / Traffic Citations and Summons
- <sup>334</sup> Severity Classification Data / Accident Severity Data / Injury severity
- <sup>335</sup> Medical and Toxicology Reports
- <sup>336</sup> Traffic Enforcement Policies and Regulations Data
- <sup>337</sup> Public Health Records
- <sup>338</sup> Vehicle and Driver Information
- <sup>339</sup> Injury and Casualty Data
- 94 Road Conditions Data
- 340 Historical Accident Records
- <sup>341</sup> Driver Behavior Data
- <sup>342</sup> Crash Data / Historical Crash Data
- <sup>343</sup> Emergency Response Data / Emergency Calls and Dispatch Records
- <sup>106</sup> Environmental Factors Data
- 344 Traffic Control Devices Data
- <sup>345</sup> Pedestrian and Cyclist Data
- <sup>254</sup> Land Use and Zoning Data
- <sup>346</sup> Legal and Regulatory Data
- 347 Vehicle Technology Data
- <sup>99</sup> Community Engagement and Feedback Data / Customer/Consumer Preferences, Feedback and Satisfaction Surveys
- <sup>348</sup> Transportation Planning and Policy Data
- <sup>256</sup> Economic Impact Data / Economic data
- <sup>349</sup> Spatial Analysis Tools and Software
- <sup>350</sup> Roadway Design and Engineering Standards Data

- 351 **Arrest Records** 352 **Case Files** 353 **Incident Response Logs** 354 **Court Records** 355 Patrol and Dispatch Logs 356 **Use of Force Reports** 357 **Complaints and Internal Affairs Records** 358 **Personnel Records** 359 **Crime Clearance Rates** 360 **Police Department Budget** 361 **Calls for Service Data** 362 **Community Policing Programs** 363 **Police Policies and Procedures** 364 **Community Survey Data** 159 Loading Zone Data / Number of Loading Zones 365 **Unauthorized Parking Data** 366 Heavy Goods Vehicle (HGV) Data 367 **Traffic and parking Violations Data** 174 **Parking Regulations and Policies Data** 368 **CCTV and Surveillance Data** 369 **Public Complaints or Reports Data** 250 **Stakeholder Engagement Data** 370 Parking Fine, Fine and Penalty Records 371 **Freight Transportation Regulations and Policies Data** 
  - <sup>372</sup> Public Records or Surveys on Parking Behavior

#### 4.4.4. Datasets most used to calculated KPIs / Sub-indicators in Traffic

#### Management

The characterization of the most used data depends on the type of monitoring and impact assessment decisions that one would like to make, e.g strategic, tactical, operational decisions, use data sets with different spatial, temporal granularity and at different level of aggregation. In this section we are providing a general characterization, which might be modified according to the itended purpose of the KPIs and sub-indicators that the data sets will estimate. This might imply that depending on the nature and the objectives of the different UNCHAIN KERs different types of data sets might be considered as the most used.

As seen in the previous section, there are many datasets needed to understand and calculate the Sub-indicators, specifically 105, but there are 47 that are most frequently repeated and therefore important to know, as shown in the following figure (Figure 10):



Figure 10. Datasets most used for calculated KPIs and Sub-indicators of Traffic Management

The most important datasets, as they are the most used, are:

- Time-of-Day Data /Time stamp data / Temporal Data
- Geospatial / Spatial Data
- Traffic Flow Data
- Road Network Data
- Historical Traffic Data
- Traffic Volume Data
- Weather Data
- Population and Demographic Data
- Road Accident Data /Traffic Accident data
- Law Enforcement Data
- Geographic Information System (GIS) Data
- Traffic Incident Data
- Freight Vehicle Count Data
- Traffic Speed Data
- Vehicle Data / Vehicle Characteristics Data
- Vehicle Registration Data / Vehicle Ownership and Registration Data
- Crime Data / Crime Incident Reports / Crime Mapping Data / Incident Reports
- Drug and Alcohol Testing
- Driver Identification / Driver information / Driver Demographic Data / Driver Characteristics Data
- Violation Records / Violation Data
- Traffic Enforcement Policies and Regulations Data
- Location Data
- Public Transportation Data
- Injury/Fatality Data /fatality records
- Public Health Records
- Vehicle Classification Data
- Congestion level Data /metrics
- Event Data
- Health and Safety Reports / Public Safety Reports
- Severity Classification Data / Accident Severity Data / Injury severity

#### 4.4.1. Level of access, level of aggregation and anonymization and ownership of

#### the datasets

Below, the access level, aggregation level, anonymization level, and data holders are shown. This information is derived from a review of the literature and workshops.

#### 4.4.1.1. Level of access

In the following table, an example of classification of the access level of the most necessary data to calculate the KPIs and Sub-indicators for the category Traffic Management is shown.

- 0 (Open): Accessible to anyone without any restrictions
- 1 (Public): Generally accessible to the public without restrictions.
- **2 (Varies):** Access level can vary; it might be public in some cases (with limitations) or restricted (requiring authorization or special conditions).
- **3 (Restricted)**: Access is limited to authorized personnel or entities due to privacy, security, or proprietary reasons.
- **4 (Confidential)**: Access is highly restricted to a select group of individuals or entities, typically due to the sensitive or proprietary nature of the information.

Table 33. Level of acces for each dataset (Urban Planning).

Data Type	Access Level		
Geospatial / Spatial Data	0 (Open)		
Traffic Flow Data	3 (Restricted)		
Road Network Data	0 (Open)		
Historical Traffic Data	3 (Restricted)		
Traffic Volume Data	3 (Restricted)		
Weather Data	0 (Open)		
Population and Demographic Data	1 (Public)		
Road Accident Data / Traffic Accident data	3 (Restricted)		
Law Enforcement Data	4 (Confidential)		
Geographic Information System (GIS) Data	Open Access		
Traffic Incident Data	3 (Restricted)		
Freight Vehicle Count Data	3 (Restricted)		
Traffic Speed Data	3 (Restricted)		
Vehicle Data / Vehicle Characteristics Data	3 (Restricted)		
Vehicle Registration Data / Vehicle Ownership and Registration	4 (Confidential)		
Data			
Crime Data / Crime Incident Reports / Crime Mapping Data /	4 (Confidential)		
Incident Reports			
Drug and Alcohol Testing	4 (Confidential)		
Driver Identification / Driver information / Driver Demographic	4 (Confidential)		
Data / Driver Characteristics Data			
Violation Records / Violation Data	4 (Confidential)		
Traffic Enforcement Policies and Regulations Data	Public Access		
Location Data	3 (Restricted)		
Public Transportation Data	Public Access		
Injury/Fatality Data / fatality records	4 (Confidential)		
Public Health Records	4 (Confidential)		
Vehicle Classification Data	3 (Restricted)		
Congestion level Data / metrics	3 (Restricted)		
Event Data	3 (Restricted)		
Health and Safety Reports / Public Safety Reports	4 (Confidential)		
Severity Classification Data / Accident Severity Data / Injury	4 (Confidential)		
severity			



This table provides a structured overview of access levels based on typical classifications for each type of dataset.

In this case, the majority of the most used data would have restricted or confidential access (75.8%). Additionally, 34.5% of the data are confidential, related to health, violations, or crime.

#### 4.4.1.1. Level of aggregation

In the following table, the level of aggregation of the most necessary data to calculate the KPIs and Sub-indicators for the category Traffic Management is shown:

This categorization is based on the typical granularity and scope of the data, where:

- **High** aggregation indicates data that is more generalized or aggregated over large areas or populations.
- **Medium** aggregation indicates data that is moderately detailed, often aggregated over smaller areas or specific intervals.
- Low aggregation indicates highly detailed data, often at the level of individual records or events.

Data Type	Level of Aggregation		
Geospatial / Spatial Data	3 (High)		
Traffic Flow Data	2 (Medium)		
Road Network Data	3 (High)		
Historical Traffic Data	2 (Medium)		
Traffic Volume Data	2 (Medium)		
Weather Data	2 (Medium)		
Population and Demographic Data	3 (High)		
Road Accident Data / Traffic Accident Data	1 (Low)		
Law Enforcement Data	1 (Low)		
Geographic Information System (GIS) Data	3 (High)		
Traffic Incident Data	1 (Low)		
Freight Vehicle Count Data	2 (Medium)		
Traffic Speed Data	2 (Medium)		
Vehicle Data / Vehicle Characteristics Data	1 (Low)		
Vehicle Registration Data / Vehicle Ownership Data	1 (Low)		
Crime Data / Crime Incident Reports / Crime Mapping	1 (Low)		
Drug and Alcohol Testing	1 (Low)		
Driver Identification / Driver Demographic Data	1 (Low)		
Violation Records / Violation Data	1 (Low)		
<b>Traffic Enforcement Policies and Regulations Data</b>	3 (High)		
Location Data	2 (Medium)		
Public Transportation Data	2 (Medium)		
Injury/Fatality Data / Fatality Records	1 (Low)		

Table 34. Level of aggregation for each dataset (Traffic Management).



Public Health Records	2 (Medium)
Vehicle Classification Data	2 (Medium)
Congestion Level Data / Metrics	2 (Medium)
Event Data	2 (Medium)
Health and Safety Reports / Public Safety Reports	2 (Medium)
Severity Classification Data / Accident Severity Data	1 (Low)

#### 4.4.1.2. Anonymization level

In the following table, the level of anonymization of the data is shown; only in 3 out of 29 cases (10.34%) the level is high.

Anonymization levels:

- 1 (Low): Little to no anonymization needed; data is generally non-sensitive.
- 2 (Moderate): Some anonymization required to protect privacy or sensitive details.
- **3 (High)**: Significant anonymization needed due to high sensitivity or potential for identification.

Table 35. Anonymization level for each dataset (Traffic Management).

Data Type	Level of		
	Anonymization		
Geospatial / Spatial Data	1 (Low)		
Traffic Flow Data	1 (Low) to 2		
	(Moderate)		
Road Network Data	3 (High)		
Historical Traffic Data	1 (Low) to 2		
	(Moderate)		
Traffic Volume Data	1 (Low)		
Weather Data	3 (High)		
Population and Demographic Data	2 (Moderate) to 3		
	(High)		
Road Accident Data / Traffic Accident Data	1 (Low) to 2		
	(Moderate)		
Law Enforcement Data	1 (Low)		
Geographic Information System (GIS) Data	1 (Low)		
Traffic Incident Data	1 (Low) to 2		
	(Moderate)		
Freight Vehicle Count Data	2 (Moderate)		
Traffic Speed Data	1 (Low)		
Vehicle Data / Vehicle Characteristics Data	1 (Low)		
Vehicle Registration Data / Vehicle Ownership and Registration	1 (Low)		
Crime Data / Crime Incident Reports / Crime Mapping Data /	1 (Low)		
Incident Reports	- (		
	1		

Drug and Alcohol Testing	1 (Low)
Driver Identification / Driver Information / Driver Demographic	1 (Low)
Data / Driver Characteristics Data	
Violation Records / Violation Data	1 (Low)
Traffic Enforcement Policies and Regulations Data	3 (High)
Location Data	1 (Low)
Public Transportation Data	2 (Moderate)
Injury/Fatality Data / Fatality Records	1 (Low)
Public Health Records	1 (Low)
Vehicle Classification Data	2 (Moderate)
Congestion Level Data / Metrics	2 (Moderate)
Event Data	2 (Moderate)
Health and Safety Reports / Public Safety Reports	2 (Moderate)
Severity Classification Data / Accident Severity Data / Injury Severity	2 (Moderate)

#### 4.4.1.3. Who has access

- **Insurance Companies**: Companies providing insurance services, often requiring access to traffic, accident, and vehicle data for risk assessment.
- **Emergency Responders**: Agencies involved in emergency response, including fire departments, ambulances, and disaster response teams.
- **Transportation Departments**: Government departments responsible for the development and maintenance of transportation infrastructure.
- Logistics Companies: Companies involved in the transportation and delivery of goods.
- Automotive Manufacturers: Companies that design, produce, and sell vehicles.
- DMV (Department of Motor Vehicles): State-level agencies that manage vehicle registration and driver licensing.
- **Public Safety Analysts**: Professionals analyzing data related to public safety to improve policies and response strategies.
- Medical Facilities: Hospitals and clinics involved in drug and alcohol testing and public health records.
- App Developers: Companies and individuals developing applications that use location and mapping data.
- Event Organizers: Individuals or companies planning and managing public and private events.
- **Public Transportation Agencies**: Organizations managing public transport systems like buses, trains, and subways.
- Health Departments: Government agencies focused on public health, monitoring health records and safety reports.
- **Public Safety Organizations**: Entities focused on maintaining public safety, including non-profits and governmental organizations.

# **Unchain**

- **Researchers**: Academics and scientists studying various aspects of transportation, public safety, and urban planning.
- **Meteorological agencies:** Organizations focused on weather forecasting and climate data, impacting transportation and public safety.
- Law enforcement: Police departments and other agencies enforcing laws, conducting investigations, and ensuring public safety.

Table 36. Ent	tities that have acce	ess to the data (Tro	affic Management).

Data Type	Access
Geospatial / Spatial Data	Government agencies, mapping services, GIS analysts
Traffic Flow Data	Traffic management authorities, urban planners
Road Network Data	Government agencies, transportation departments
Historical Traffic Data	Researchers, traffic management authorities
Traffic Volume Data	Traffic management authorities, urban planners
Weather Data	Meteorological departments, public
Population and Demographic Data	Government agencies, researchers
Road Accident Data / Traffic Accident	Law enforcement, insurance companies
Data	
Law Enforcement Data	Police departments, legal entities
Geographic Information System (GIS)	GIS analysts, urban planners
Data	
Traffic Incident Data	Traffic management authorities, emergency
Freight Vehicle Count Data	Transportation departments logistics companies
Traffic Speed Data	Traffic management authorities urban planners
Vehicle Data / Vehicle Characteristics	Automotive manufacturers, traffic management
Data	authorities
Vehicle Registration Data / Vehicle	DMV (Department of Motor Vehicles), law
<b>Ownership and Registration Data</b>	enforcement
Crime Data / Crime Incident Reports /	Law enforcement, public safety analysts
Crime Mapping Data / Incident Reports	
Drug and Alcohol Testing	Medical facilities, law enforcement
Driver Identification / Driver	DMV, insurance companies
Information / Driver Demographic Data	
/ Driver Characteristics Data	
Violation Records / Violation Data	Law enforcement, DMV
Traffic Enforcement Policies and	Government agencies, traffic management authorities
Regulations Data	
Location Data	Mapping services, app developers
Public Transportation Data	Public transportation agencies, urban planners
Injury/Fatality Data / Fatality Records	Public health departments, law enforcement
Public Health Records	Health departments, medical researchers
Vehicle Classification Data	authorities
<b>Congestion Level Data / Metrics</b>	Urban planners, traffic management authorities
Event Data	Event organizers, urban planners
Health and Safety Reports / Public	Health departments, public safety organizations
Safety Reports	



Severity Classification Data / Accident Severity Data / Injury Severity Insurance companies, public health departments

The profiles that possess the most important datasets in the Traffic management category are:

- Traffic management authorities (31.0%)
- Urban planners (24.1%)
- Law enforcement (20.7%)

#### 4.4.2. How Sub-indicators are calculated - Traffic Management

In the following table, a preliminary approach is shown on how Sub-indicators related to the category Traffic Management can be calculated:

Sub-indicators	Formula			
1. Share of freight vehicles	(Number of freight vehicles/ Total number of vehicles) ×			
	100			
2. Number of freight trucks	∑ Freight trucks observed in a specific period			
3. Reduction of congestion	Total time spent on congested roads / Total virtual time			
	spent without congestion			
4. Road congestion:	Total delay time due to congestion / Number of vehicles			
5.Congestion: Average duration of	Total delay time / Total number of vehicles			
delay	(mins/vehicle/day)			
6.Congestion: Percentage of	(Freight traffic at main corridors / Total traffic at main			
freight traffic at main traffic	corridors) × 100			
corridors:				
7.Reduced congestion:	∑ Duration of loading/unloading activities (Veh/hrs)			
Obstruction of other road users				
during loading/unloading:				
8. Reduced congestion: UFT <sup>2</sup>	UFT vehicles on congested streets= $\sum$ UFT vehicle hours on			
vehicles travelling on congested	congested/shared streets (Veh/hr)			
streets/shared spaces				
9. Traffic indicator	Composite index of traffic flow, intensity, and congestion			
10.Traffic congestion	Total congestion time / Total time period			
11.Traffic flow intensity	Number of vehicles passing a point / Time period			
12.Traffic intensity	Total vehicle kilometers / Time period			
13. Traffic counters:	Sum of vehicle counts at designated points			
14.Floating car data	Average speed and travel time from GPS - enabled vehicles			
15.Traffic movement:	Sum of vehicle movements in thenetwork			
16. Sensors of traffic	Data collected from traffic sensors (vehicle count, speed, etc.)			
17. Smart city control room	Real-time data from various urban sensors and systems			

Table 37. Sub-indicators and formulas (Traffic Management)

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> UFT stands for Urban Freight Transport. It refers to the movement of goods within urban areas, often involving the use of specialized vehicles designed to navigate the unique challenges of city environments, such as congestion and limited parking. UFT vehicles are typically used for last-mile delivery services, ensuring that goods reach their final destinations efficiently in densely populated areas.



18. Freight vehicles involvement rate: Percentage of incidents involving freight vehicles in the total traffic incidents	(Incidents involving freight vehicles / Total traffic incidents) × 100
19.Freight vehicles involvement rate: Percentage of freight-related incidents according to road-user types	(Freight-related incidents for user type/ Totalfreight- related incidents) × 100
20. Freight vehicles involvement rate: Percentage of freight-related fatalities according to road-user types:	(Freight-related fatalities for user type / Total freight-related fatalities) × 100
21.Delivery drivers' injuries/fatalities:	∑Number of injured/killed delivery drivers per year
22.Freight employees' injuries/fatalities:	∑Number of injured/killed warehouse employees per year
23.Improved traffic safety: Road accidents, injuries, and fatalities:	∑Number of road accidents, injuries, and fatalities
24.Improved traffic safety: Damages to freight vehicles:	∑Number of damages reported to freight vehicles Perceived safety index=Survey results on safety perceptions
25.Driver safety: Percentage of freight drivers testing positive on alcohol or drug use versus total	(Freight drivers testing positiveTotal drivers tested) × 100
26.Speed violations: The number of speed violators:	∑Number of speed violations recorded
27.Security	Security incidents recorded per time period
28.Accidents vru	∑Number of accidents involving vulnerable road users
29. Road safety	∑Number of road safety incidents reported
30.Safety	∑Number of safety incidents recorded
31.Number of all crashes	∑Number of crashes reported
32.Crash mapper	Geospatial distribution of crashes
33.Police historical data	Historical data on traffic incidents from police records
34.Information from police	Current and relevant data from police reports
35. Loading and unloading in a zone: Percentage of unauthorized parking in loading zones for HGV:	(Number of unauthorized HGV parkingTotal HGV parking in loading zones) × 100
36.Loading and unloading in a zone: Total number of commercial vehicles with parking-related fines	(Number of parking-related fines/Total freight vehicle km) × 106
per million freight vehicle km	
37.Data fine	Summarized data on fines related to parking violations



### 4.5. Service Efficiency

The following presents the KPIs, Sub-indicators, and datasets associated with topic "Service Efficiency". Additionally, it analyzes how they are calculated, the datasets most commonly used, and finally, aspects related to who can access the information, level of aggregation, anonymization, etc.

This KPA (category) consists of: 19 KPIs, 84 sub-indicators, and 365 datasets.

#### 4.5.1. KPIs and Sub-indicators in Service Efficiency

In this section, we will define the datasets needed for each sub-indicator related to "Service Efficiency" The Sub-indicators are:

Table 38. KPIs and Sub-indicators in Service Efficiency

KPI\_23: Customer satisfaction with the delivery

136. Level of satisfaction with the urban mobility system with focus on weak users (pedestrians, disabled people, elderly people, children) on the freight side: (index)

137. Customer satisfaction: Percentage of distributors and end customer that are satisfied with delivery times (%)

138. Same or better level of service as existing schemes and increased acceptance: On time in full (OTIF) (%)

139. Same or better level of service as existing schemes and increased acceptance: Customer satisfaction(index)

140. Same or better level of service as existing schemes and increased acceptance: Level of acceptance (%)

141. End user satisfaction

KPI\_24: Km traveled by commercial vehicles

142. Light commercial vehicle mileage: (miles)

143. Distance travelled by freight vehicles: Traffic counts through car plates, complemented with a survey:()

144. Total km traveled by LEVs and ZEVs: The total distance traveled by LEVs and ZEVs(km)

145. Vehicle-kilometers traveled: Total kilometers traveled per day according to LDV, LGV, and HGV (Distance traveled by a vehicle multiplied by the number of vehicles) (Vehicle-kilometers traveled)

146. Loading and unloading in a zone: Distance covered for loading and unloading in a zone, per vehicle, per activity (Number of km

covered for one

delivery/ pickup)

147. Delivery organization: Average distance traveled per delivery/pickup (from urban delivery hub to core servicing areas) (km)

148. The distance of warehouse from city center: Average distance between logistics centers/ warehouses/distribution hubs and delivery points within the urban core(km) 149. Route kms

KPI\_25: Loading/unloading time - time per delivery

150. Loading/unloading time: (min)

151. Parking time for freight operations: Sensors or empirical observation ()

**152.** Loading and unloading in a zone: The average number of minutes of on-street parking for delivery or pickup in a zone, per vehicle (Mins/vehicle)

153. Loading and unloading timeliness: The average standard deviation of loading/unloading time for bulk goods (Mins)

154. Loading and unloading timeliness: The average standard Deviation of loading/unloading time for container goods (Mins)

155. Loading and unloading timeliness: The average standard deviation of loading/unloading time for a package (Mins)

KPI\_26: Reliability of just-in-time freight deliveries

156. On-time deliveries: Percentage of on-time deliveries vs. total deliveries (%)

157. On-time deliveries: Percentage of on-time deliveries on the road (%)

158. On-time deliveries: Percentage of on-time deliveries on the rail (%)

159. On-time deliveries: Percentage of on-time deliveries on inland waterways (%)

160. Reliability of just-in-time freight deliveries: number and percentage of just-in-time freight deliveries that arrive within an acceptable interval around the planned times (number & %) 161. Delivery on time

KPI\_27: Increased utilisation of load capacity of vehicles

162. Capacity utilization: The load capacity of different freight vehicles (%)

163. Load factors: Average loading percentage of the freight vehicles passing at reference points (%)

164. Increased utilisation of load capacity of vehicles: Vehicle load factor (percentage (%))(%)

165. Increased utilisation of load capacity of vehicles: Integration of goods and passenger flows (number)(number)

166. Load percentage

KPI\_28: Modal split

167. Low emission delivery: The share of low emission delivery in total km traveled (%)

168. Modal split: Percentage of total inland freight ton-km (%)

169. Modal Split goods: Percentage of goods (described in parcels, tons, etc) using each (sub) mode (e.g.: heavy and light trucks, tram, train, cargobikes, etc.) during a day (weekday, weekend day) or per hour (peak hour, off-peak hour) for a specific target group. (%)

170. Number of freight movements: number of freight vehicles (per day or per hour) passing at reference points (e.g. entering the city centre) divided over different type of vehicles: heavy trucks, light trucks, e-cargo bikes, etc. ()

171. Number of goods movements: Total goods (parcels, tons, etc) to be transported departing or arriving in a specific area during a chosen period: hour, day, year (for all modes together).(goods/time)

172. Modal split (for freight transport): (goods vehicles kilometres ran)

173. Modal split (for freight transport): (freight tonnes kilometres ran)

174. Overall transited cargo in the city split by transport mode (road, rail, air, water)

175. Type of goods delivered



176. Modal split

177. Type of goods

KPI\_29: Freight logistic intensity // delivery productivity

178. Freight logistic intensity: Traffic counts through car plates

179. Speed (within urban core during peak hours): Average speed per delivery excluding stops, per type of vehicle (Km/hr)

180. Delivery productivity: Average tons of goods delivered per kilometer(tons/km)

181. Delivery productivity: Average number of deliveries a vehicle can accomplished in a day (based on the sum of time spent on operations) (per type of vehicle: LDV, LGV, HGV) (Number of deliveries/operationaltime/ vehicle)

182. Delivery organization: Average deliveries per round per vehicle (parcel, express, and courier) (number of deliverues)

183. Increased speed of delivery: Time per delivery / pick up(minutes)

184. Increased speed of delivery: Number of delivery attempts(number)

185. More efficient use of vehicle fleet: Deliveries per tour per vehicle(number)

186. More efficient use of vehicle fleet: Dimension weight / day per vehicle (kg, m3)

187. More efficient use of vehicle fleet: Drop density per vehicle (%)

188. More efficient use of vehicle fleet: Days in operation per vehicle (%)

189. N. of deliveries

190. Total freight per day

191. Packages per month

192. Number of stops per day

193. Deliveries per stop

194. Time to delivery

KPI\_30: Costs of the last mile per delivery/ pick up

195. Economically sustainable business models: Last mile delivery cost per delivery / pick up (%)

196. Economically sustainable business models: Distribution and warehouse cost per delivery / pick up (%) (Km/hr)

197. Economically sustainable business models: Investment costs for the city (%) (tons/km)

KPI\_31: Percentage of total vehicle-kilometers that run empty

198. Percentage of total vehicle-kilometers that run empty

KPI\_32: Recipient awareness of sustainable delivery options (index) // Recipient willingness to pay for sustainable delivery (index)

199. Recipient awareness of sustainable delivery options (index)

200. Recipient willingness to pay for sustainable delivery (index)

KPI\_33: Hours that vehicles are in service, e.g. deliveries, pick ups, transporting, weighting, loading/unloading over 24 hours

201. Hours that vehicles are in service, e.g. deliveries, pick ups, transporting, weighting, loading/unloading over 24 hours

**KPI\_34: Night deliveries** 

202. % delivery vehicles from 22h to 7h/total

KPI\_35: Average age of freight vehicles

**203.** Average age of freight vehicles

KPI\_36: Average utilization of the warehouse or distribution centers

204. Warehouse utilisation: Average utilization of the warehouse or distribution centers (%)

205. Occupancy time of hubs

KPI\_37: Occupancy of (un)loading/parking areas

206. Occupancy status of load and unloading parking spots

207. Use of loading areas

208. UL areas occupation

209. Parking slots occupancy

210. Parking lots occupancy

211. Occupancy time loading unloading bays

KPI\_38: Privacy

212. Privacy

KPI\_39: Time spent to find parking/(un)loading area

213. Time to find parking

214. Time lost to find parking

215. Time spent finding parking

KPI\_40: Reservation of parking areas

216. Reservation of parking areas

KPI\_41: Constraints identified during the last mile stage

217. Constraints identified during the last mile stage

## **Unchain**

### 4.5.1. Matrix relating KPIs and Sub-indicators with datasets (Service Efficiency)

				KPIs	: Customer satisfaction with the delivery			KPIs Km trave	eled by commercial vehicles
	DATASETS	273 274 275 276 277 278 279 380 3 ht Trans port Data / Freig ht Trans Acces Durbo ogra Activity Trans Mobi arguing to more for the formation of the formation to more formation of the formation of the formation of the formation to more formation of the formation of the formation of the formation to more formation of the formation of the formation of the formation to more formation of the formation of the formation of the formation to more formation of the formation of	81         322         99         384         385         386         304         305           y         munit         y         Base         Delly         delty         delty </th <th>3 av         123         388         389         200         211         322         393         344         1           mer         imer         imer         imer         and         imer         icc         icc         icc         and         and         and         icc         icc&lt;         icc&lt;</th> <th>50     306     233     307     308     120     399     400     113     300     401     42     160     401       pi     Lagal and Regal Engle     Lagal and Regal Engle     raphi     raphi     raphi     raphi       n     Mark 2407 graph     Perfo 060 [Resa Plan Regal     For orme mark and and reform come mark and reform come m</th> <th>2     403     99     404     405     406     407     408     409     410     411     412     413     41       i     Regal     Perfo     Image     <t< th=""><th>14         415         416         417         252         316         418         17         109         419         420         421           ia         Auge         Auge</th><th>1         4.22         4.23         1.3         1         90         4.24         4.25         1.16         1.63         4.26         4.27         4.28         4.29           Vehic le         vehic le         vehic le         vehic le         vehic le         vehic le         vehic le         vehic         vehic le         vehic le</th><th>223         4.30         238         139         90         4.21         90         4.21         156         4.31         106         4.31         340         4.35         340         4.35         2.41         4.30         4.31         2.41         4.31         2.41         4.31         4.31         2.41         4.31</th></t<></th>	3 av         123         388         389         200         211         322         393         344         1           mer         imer         imer         imer         and         imer         icc         icc         icc         and         and         and         icc         icc<	50     306     233     307     308     120     399     400     113     300     401     42     160     401       pi     Lagal and Regal Engle     Lagal and Regal Engle     raphi     raphi     raphi     raphi       n     Mark 2407 graph     Perfo 060 [Resa Plan Regal     For orme mark and and reform come mark and reform come m	2     403     99     404     405     406     407     408     409     410     411     412     413     41       i     Regal     Perfo     Image     Image <t< th=""><th>14         415         416         417         252         316         418         17         109         419         420         421           ia         Auge         Auge</th><th>1         4.22         4.23         1.3         1         90         4.24         4.25         1.16         1.63         4.26         4.27         4.28         4.29           Vehic le         vehic le         vehic le         vehic le         vehic le         vehic le         vehic le         vehic         vehic le         vehic le</th><th>223         4.30         238         139         90         4.21         90         4.21         156         4.31         106         4.31         340         4.35         340         4.35         2.41         4.30         4.31         2.41         4.31         2.41         4.31         4.31         2.41         4.31</th></t<>	14         415         416         417         252         316         418         17         109         419         420         421           ia         Auge	1         4.22         4.23         1.3         1         90         4.24         4.25         1.16         1.63         4.26         4.27         4.28         4.29           Vehic le         vehic le         vehic le         vehic le         vehic le         vehic le         vehic le         vehic         vehic le	223         4.30         238         139         90         4.21         90         4.21         156         4.31         106         4.31         340         4.35         340         4.35         2.41         4.30         4.31         2.41         4.31         2.41         4.31         4.31         2.41         4.31
KPIs	Sub- indicators	o Freig ht Trans port Data	and time Satisf data actio n Surve	Data Data Data Logis / tics Custo Custo Logal Logal Logal	Data		Costs	and Speci ficati ons	Coor matio dinat <sup>n</sup> es of UL Areas
KPI_23: Customer satisfaction with the delivery	Lise. Level of satisfaction even that the urban mounty system with 137. Customer satisfaction: Preventage of distributors and end 138. Same or better level of service as existing schemes and 140. Same or better level of service as existing schemes and 141. End user satisfaction 142. Lieht commercial vehicle mileage: [miles]		X         X         X         X         X           X         X         X         X         X           X         X         X         X         X           X         X         X         X         X           X         X         X         X         X           X         X         X         X         X           X         X         X         X         X           X         X         X         X         X	X         X	x         x				
KPI_24: Km traveled by commercial vehicles	through car plates, complemented with a survey;] traveled by LIVs and ZPA(JMP) day according to LIV, GV, and HGV (Distance traveled by a day according to LIV, GV, and HGV (Distance traveled by a dilevery/GAU, BV, GV, and HGV (Distance traveled by a dilevery/GAU, BV to Survey and the survey of the distance between logistic; centers/ warehouse;/distribution 130, Loging/unloading time: (min) devenuine()			Image:				Image: Constraint of the sector of the se	X         X
KPI_25: Loading/unloading tim time per delivery	environment eminutes of on-street parking for delivery or pickup in a zone, deviation of loading/unloading time for buik goods/(Mns) Deviation of loading/unloading time for container goods 155. Loading and unloading timeliness: The average standard 156. On-time deliveries: Percentage of on-time deliveries vs.				X X X				x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x
KPI_26: Reliability of just-in- time freight deliveries	127. Offerning deriveries: extending of ontime deriveries on 158. On-time deliveries: Percentage of on time deliveries on 150. On-time deliveries: Percentage of on-time deliveries on 160. Reliability of just-in-time freight deliveries: number and 161. Delivery on time 162. Lapacity utilization: The load capacity of different freight 162. Lapacity utilization: function loading second on the foundation			x     x     x       x     x     x       x     x     x       x     x     x       x     x     x       x     x     x       x     x     x       x     x     x       x     x     x       x     x     x       x     x     x       x     x     x					
KPI_27: Increased utilisation o load capacity of vehicles	105. Load ractors: Average loading percentage of the regimt 165. Increased utilisation of load capacity of vehicles: Vehicle 165. Increased utilisation of load capacity of vehicles: 166. Load percentage 167. Low emission delivery: The share of low emission delivery 168. Modal spite: Percentage of total inland freight ton-km(%)						Image: state		
KPI_28: Modal split	168. Modal Spitt goods: Percentage of goods (described in 170. Number of Treight movements: number of Freight vehicle 170. Number of goods moments: Total goods (garects; too, 172. Modal spitt (for freight transport); (goods whites; 173. Modal spitt (for freight transport); (freight tornes 174. Overall transport); developed cargo in the dry spitt by transport mode 175. Type of goods delivered 176. Modal spit 177. Type of goods		x					X     X <th>1     1</th>	1     1
KPI_29: Freight logistic intensi // delivery productivity	178 Freight logistic intensity: Tailfic counts through car plates 179. Speed (with unban one during peak hour). Average 180. Delivery productivity: Average tons of goods delivered pe 181. Delivery productivity: Average number of deliveries a 182. Delivery optimistian. Average deliveries per round per 183. Increased speed of delivery: Time per delivery / plok 184. Increased speed of delivery: Number of delivery 185. More efficient use of vehicle feet: Deliveries per tourd 185. More efficient use of vehicle feet: Deliveries per tourd per 186. More efficient use of vehicle feet: Dimension weight /						·     · <th>x     x<th>N         N</th></th>	x     x <th>N         N</th>	N         N
	137. Ware efficient use of vehicle fleet : Drog density per 138. Wore efficient use of vehicle fleet : Days in operation per 139. X of deliveries 130. Total freight per day 131. Packages per month 132. Number of stops per day 133. Deliveries per stop 134. Time to delivery 135. Economically sustainable business models: Last mile							x     x <th>Image: Sector Sector</th>	Image: Sector
KPI_30: Costs of the last mile per delivery/ pick up KPI_31: Percentage of total vel KPI_32: Recipient awareness of sustainable delivery options (index) // Recipient willingner KPI_33: Hours that vehicles are KPI_33: Hours that vehicles are KPI_34: Night deliveries	196. Economically sustainable business models: Distribution 197. Economically sustainable business models: investment 198. Precentage of 1004 which 4: Konnexs that run empty 199. Recipient awareness of sustainable delivery options (Inde 200. Recipient willingness to pay for sustainable delivery (inde 200. Recipient willingness to pay for sustainable delivery (inde) 201. Hours that which as an ensire, a delivery (inde) 202. Selivery which is from 2216 to 7/hotal 202. Selivery which from 2216 to 7/hotal	x) x) xi transporting v X			x     x     x     x     x       x     x     x     x     x       x     x     x     x     x       x     x     x     x     x       x     x     x     x     x       x     x     x     x     x       x     x     x     x     x       x     x     x     x     x       x     x     x     x     x       x     x     x     x     x       x     x     x     x     x       x     x     x     x     x       x     x     x     x     x			x     x     x     x     x     x     x     x     x     x       x     x     x     x     x     x     x     x       x     x     x     x     x     x     x     x       x     x     x     x     x     x     x     x       x     x     x     x     x     x     x     x       x     x     x     x     x     x     x     x       x     x     x     x     x     x     x     x       x     x     x     x     x     x     x     x       x     x     x     x     x     x     x     x       x     x     x     x     x     x     x     x       x     x     x     x     x     x     x     x	
KPI_35: Average age of freight KPI_35: Average unitation of the warehouse or distribution centers KPI_37: Occupancy of (un)loading/parking areas	M203. Average age of freight vehicles     204. Warehouse utilization: Average utilization of the warehou     Zo5. Occupancy into ef hubs     Zo5. Occupancy into ef hubs     Zo5. Occupancy into ef hubs     Zo5. Use of loading areas     Zo7. Use of loading areas     Zo8. U areas occupation     Zo9. Parking slots occupancy     TO 201. Built and environment	ee or distribution centers(%)					X         X         X         X           I	Image: Constraint of the constr	Image: Constraint of the constr
KPI_38: Privacy KPI_39: Time spent to find parking/(un)loading area	Law. reading into Soccupancy     Link, reading into Soccupancy     Link, respective loading unloading bays     Link, respective loading unloading bays     Link, respective loading and reading     Link respective loading and reading     Link, respective loading and reading     Link, respective loading and reading     Link, respective loading and reading							Image: Constraint of the	
KPI_41: Constraints identified	217. Constraints identified during the last mile stage		1 1 12 1 3 4 19	x         x         x           2         1         13         4         16         11         3         6         2         5	x         x			8 1 1 36 13 30 1 1 3 1 2 3 1 1	n         n

Figure 11. Matrix relating KPIs and Sub-indicators in Service Efficiency with datasets (I).









Figure 12. Matrix relating KPIs and Sub-indicators in Service Efficiency with datasets (II).





# Unchain



Figure 14. Matrix relating KPIs and Sub-indicators in Service Efficiency with datasets (IV).



These four screenshots (Figure 11, Figure 12, Figure 13 and Figure 14) show the generated matrix that relates KPIs and UFT stands for Urban Freight Transport. It refers to the movement of goods within urban areas, often involving the use of specialized vehicles designed to navigate the unique challenges of city environments, such as congestion and limited parking. UFT vehicles are typically used for last-mile delivery services, ensuring that goods reach their final destinations efficiently in densely populated areas. Sub-indicators with the datasets needed to understand and calculate them. In the future, this matrix will help implement a data-sharing platform that guides its users on which data they need to calculate the KPIs (which are composed of Sub-indicators). This will help users and unify concepts and terms, as well as dataset names.

#### 4.5.1. Datasets of Service Efficiency

From the search on how to calculate the Sub-indicators, a list of necessary datasets has been compiled that would provide information on each KPA. The previous matrix indicates which datasets are required for each KPA. Below is the list of datasets with a unique numerical code. Annex (8.4) contains the description of what each dataset entails.

Table 39. Datasets in Service Efficiency.

- <sup>373</sup> Urban Mobility Survey Data
- <sup>374</sup> Demographic and User Profile Data
- <sup>375</sup> Freight Transport Data / Freight Transport Activity Data / Transporting Data / Inland Freight Transport Data
- <sup>376</sup> Accessibility Data / Accessibility Features / Accessibility and Inclusivity Data
- <sup>377</sup> Transportation Infrastructure Data
- <sup>378</sup> Mobility Services Usage Data
- <sup>379</sup> Pedestrian Safety and Accident Reports
- 380 Disability Accessibility Compliance Data
- 381 Elderly Mobility Patterns Data
- <sup>382</sup> Child Safety and Transportation Data
- <sup>99</sup> Community Engagement and Feedback Data / Customer/Consummer Preferences, Feedback and Satisfaction Surveys
- <sup>384</sup> Accessibility Improvement Projects Data
- <sup>385</sup> Environmental Quality and Pollution Data
- <sup>386</sup> Local Government Policies and Initiatives Data
- <sup>304</sup> Delivery Time Records / GPS or Tracking Data / Delivery Time Logs /Delivery time data
- <sup>100</sup> Order Processing Data
- <sup>387</sup> Delivery Tracking Data
- <sup>123</sup> Historical Delivery Data / Historical Data
- <sup>388</sup> Customer Complaints Data / Customer Support Interaction Logs / Customer Retention and Churn Data / Customer Loyalty Metrics
- <sup>389</sup> Customer Feedback Data / User Feedback Data / Complaints and Feedback Data
- <sup>390</sup> Logistics Centers/Warehouses Data / Warehouse and Distribution Center Data
- <sup>391</sup> Logistics Performance Metrics
- <sup>392</sup> Route Optimization Data
- <sup>393</sup> Existing Service Level Data
- <sup>394</sup> Transportation and Logistics Operations Data / Freight and Logistics Operations Data / Logistics and Freight Data









395 Supply Chain Management Data / Logistics and Supply Chain Data 396 **Quality Assurance and Control Data** 253 **Performance Benchmarking Data** 397 **Technological Infrastructure and Tools Data** 398 **Market Research and Demand Forecasting Data** 120 Legal and Regulatory Compliance Data / Enforcement and Compliance Data 399 **Employee Training, Development and Awareness Data/Records** 400 Financial Performance, Cost, Budgetary and economic Analysis Data 113 **Environmental Impact Assessment Data** 330 Geographic Information System (GIS) Data / GIS Software or Tools 401 IT Systems Integration and Data Interoperability 62 **Comparative Analysis Data** 160 Usage and Demand Data / Usage Patterns 402 Service Improvement Initiatives Data 403 **Acceptance Rate Data** 99 **Public Opinion Polls** 404 **Case Studies and Best Practices** 405 **Regulatory and Policy Framework Data / Documents** 406 **Communication and Outreach Materials** 407 Performance Metrics and Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) 408 Safety and Security Data 409 **Cultural and Social Context Data** 410 **Governance and Decision-Making Processes Data** 411 Net Promoter Score (NPS) Data 412 **Product/Service Usage Data** 413 **User Experience (UX) Testing Results** 414 Social Media Sentiment Analysis / Online Reviews and Ratings 415 **Competitor Analysis** 416 **Purchase History and Loyalty Program Participation** 417 **Brand Perception Surveys** 252 **Focus Group Discussions** 316 Vehicle Registration Data 418 **Vehicle Odometer Readings** 17 **Fuel Consumption Data** 109 Vehicle Maintenance Records / Vehicle Maintenance and Depreciation Costs <sup>419</sup> Vehicle Telematics Data 420 **Vehicle Inspection Reports** 421 **Fleet Management System Data** 422 **Transport and Logistics Records** 423 Road Usage and Toll Data 13 **Time and Temporal Data** 1 Vehicle Type and Classification Data / Vehicle Specifications Data / Vehicle Type and **Specifications** 90 Vehicle Tracking Data 424 Trip Logs 425 Vehicle Mileage Data <sup>116</sup> Energy Consumption Data 163 **Charging Infrastructure Data** 426 **Traffic Count Data** 

- <sup>427</sup> License Plate Recognition (LPR) Data
- 428 Traffic Analysis Zones (TAZ) Data
- 429 Transportation Surveys Data
- <sup>293</sup> Road Network Data
- <sup>430</sup> Vehicle Usage Data / Daily Vehicle Usage Data
- <sup>288</sup> Traffic Volume Data
- <sup>158</sup> Geographic Area Data / Geographic Data / Geographic and Spatial Data / Geographic Coordinates of UL Areas
- <sup>96</sup> Delivery Route Data and Address / Route and Network Data / Transport Route Information
- <sup>94</sup> Traffic and Road Conditions Data
- <sup>431</sup> Urban Planning and Zoning Data / Urban Planning and Policy Data
- <sup>98</sup> Weather Data / Weather and Environmental Conditions Data
- <sup>432</sup> Urban Area Boundaries Data
- <sup>186</sup> Customer Address and Location Data
- <sup>433</sup> Digital Mapping and Navigation Services Data
- <sup>106</sup> Environmental Factors Data
- <sup>434</sup> Delivery Points Data
- <sup>435</sup> Distance Calculation Tools
- <sup>349</sup> Spatial Analysis Software
- <sup>436</sup> City Center Definition Data
- <sup>437</sup> Transportation Network Data
- <sup>438</sup> Traffic Management Data / Traffic Monitoring Data
- <sup>254</sup> Land Use and Zoning Data
- <sup>439</sup> Infrastructure Inventory
- 440 Census Data
- <sup>297</sup> Loading and Unloading Logs / Loading and Unloading Data
- 441 Transportation Schedule Data
- 442 Facility Operation Logs
- <sup>443</sup> Inventory Management System Data
- <sup>444</sup> Labor and Workforce Data
- <sup>445</sup> Equipment Utilization Data
- <sup>446</sup> Parking Sensor Data / Sensor Data
- <sup>447</sup> Parking Duration Records / Parking Duration Data
- <sup>448</sup> Traffic and Congestion Data
- <sup>89</sup> Delivery Records / Delivery and Pickup Records
- <sup>449</sup> Freight Operations Logs
- <sup>174</sup> Parking Regulation and Policy Data
- <sup>450</sup> Local Economic and Business Activity Data
- <sup>451</sup> Historical Parking Usage and Trends Data
- <sup>452</sup> On-Street Parking Data
- <sup>453</sup> Loading and Unloading Zone Locations
- <sup>16</sup> Urban Area Demographic Data
- <sup>454</sup> Local Regulations and Policies Data
- <sup>277</sup> Public Transportation Data / Public Transportation Usage Data
- <sup>93</sup> Geospatial Data / Geospatial and Mapping Data
- <sup>455</sup> Loading and Unloading Time Records / Loading and Unloading Records / Historical Loading and Unloading Records
- <sup>456</sup> Bulk Goods Inventory Data
- <sup>457</sup> Transportation Logistics Data

- <sup>458</sup> Supplier and Vendor Performance Data / Supplier Data / Supplier and Manufacturer Data
- <sup>459</sup> Facility Capacity and Utilization Data
- 460 Quality Control and Compliance Data
- <sup>461</sup> Container Goods Information
- <sup>462</sup> Time Tracking Data
- <sup>463</sup> Historical Performance Data
- <sup>464</sup> Equipment and Resource Allocation Data
- <sup>87</sup> Package Information
- <sup>13</sup> Time Stamp Data
- <sup>465</sup> Personnel Assignment Data
- <sup>466</sup> Facility Layout and Equipment
- <sup>467</sup> Route Planning Data
- <sup>468</sup> Customer Order Data
- <sup>469</sup> Delivery Performance Metrics / Delivery Performance Data
- <sup>470</sup> Service Level Agreements (SLAs)
- <sup>336</sup> Traffic Enforcement Data
- <sup>471</sup> Rail Transport Data / Rail Freight Data
- <sup>472</sup> Shipment Tracking Data / Shipment data / Freight Shipment Data / Inbound and Outbound Shipment Data
- <sup>473</sup> Schedule Adherence Data
- <sup>474</sup> Railway Infrastructure Data
- <sup>475</sup> Operations and Maintenance Logs
- <sup>476</sup> Government Regulations and Standards Data
- <sup>477</sup> Freight Management System Data
- <sup>478</sup> Rail Network Performance Metrics
- <sup>479</sup> Inland Waterway Transportation Data
- <sup>480</sup> Traffic and Navigation Data
- <sup>481</sup> Shipping Company Operations Data / Shipping Data / Shipping Carrier Data
- <sup>482</sup> Cargo Tracking and Monitoring Data
- <sup>483</sup> Infrastructure Maintenance Records
- <sup>371</sup> Transportation Policies and Regulations
- <sup>256</sup> Economic Data / Economic and Market Data / Economic indicators
- <sup>484</sup> Freight Delivery Schedule Data / Delivery Schedule
- <sup>485</sup> Actual Freight Delivery Data
- <sup>486</sup> Transportation Mode Data
- <sup>84</sup> Route and Distance Data / Travel Time
- <sup>487</sup> Urban Infrastructure Data
- <sup>95</sup> Customer Data and Information
- <sup>100</sup> Inventory and Order Data
- <sup>289</sup> Freight Vehicle Data / Freight Vehicle registration / Delivery Vehicle Data
- <sup>488</sup> Cargo Loading Data
- <sup>348</sup> Transportation Planning Data
- <sup>326</sup> Road Infrastructure Data
- <sup>349</sup> Real-time Load Monitoring Data
- 350 Load Capacity Data
- <sup>351</sup> Weigh-in-Motion (WIM) Data
- <sup>352</sup> Loading Percentage Calculation Algorithm
- <sup>290</sup> Traffic Flow and Density Data
- <sup>353</sup> Vehicle Load Data / Vehicle Load Capacity Data



- <sup>255</sup> Transportation Data
- <sup>281</sup> Inventory and Logistics Data
- <sup>489</sup> Cargo Manifests and Shipment Records / Shipment Records
- <sup>490</sup> Weight and Measurement Records
- <sup>346</sup> Compliance and Regulatory Data
- <sup>491</sup> Vehicle Utilization Data / Vehicle Utilization Metrics
- <sup>492</sup> Passenger Flow Data
- 493 Goods Flow Data
- <sup>494</sup> Vehicle Capacity Data
- <sup>495</sup> Transport Demand Data
- 496 Modal Shift Data
- <sup>497</sup> Infrastructure Capacity Data
- <sup>498</sup> Demographic and Socioeconomic Data
- <sup>499</sup> Historical Demand Data
- <sup>500</sup> Transportation Costs Data
- <sup>501</sup> Delivery Fleet Data / Fleet Composition Data / Transport Fleet Data
- <sup>22</sup> Emissions Data
- <sup>502</sup> Delivery Volume Data
- 337 Public Health Records
- <sup>503</sup> Industry Reports and Studies
- 504 Ton-km Data
- 505 Modal Share Data
- <sup>506</sup> Transport Network Infrastructure Data
- <sup>507</sup> Freight Transport Policies and Regulations Data
- <sup>508</sup> Freight Transport Demand and Supply Data
- <sup>509</sup> Economic and Trade Data / Economic and Trade Data / Customs and Trade Data
- <sup>510</sup> Historical Freight Transport Data
- <sup>511</sup> Transport Accessibility and Connectivity Data
- <sup>512</sup> Goods Transportation Data
- 513 Modal Split Data
- <sup>514</sup> Target Group Demographic Data
- <sup>515</sup> Public Policy and Regulatory Data
- <sup>289</sup> Vehicle Count Data
- <sup>516</sup> Entry/Exit Point Data / Vehicle Entry and Exit Data
- <sup>517</sup> Sensor and Automated Counting Data
- <sup>518</sup> Regulation and Policy Data
- <sup>519</sup> Freight Operation Schedules
- 520 Goods Movement Data
- <sup>521</sup> Departure and Arrival Data
- 522 Freight Traffic Data / Traffic Data
- 523 Port and Terminal Data
- 524 Carrier and Logistics Provider Data
- 525 Vehicle Kilometres Travelled (VKT) Data
- <sup>526</sup> Freight Terminal Data
- 527 Cargo Volume / Weight Data
- <sup>528</sup> Logistics Company Data
- 529 Customs and Import/Export Data / Customs Data
- 530 Inventory Data
- 531 Product Catalog / Product Classification Data

- <sup>532</sup> Packaging Data / Eco-friendly Packaging Data
- <sup>533</sup> Transaction Data / Anonymized Transaction Data
- <sup>534</sup> Returns Data / Returns and Refunds Data
- 535 Household Travel Survey Data
- 536 Private Vehicle Usage Data
- 537 Non-Motorized Transport Data
- 538 Commuter Surveys
- <sup>539</sup> Survey Methodology Details
- <sup>540</sup> Sales Data / Historical Sales and Revenue Data
- 276 Retail Data
- <sup>259</sup> Warehouse Management System (WMS) Data / Warehouse Inventory Data
- <sup>541</sup> Procurement Data
- 542 E-commerce Data
- 543 Freight Volume Data
- 544 Stop Data / stop event data / event data
- <sup>307</sup> Vehicle Speed Data
- <sup>545</sup> Operational Time Data / Time Data / Operational Logs
- 546 Stop Time Data
- 547 Driver Shift Data
- <sup>91</sup> Delivery Frequency Data
- 548 Vehicle Fleet Data
- <sup>549</sup> Driver Work Logs / Driver Logs
- 550 Delivery Load Data
- 551 Driver Performance Data
- <sup>110</sup> Vehicle Performance Data
- 552 Delivery Instructions
- 553 Delivery Attempt Data
- 554 Delivery Personnel Data
- 555 Delivery Infrastructure Data
- 556 Delivery Equipment Data
- 557 Tour Data
- 558 Trip Data
- <sup>559</sup> Delivery and Pickup Schedules / Delivery and Pickup Data
- <sup>560</sup> Vehicle Telemetry Data
- <sup>561</sup> Vehicle Operation Logs
- 562 Vehicle Availability Schedules
- 563 Rental and Leasing Records
- 564 Seasonal/Operational Calendar
- 565 Driver Assignment Logs
- <sup>566</sup> Inspection Records
- 567 Delivery Service Provider Data
- 568 Delivery Failure Data
- 569 Air Cargo Data
- 570 Freight Operator Data
- <sup>571</sup> Driver Activity Logs
- 572 Delivery/Service Logs
- <sup>573</sup> Order Placement Data
- <sup>574</sup> Transit Time Data
- <sup>575</sup> Delivery Confirmation Data



576	Customer Location Data
577	Courier Route Data
578	Warehouse Location Data
579	Sustainability Ratings
580	Delivery and Pickup Costs
581	Number of Deliveries and Pickups
582	Labor Costs / Labor Costs Data
583	Vehicle Maintenance and Depreciation Costs
584	Packaging and Handling Costs
585	Overhead Costs
586	Order Volume and Frequency
587	Technology, Infrastructure and Equipment Costs Data
588	Distribution Costs Data
589	Warehouse Costs Data
590	Overhead Expenses Data
591	Investment Costs Data
592	Infrastructure Investment Data
593	City Budget and Expenditure Data
594	Cost-Benefit Analysis Reports
595	Market Analysis Reports
596	Sustainability Metrics and Indicators
597	Industry and Sector-specific Data
598	Innovation and Technology Adoption Data
599	Cost Estimation Models and Tools
600	Public-Private Partnership (PPP) Agreements
601	Risk Assessment and Management Reports
602	Government Grants and Funding Programs
603	Trip Records
604	Delivery Orders Data
605	Pickup and Drop-off Locations Data
606	Business Operations Data / Business Operation Hours
607	Marketing and Promotional Materials
608	Pricing Data / Parking Fees and Pricing Data
610	Delivery Preferences and Behavior Data
611	Environmental Awareness Data
612	Product Delivery Costs Data
613	Sustainability Ratings and Certifications Data
614	Weighing Date
615	Time specific Delivery Deserts
72	Vehicle Identification Data
616	Vehicle Manufacturing Data
617	Vehicle Retirement Data
618	Fleet Ownership Data
619	Warehouse Canacity Data
620	Warehouse Layout and Space Utilization Data
621	Inventory Turnover Data
622	Order Fulfillment Data
622	Creater and Demond Ferreret Date
- <sup>624</sup> Space Utilization Reports
- <sup>625</sup> Operational Efficiency Metrics / Service Efficiency Metrics
- 626 Hub Identification Data
- 627 Hub Capacity Data
- 628 Arrival and Departure Logs
- 629 Vehicle Scheduling Data
- 630 Real-Time Occupancy Data
- 631 Historical Occupancy Data
- 632 Hub Usage Patterns
- 633 Maintenance and Downtime Records
- <sup>187</sup> Parking Spot Location Data / Parking Area Locations / Parking Lot Location Data
- 634 Parking Spot Status Data
- 635 Usage Duration Data
- 636 Nearby Business and Commercial Activity Data
- 637 Loading Zone Usage Data
- 638 Vehicle Arrival and Departure Times
- <sup>639</sup> Loading Zone Capacity Data
- <sup>367</sup> Parking Violations Data
- <sup>640</sup> Spatial Data Outlining UL Areas
- <sup>641</sup> Classification/Zoning Codes for UL Designation
- <sup>642</sup> Attributes Describing UL Area Characteristics
- <sup>643</sup> Building Footprint Data
- <sup>171</sup> Land Use Regulations
- <sup>157</sup> Data Source(s)
- <sup>643</sup> Parking Slot Identification
- <sup>189</sup> Parking Slot Availability / Parking Availability Data
- <sup>645</sup> Parking Facility Details / Parking Facility Infrastructure Data
- <sup>646</sup> Payment Records / Parking Payment Data
- <sup>178</sup> Total Parking Spaces
- <sup>179</sup> Occupied Parking Spaces
- <sup>646</sup> Parking Lot Type
- 647 Loading/Unloading Bay Locations
- <sup>648</sup> Usage Logs
- <sup>649</sup> Bay Capacity
- 650 Bay Status
- 651 Occupancy Sensors Data
- 652 Privacy Policy Compliance Data
- 653 Network and IT Infrastructure Data
- 654 Data Access and Permissions Records
- 655 Compliance and Regulatory Audit Data
- 656 Employee Training and Awareness Data
- <sup>275</sup> Parking Occupancy Data / Parking Lot Occupancy Data
- <sup>341</sup> Driver Behavior Data
- 657 Parking Search Time Data
- <sup>329</sup> Driver Demographics Data
- <sup>16</sup> Urban Population Data
- <sup>658</sup> Parking Area Capacity
- <sup>659</sup> Parking Reservation Data / Reservation System Logs
- <sup>660</sup> User Information



#### <sup>661</sup> Incident and Accident Data

## 4.5.2. Datasets most used to calculated KPIs / Sub-indicators in Service Efficiency

The characterization of the most used data depends on the type of monitoring and impact assessment decisions that one would like to make, e.g strategic, tactical, operational decisions, use data sets with different spatial, temporal granularity and at different level of aggregation. In this section we are providing a general characterization, which might be modified according to the itended purpose of the KPIs and sub-indicators that the data sets will estimate. This might imply that depending on the nature and the objectives of the different UNCHAIN KERs different types of data sets might be considered as the most used.

As seen in the previous section, there are many datasets needed to understand and calculate the Sub-indicators, specifically 365, but there are 27 that are most frequently repeated and therefore important to know, as shown in the following figure (Figure 15):



Figure 15. Datasets most used for calculated KPIs and Sub-indicators of Service Efficiency.

[UNCHAIN] D3.1 – Urban logistics cooperation framework

The most important datasets, as they are the most used, are:

- Time and Temporal Data
- Vehicle Tracking Data
- Geographic Information System (GIS) Data / GIS Software or Tools
- Weather Data / Weather and Environmental Conditions Data
- Traffic and Road Conditions Data
- Delivery Time Records / GPS or Tracking Data / Delivery Time Logs /Delivery time data
- Geographic Area Data / Geographic Data / Geographic and Spatial Data / Geographic Coordinates of UL Areas
- Delivery Records / Delivery and Pickup Records
- Customer Feedback Data / User Feedback Data / Complaints and Feedback Data
- Delivery Route Data and Adress / Route and Network Data / Transport Route Information
- Legal and Regulatory Compliance Data / Enforcement and Compliance Data
- Historical Delivery Data / Historical Data
- Environmental Impact Assessment Data
- Vehicle Type and Classification Data / Vehicle Specifications Data / Vehicle Type and Specifications
- Community Engagement and Feedback Data / Customer/Consummer Preferences, Feedback and Satisfaction Surveys / Survey Data
- Fuel Consumption Data
- Geospatial Data / Geospatial and Mapping Data
- Logistics Centers/Warehouses Data / Warehouse and Distribution Center Data
- Supply Chain Management Data / Logistics and Supply Chain Data
- Transportation Infrastructure Data
- Road Network Data
- Customer Data and Information
- Vehicle Registration Data
- Traffic Flow and Density Data
- Vehicle Maintenance Records / Vehicle Maintenance and Depreciation Costs
- Fleet Management System Data
- Economic Data / Economic and Market Data / Economic indicators

## 4.5.1. Level of access, level of aggregation and anonymization and ownership of

## the datasets

Below, the access level, aggregation level, anonymization level, and data holders are shown. This information is derived from a review of the literature and workshops.

## 4.5.1.1. Level of access

In the following table, an example of classification of the access level of the most necessary data to calculate the KPIs and Sub-indicators for the category Service Efficiency is shown.

• 0 (Open): Accessible to anyone without any restrictions

- 1 (Public): Generally accessible to the public without restrictions.
- **2 (Varies):** Access level can vary; it might be public in some cases (with limitations) or restricted (requiring authorization or special conditions).
- **3 (Restricted)**: Access is limited to authorized personnel or entities due to privacy, security, or proprietary reasons.
- **4 (Confidential)**: Access is highly restricted to a select group of individuals or entities, typically due to the sensitive or proprietary nature of the information.

Level of Access Data Type Time and Temporal Data 3 (Restricted) Vehicle Tracking Data 3 (Restricted) Geographic Information System (GIS) Data / GIS Software or Tools 2 (Varies) Weather Data / Weather and Environmental Conditions Data 1 (Public) **Traffic and Road Conditions Data** 1 (Public) Delivery Time Records / GPS or Tracking Data / Delivery Time Logs / 3 (Restricted) **Delivery Time Data** Geographic Area Data / Geographic Data / Geographic and Spatial 2 (Varies) Data / Geographic Coordinates of UL Areas **Delivery Records / Delivery and Pickup Records** 3 (Restricted) Customer Feedback Data / User Feedback Data / Complaints and 3 (Restricted) Feedback Data Delivery Route Data and Address / Route and Network Data / 2 (Varies) **Transport Route Information** Legal and Regulatory Compliance Data / Enforcement and Compliance 3 (Restricted) Data Historical Delivery Data / Historical Data 2 (Varies) **Environmental Impact Assessment Data** 1 (Public) Vehicle Type and Classification Data / Vehicle Specifications Data / 2 (Varies) Vehicle Type and Specifications **Community Engagement and Feedback Data / Customer/Consumer** 2 (Varies) Preferences, Feedback and Satisfaction Surveys / Survey Data **Fuel Consumption Data** 3 (Restricted) or 2 (Varies) 2 (Varies) Geospatial Data / Geospatial and Mapping Data Logistics Centers/Warehouses Data / Warehouse and Distribution 2 (Varies) **Center Data** Supply Chain Management Data / Logistics and Supply Chain Data 3 (Restricted) Transportation Infrastructure Data 1 (Public) Road Network Data 1 (Public) **Customer Data and Information** 3 (Restricted) **Vehicle Registration Data** 3 (Restricted) **Traffic Flow and Density Data** 1 (Public) Vehicle Maintenance Records / Vehicle Maintenance and 3 (Restricted) **Depreciation Costs** 

Table 40. Level of acces for each dataset (Service Efficiency).



Fleet Management System Data	3 (Restricted)
Economic Data / Economic and Market Data / Economic Indicators	1 (Public)

This table provides a structured overview of access levels based on typical classifications for each type of dataset.

In this case, most of the datasets (44%) have restricted access. Only the 25.9% are public access.

## 4.5.1.2. Level of aggregation

In the following table, the level of aggregation of the most necessary data to calculate the KPIs and Sub-indicators for the category Service Efficiency is shown:

This categorization is based on the typical granularity and scope of the data, where:

- **3 (High):** aggregation indicates data that is more generalized or aggregated over large areas or populations.
- **2 (Medium):** aggregation indicates data that is moderately detailed, often aggregated over smaller areas or specific intervals.
- **1 (Low):** aggregation indicates highly detailed data, often at the level of individual records or events.

Table 41. Level of aggregation for each dataset (Service Efficiency).	
Data Type	Level of
	Aggregation
Time and Temporal Data	3 (High)
Vehicle Tracking Data	3 (High)
Geographic Information System (GIS) Data / GIS Software or Tools	2 (Medium)
Weather Data / Weather and Environmental Conditions Data	3 (High)
Traffic and Road Conditions Data	2 (Medium)
Delivery Time Records / GPS or Tracking Data / Delivery Time Logs /	3 (High)
Delivery time data	
Geographic Area Data / Geographic Data / Geographic and Spatial	2 (Medium)
Data / Geographic Coordinates of UL Areas	
Delivery Records / Delivery and Pickup Records	3 (High)
Customer Feedback Data / User Feedback Data / Complaints and	Low
Feedback Data	
Delivery Route Data and Address / Route and Network Data /	2 (Medium)
Transport Route Information	
Legal and Regulatory Compliance Data / Enforcement and Compliance	1 (Low)
Data	
Historical Delivery Data / Historical Data	3 (High)
Environmental Impact Assessment Data	2 (Medium)
Vehicle Type and Classification Data / Vehicle Specifications Data /	1 (Low)
Vehicle Type and Specifications	

Community Engagement and Feedback Data / Customer/Consumer Preferences, Feedback and Satisfaction Surveys / Survey Data	1 (Low)
Fuel Consumption Data	2 (Medium)
Geospatial Data / Geospatial and Mapping Data	2 (Medium)
Logistics Centers/Warehouses Data / Warehouse and Distribution Center Data	2 (Medium)
Supply Chain Management Data / Logistics and Supply Chain Data	2 (Medium)
Transportation Infrastructure Data	2 (Medium)
Road Network Data	2 (Medium)
Customer Data and Information	1 (Low)
Vehicle Registration Data	1 (Low)
Traffic Flow and Density Data	2 (Medium)
Vehicle Maintenance Records / Vehicle Maintenance and	1 (Low)
Depreciation Costs	
Fleet Management System Data	2 (Medium)
Economic Data / Economic and Market Data / Economic indicators	2 (Medium)

## 4.5.1.3. Anonymization level

In the following table, the level of anonymization of the data is shown; 48.1% have a moderate level.

Anonymization levels:

- 1 (Low): Little to no anonymization needed; data is generally non-sensitive.
- 2 (Moderate): Some anonymization required to protect privacy or sensitive details.
- **3 (High)**: Significant anonymization needed due to high sensitivity or potential for identification.

|--|

Data Type	Anonymization
	Level
Time and Temporal Data	1 (Low)
Vehicle Tracking Data	3 (High)
Geographic Information System (GIS) Data / GIS Software or Tools	2 (Moderate)
Weather Data / Weather and Environmental Conditions Data	1 (Low)
Traffic and Road Conditions Data	2 (Moderate)
Delivery Time Records / GPS or Tracking Data / Delivery Time Logs /	3 (High)
Delivery time data	
Geographic Area Data / Geographic Data / Geographic and Spatial	2 (Moderate)
Data / Geographic Coordinates of UL Areas	
Delivery Records / Delivery and Pickup Records	3 (High)
Customer Feedback Data / User Feedback Data / Complaints and	3 (High)
Feedback Data	

Delivery Route Data and Address / Route and Network Data / Transport Route Information	3 (High)
Legal and Regulatory Compliance Data / Enforcement and Compliance Data	2 (Moderate)
Historical Delivery Data / Historical Data	3 (High)
Environmental Impact Assessment Data	2 (Moderate)
Vehicle Type and Classification Data / Vehicle Specifications Data / Vehicle Type and Specifications	1 (Low)
Community Engagement and Feedback Data / Customer/Consumer Preferences, Feedback and Satisfaction Surveys / Survey Data	2 (Moderate)
Fuel Consumption Data	1 (Low)
Geospatial Data / Geospatial and Mapping Data	2 (Moderate)
Logistics Centers/Warehouses Data / Warehouse and Distribution Center Data	2 (Moderate)
Supply Chain Management Data / Logistics and Supply Chain Data	3 (High)
Transportation Infrastructure Data	2 (Moderate)
Road Network Data	2 (Moderate)
Customer Data and Information	3 (High)
Vehicle Registration Data	3 (High)
Traffic Flow and Density Data	2 (Moderate)
Vehicle Maintenance Records / Vehicle Maintenance and Depreciation Costs	1 (Low)
Fleet Management System Data	3 (High)
Economic Data / Economic and Market Data / Economic indicators	1 (Low)

### 4.5.1.4. Who has access

Table 43. Entities that have access to the data (Service Efficiency).

Data Type	Access Entities
Time and Temporal Data	Logistics Companies, Fleet Managers, Data Analysts
Vehicle Tracking Data	Logistics Companies, Fleet Managers, Security Agencies
Geographic Information System (GIS) Data / GIS Software or Tools	GIS Specialists, Urban Planners, Logistics Companies
Weather Data / Weather and Environmental Conditions Data	Meteorological Agencies, Logistics Companies, Drivers
Traffic and Road Conditions Data	Traffic Management Centers, Logistics Companies, Fleet Managers
Delivery Time Records / GPS or Tracking Data / Delivery Time Logs / Delivery Time Data	Logistics Companies, Fleet Managers, Data Analysts
Geographic Area Data / Geographic Data / Geographic and Spatial Data / Geographic Coordinates of UL Areas	GIS Specialists, Urban Planners, Logistics Companies

# Unchain

Delivery Records / Delivery and Pickup Records	Logistics Companies, Fleet Managers, Customers
Customer Feedback Data / User Feedback Data / Complaints and Feedback Data	Customer Service Teams, Logistics Companies, Quality Assurance Teams
Delivery Route Data and Address / Route and Network Data / Transport Route Information	Logistics Companies, Fleet Managers, Drivers
Legal and Regulatory Compliance Data / Enforcement and Compliance Data	Regulatory Agencies, Legal Teams, Logistics Companies
Historical Delivery Data / Historical Data	Data Analysts, Logistics Companies, Fleet Managers
Environmental Impact Assessment Data	Environmental Agencies, Logistics Companies, Urban Planners
Vehicle Type and Classification Data / Vehicle Specifications Data / Vehicle Type and Specifications	Fleet Managers, Vehicle Manufacturers, Regulatory Agencies
Community Engagement and Feedback Data / Customer/Consumer Preferences, Feedback and Satisfaction Surveys / Survey Data	Customer Service Teams, Market Researchers, Logistics Companies
Fuel Consumption Data	Fleet Managers, Logistics Companies, Environmental Agencies
Geospatial Data / Geospatial and Mapping Data	GIS Specialists, Urban Planners, Logistics Companies
Logistics Centers/Warehouses Data / Warehouse and Distribution Center Data	Logistics Companies, Warehouse Managers, Supply Chain Managers
Supply Chain Management Data / Logistics and Supply Chain Data	Supply Chain Managers, Logistics Companies, Data Analysts
Transportation Infrastructure Data	Urban Planners, Traffic Management Centers, Regulatory Agencies
Road Network Data	Traffic Management Centers, Urban Planners, Logistics Companies
Customer Data and Information	Customer Service Teams, Logistics Companies, Data Analysts
Vehicle Registration Data	Regulatory Agencies, Fleet Managers, Vehicle Manufacturers
Traffic Flow and Density Data	Traffic Management Centers, Urban Planners, Data Analysts



Vehicle Maintenance Records / Vehicle Maintenance	Fleet Managers, Maintenance
and Depreciation Costs	Teams, Logistics Companies
Fleet Management System Data	Fleet Managers, Logistics
	Companies, Data Analysts
Economic Data / Economic and Market Data /	Economic Analysts, Market
Economic Indicators	Researchers, Logistics
	Companies

85.2% of the most used data can be accessed by logistic companies, followed by fleet managers (44.4%) and urban planners (25.9%).

## 4.5.1. How Sub-indicators are calculated- Service Efficiency

In the following table, a preliminary approach is shown on how Sub-indicators related to the category Service Efficiency can be calculated:

Table 44. Sub-indicators and formulas (Service Efficiency)

Sub-indicators	Formula
136.Level of satisfaction with the urban mobility system with focus on weak users (index):	Survey results on satisfaction levels from weak users (index)
137. Customer satisfaction	(Number of satisfied distributors and customers / Total number of distributors and customers) × 100
138.Same or better level of service as existing schemes and increased acceptance: On time in full (OTIF):	(Number of deliveries on time and in full / Total number of deliveries) × 100
139. Same or better level of service as existing schemes and increased acceptance: Customer satisfaction:	Survey results on customer satisfaction levels
140.Same or better level of service as existing schemes and increased acceptance: Level of acceptance:	(Number of customers accepting the service / Total number of customers) × 100
141.End user satisfaction:	Survey results on end user satisfaction levels
142.Light commercial vehicle mileage:	∑Miles traveled by light commercial vehicles
143.Distance travelled by freight vehicles:	Traffic counts from car plates + Survey results
144.Total km traveled by LEVs and ZEVs:	$\Sigma$ Distance traveled by LEVs and ZEVs (km)
145.Vehicle-kilometers traveled:	∑(Distance traveled by each vehicle×Number of vehicles)
146.Loading and unloading in a zone: Distance covered for loading and unloading in a zone:	∑(Distance covered for one delivery/pickup × Number of activities)

unchain	
147.Delivery organization: Average distance traveled per delivery/pickup:	Total distance from delivery hub to service areas / Total number of deliveries/pickups
148.The distance of warehouse from city center:	Average distance from warehouse to city center Sum of distances from warehouses to city center / Number of warehouses
149.Route kms:	∑Kilometers of delivery routes
150. Loading/unloading time:	Empirical observation of loading/unloading duration (min)
151.Parking time for freight operations:	Observation or sensor data on parking duration for freight vehicles
152.Loading and unloading in a zone: Average number of minutes of on-street parking for delivery or pickup in a zone:	Total on-street parking time for delivery/pickup / Number of vehicles
153.Loading and unloading timeliness: Standard deviation of loading/unloading time for bulk goods:	$\sqrt{rac{\sum (x_i - ar{x})^2}{N}}$
where $x_i$ is the loading/unloading time for each 154.Loading and unloading timeliness: Standard deviation of loading/unloading time for container goods:	ach observation and $ar{x}$ is the mean loading/unloading $\sqrt{rac{\sum (x_i - ar{x})^2}{N}}$
155.Loading and unloading timeliness: Standard deviation of loading/unloading time for a package:	$\sqrt{rac{\sum (x_i - ar{x})^2}{N}}$
156.On-time deliveries: Percentage of on- time deliveries vs. total deliveries:	(Number of on-time deliveries / Total number of deliveries) × 100
157.On-time deliveries on the road:	(Number of on-time road deliveries / Total number of road deliveries) × 100
158.On-time deliveries on the rail:	(Number of on-time rail deliveries / Total number of rail deliveries) × 100
159. On-time deliveries on inland waterways:	(Number of on-time waterway deliveries / Total number of waterway deliveries) × 100
160.Reliability of just-in-time freight deliveries:	(Number of just-in-time deliveries / Total number of planned deliveries) × 100
161.Delivery on time:	(Number of on-time deliveriesTotal number of deliveries) × 100
162.Capacity utilization:	(Space Used / Total Space) × 100
162 Load factors	Load Factor (Weight) -

(Weight of Transported Cargo / Total Weight Capacity)×100 Or



	Load Factor (Volume) =
	(Volume of Transported Cargo /
	Total Volume Capacity) × 100
164.Increased utilization of load capacity of vehicles:	(Average load / Vehicle capacity) × 100
165.Increased utilization of load capacity of vehicles: Integration of goods and passenger flows:	Number of integrated services
166. Load percentage:	Number of integrated services
167.Low emission delivery:	Distance traveled by low emission vehicles / Total
-	distance traveled) × 100
168.Modal split: Percentage of total inland freight ton-km:	(Freight ton-km by mode / Total freight ton-km) × 100
169.Modal Split goods:	(Goods volume by modeTotal goods volume) × 100
170.Number of freight movements:	Total freight vehicles passing reference points / Time period
171.Number of goods movements:	Total goods (parcels, tons) transported / Time period
172.Modal split (for freight transport):	(Freight vehicle kilometers by mode / Total freight vehicle kilometers)×100
173.Modal split (freight tonnes	(Freight tonne kilometers by mode / Total freight
kilometers):	tonne kilometers) × 100
174.Overall transited cargo in the city split by transport mode:	Cargo volume split by mode (road, rail, air, water)
175.Type of goods delivered:	Classification of delivered goods by type
176.Modal split:	(Freight transport by mode / Total freight transport) × 100
177.Type of goods:	Classification of goods by type
178.Freight logistic intensity:	Traffic counts through car plates
179.Speed (within urban core during peak hours):	Average speed per delivery = Total distance traveled / Total time excluding stops
180.Delivery productivity:	Total tons delivered / Total kilometers traveled
Average tons delivered per km=	
181.Delivery productivity:	Total number of deliveries /Total operational time
Average deliveries per day =	
182. Delivery organization:	Average deliveries per round = Total deliveriesTotal
	delivery rounds
183. Increased speed of delivery:	Time per delivery = Total delivery timeTotal
	deliveries
184.Increased speed of delivery:	Number of delivery attempts = Total number of
	delivery attempts

185.More efficient use of vehicle fleet:	Deliveries per tour = Total deliveries / Total tours
186.More efficient use of vehicle fleet:	Dimension weight per day=Total dimension weight / Total days
187.More efficient use of vehicle fleet:	Drop density per vehicle = (Number of drops / Total vehicle capacity) x 100
188.More efficient use of vehicle fleet	(Total days in operation / Total vehicles) ×100
189.Number of deliveries:	Total number of deliveries
190.Total freight per day:	Total weight of freight delivered per day
191.Packages per month:	Total number of packages delivered /Total months
192.Number of stops per day:	Total stops / Total days
193.Deliveries per stop:	Total deliveries / Total stops
194.Time to delivery:	Total delivery time / Total deliveries
195. Economically sustainable business	Last mile delivery cost per delivery=Total last mile
models: Last mile delivery cost per	delivery cost / Total deliveries/pickups
196 Economically sustainable business	Distribution and warehouse cost per delivery = Total
models: Distribution and warehouse cost	distribution and warehouse cost / Total
per delivery / pick up:	deliveries/pickups
197.Business models: Investment costs for	Investment costs for the city = Total investment cost
the city:	
198.Percentage of total vehicle-kilometers	Percentage of empty vehicle-kilometers= (Total
that run empty	empty kilometers / Total vehicle kilometers) × 100
199.Recipient awareness of sustainable	Recipient awareness index = Survey results on
delivery options:	recipient awareness
200.Recipient willingness to pay for	Survey results on willingness to pay
sustainable delivery:	(*) Note: From 190 to 200 all sensitive data
201.Hours that vehicles are in service:	Hours in service = ∑Hours vehicles are active over 24 hours
202.% delivery vehicles from 22h to	%delivery vehicles from 22h to 7h = (Number of
7h/total:	vehicles active from 22h to 7h / Total number of vehicles) × 100
203.Average age of freight vehicles:	∑Age of each vehicle / Total number of vehicles
204.Warehouse utilization:	(Total utilized space / Total warehouse space) × 100
205.Occupancy time of hubs:	Total time hubs are occupied
206.Occupancy status of loading and	Occupancy status = Percentage of time parking
207.Use of loading areas:	Percentage of time loading areas are used
208.UL areas occupation:	Percentage of time UL areas are occupied

209.Parking slots occupancy:	Percentage of time parking slots are occupied
210.Parking lots occupancy:	Percentage of time parking lots are occupied
211. Occupancy time loading / unloading bays	Percentage of time loading/unloading bays are occupied
212.Privacy:	Level of data protection and confidentiality measures
213.Time to find parking:	Total time spent finding parking / Number of parking attempts
214.Time lost to find parking:	Total additional time spent due to parking unavailability
215. Time spent finding parking:	Totaltime spent finding parking
216.Reservation of parking areas:	Percentage of reserved parking areas
217.Constraints identified during the last mile stage:	List and analysis of constraints encountered

## 5. KPIs and KERs

This section relates the KERs to the KPIs analyzed earlier, so indirectly we can also identify the most associated Sub-indicators, how they are calculated, and the datasets linked to them.

- First, the methodology, sample, and participant profile are presented.
- Second, the analysis of the KERs as a whole.
- Finally, the analysis of each KER: 4, 5, 6, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, and 13.

## 5.1.1. Methogology to asosiate KERs and KPIs

This section presents the results of the work with the project partners during the meeting in Madrid. First, the KERs were associated with the KPIs through a questionnaire (Annex 8.5). Second, we worked on defining the datasets needed for each KER. The participants in the meeting and questionnaire comprise a sample of 29 people with the following professional profiles:



### Figure 16. Profile of participants.

## 5.1.2. KERs and KPIs

If we analyze all the KERs together (KER 4, 5, 6, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, and 13), the KPIs chosen by more than 40% and therefore the most important are:

- KPI\_8: Carbon footprint of deliveries (57.89%).
- KPI\_11: Number of loading/unloading areas public space dedicated to urban logistics (56.14%).
- KPI\_22: Soft violations (unauthorized parking in loading zones.) (52.63%).
- KPI\_19: Congestion (51.75%).
- KPI\_18: Percentage of freight vehicles in total vehicular traffic (50%).
- KPI\_1: Number of sustainable commercial or freight vehicles (LEV, ZEV) (42.98%).
- KPI\_3: GHG emissions (42.12%).

The most important KPIs are part of the Traffic Management category (38.25%) and Urban Planning category (25.77%).





Figure 17. Categories to which the KPIs most associated with the KERs belong

# **Unchain**



Figure 18. KPIs most associated with the KERs.



## 5.1.3. KER 4

The participants in the workshop and project partners associate KER 4 primarily with the following KPIs, with an association above 40%:

- KPI\_10: Number of logistic centres, platforms, hubs, lockers (100%)
- KPI\_18: Percentage of freight vehicles in total vehicular traffic (84.62%)
- KPI\_19: Congestion (76.92%)
- KPI\_2: Fuel consumption (61.54%)
- KPI\_8: Carbon footprint of deliveries (61.54%)
- KPI\_17: N. of commercial outlets having a cargo area within a 75 m radius. (46.15%)
- KPI\_24: Km traveled by commercial vehicles (42.86%), and
- KPI\_37: Occupancy of (un)loading/parking areas (42.86%).



Figure 19. Categories to which the KPIs most associated with the KER 4.

The most important KPIs are part of the Traffic Management category (38.46%) and Urban Planning category (25.0%)

URBAN PLANNING (LAND USE, INFRASTRUCTURE, PUBLIC PARTICIPATION)	KPI_10: Number of logistic centres, platforms, hubs, lockers	100.00%
TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT	KPI_18: Percentage of freight vehicles in total vehicular traffic	84.62%
TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT	KPI_19: Congestion	76.92%
ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL IMPACT	KPI_2: Fuel consumption	61.54%
ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL IMPACT	KPI_8: Carbon footprint of deliveries	61.54%

Table 45. KPIs most associated with KER 4.



URBAN PLANNING (LAND USE,	KDL 17: N. of commercial outlets having a correct	
INFRASTRUCTURE, PUBLIC	KPI_17: N. OF commercial outlets having a cargo	46.15%
PARTICIPATION)	area within a 75 m radius.	
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_24: Km traveled by commercial vehicles	42.86%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI 37: Occupancy of (un)loading/parking areas	42.86%
ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL		
IMPACT	KPI_3: GHG emissions	38.46%
URBAN PLANNING (LAND USE,	KDL 11. Number of loading (unloading areas	
INFRASTRUCTURE, PUBLIC	KPI_II: Number of loading/unioading areas -	38.46%
PARTICIPATION)	public space dedicated to urban logistics	
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_30: Costs of the last mile per delivery/ pick up	28.57%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_26: Reliability of just-in-time freight deliveries	21.43%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_36: Average utilization of the warehouse or distribution centers	21.43%
ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL	KPI_1: Number of sustainable commercial or	15 200/
IMPACT	freight vehicles (LEV, ZEV)	15.38%
	KPI_22: Soft violations (unauthorized parking in	15 200/
	loading zones)	13.30%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_29: Freight logistic intensity // delivery	1/1 29%
	productivity	17.2370
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_40: Reservation of parking areas	14.29%
ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL	KPI_5: Noise level	7.69%
ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL	KPI 9: Nitrogen Oxide (NO2)	7.69%
IMPACT		
URBAN PLANNING (LAND USE,		7.000/
INFRASTRUCTURE, PUBLIC	KPI_12: Policy related	7.69%
UKDAN PLANNING (LAND USE,	KDL 12: Stakeholder engagement	7 60%
	KFI_13. Stakeholder engagement	7.09%
	KPL 20: Freight-related accidents (accidents	
TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT	people injured, vehicles involved, etc.)	7.69%
	KPI 21: Severe violations (Speed violation,	
TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT	drivers testing positive on alcohol or drugs)	7.69%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_23: Customer satisfaction with the delivery	7.14%
	KPI_25: Loading/unloading time - time per	7 1 40/
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	delivery	7.14%
	KPI_27: Increased utilization of load capacity of	7 1/0/
	vehicles	/.14/0
	KPI_32: Recipient awareness of sustainable	
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	delivery options (index) // Recipient willingness	7.14%
	to pay for sustainable delivery (index)	
	KPI_33: Hours that vehicles are in service, e.g.,	
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	deliveries, pick ups, transporting, weighting,	7.14%
	loading/unloading over 24 hours	



SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_35: Average age of freight vehicles	7.14%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_39: Time spent to find parking/(un)loading area	7.14%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_41: Constraints identified during the last mile stage	7.14%

## 5.1.4. KER 5

The participants in the workshop and project partners associate KER 5 primarily with the following KPIs, with an association above 40%:

- KPI\_11: Number of loading/unloading areas public space dedicated to urban logistics (93.33%).
- KPI\_22: Soft violations (unauthorized parking in loading zones...) (75.00%).
- KPI\_19: Congestion (58.33%).
- KPI\_8: Carbon footprint of deliveries (57.14%).
- KPI\_24: Km traveled by commercial vehicles (42.86%).
- KPI\_17: N. of commercial outlets having a cargo area within a 75 m radius (40.00%).



Figure 20. Categories to which the KPIs most associated with the KER 5.

The most important KPIs are part of the Traffic Management category (36.67%) and Urban Planning category (22.5%).



Table 46. KPIs most associated with KER 5.		
URBAN PLANNING (LAND USE, INFRASTRUCTURE, PUBLIC PARTICIPATION)	KPI_11: Number of loading/unloading areas - public space dedicated to urban logistics	93.33%
TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT	KPI_22: Soft violations (unauthorized parking in loading zones)	75.00%
TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT	KPI_19: Congestion	58.33%
ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL	KPI_8: Carbon footprint of deliveries	57.14%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_24: Km traveled by commercial vehicles	42.86%
URBAN PLANNING (LAND USE, INFRASTRUCTURE, PUBLIC PARTICIPATION)	KPI_17: N. of commercial outlets having a cargo area within a 75 m radius.	40.00%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_23: Customer satisfaction with the delivery	35.71%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_39: Time spent to find parking/(un)loading area	35.71%
TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT	KPI_18: Percentage of freight vehicles in total vehicular traffic	33.33%
ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL	KPI_2: Fuel consumption	28.57%
ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL	KPI_3: GHG emissions	28.57%
ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL	KPI_4: Particles (PM2.5 and/or PM10)	28.57%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_25: Loading/unloading time - time per delivery	28.57%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_37: Occupancy of (un)loading/parking areas	28.57%
URBAN PLANNING (LAND USE, INFRASTRUCTURE, PUBLIC PARTICIPATION)	KPI_10: Number of logistic centres, platforms, hubs, lockers	26.67%
ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL	KPI_5: Noise level	21.43%
TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT	KPI_20: Freight-related accidents (accidents, people injured, vehicles involved, etc.)	16.67%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_29: Freight logistic intensity // delivery productivity	14.29%
ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL	KPI_1: Number of sustainable commercial or freight vehicles (LEV, ZEV)	7.14%
ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL	KPI_7: Employment rate and annual average income for freight employees in city	7.14%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_30: Costs of the last mile per delivery/ pick up	7.14%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_40: Reservation of parking areas	7.14%
URBAN PLANNING (LAND USE, INFRASTRUCTURE, PUBLIC PARTICIPATION)	KPI_12: Policy related	6.67%



URBAN PLANNING (LAND USE, INFRASTRUCTURE, PUBLIC PARTICIPATION)	KPI_13: Stakeholder engagement	6.67%
URBAN PLANNING (LAND USE, INFRASTRUCTURE, PUBLIC PARTICIPATION)	KPI_15: Time window in city for urban logistics	6.67%

## 5.1.5. KER 6

The participants in the workshop and project partners associate KER 6 primarily with the following KPIs, with an association above 40%:

- KPI\_18: Percentage of freight vehicles in total vehicular traffic (92.86%).
- KPI\_12: Policy related (66.67%).
- KPI\_19: Congestion (64.29%).
- KPI\_1: Number of sustainable commercial or freight vehicles (LEV, ZEV) (62.50%).
- KPI\_8: Carbon footprint of deliveries (56.25%).
- KPI\_15: Time window in city for urban logistics (53.33%).
- KPI\_16: Revenue from LEZ access fee (EUR). (53.33%).
- KPI\_34: Night deliveries (40.0%).



Figure 21. Categories to which the KPIs most associated with the KER 6.

The most important KPIs are part of the Traffic Management category (38.57%) and Urban Planning category (29.17%).



Table 47. KPIs most associated with KER 6.

TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT	KPI_18: Percentage of freight vehicles in total	92.86%
	venicular traffic	
URBAN PLANNING (LAND USE,	KPL 12 Policy related	66 670/
INFRASTRUCTURE, PUBLIC	KPI_12: Policy related	66.67%
	KPL 10. Concertion	C4 200/
	KPI_19: Congestion	04.29%
ENVIKUNIVIENTAL AND SOCIAL	KPI_1: Number of sustainable commercial or	62.50%
	reight vehicles (LEV, ZEV)	
IMPACT	KPI_8: Carbon footprint of deliveries	56.25%
URBAN PLANNING (LAND USE.		
INFRASTRUCTURE. PUBLIC	KPI 15: Time window in city for urban logistics	53.33%
PARTICIPATION)		
URBAN PLANNING (LAND USE,		
INFRASTRUCTURE, PUBLIC	KPI_16: Revenue from LEZ access fee (EUR)	53.33%
PARTICIPATION)		
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_34: Night deliveries	40.00%
ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL	KPL 3: GHG emissions	37 50%
IMPACT		37.3070
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_24: Km traveled by commercial vehicles	33.33%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_25: Loading/unloading time - time per	26.67%
ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL		
IMPACT	KPI_2: Fuel consumption	25.00%
	KPI_21: Severe violations (Speed violation,	24 420/
	drivers testing positive on alcohol or drugs)	21.43%
URBAN PLANNING (LAND USE,	KPL 10: Number of logistic centres platforms	
INFRASTRUCTURE, PUBLIC	hubs lockers	20.00%
PARTICIPATION)	1105, 1000015	
URBAN PLANNING (LAND USE,	KPL 11: Number of loading/unloading areas -	
INFRASTRUCTURE, PUBLIC	public space dedicated to urban logistics	20.00%
PARTICIPATION)		
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_39: Time spent to find parking/(un)loading	20.00%
	area	20.00%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_40: Reservation of parking areas	20.00%
TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT	KPI_22: Soft violations (unauthorized parking in	14.29%
	loading zones)	
UKDAN PLANNING (LAND USE,	KDL 12: Stakeholder engagement	12 220/
	KPI_15. Stakeholder engagement	15.55%
	KPL 23: Customer satisfaction with the delivery	13 33%
	KPL 27: Increased utilization of load canacity of	10.00/0
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	vehicles	13.33%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_28: Modal split	13.33%
	KPI_30: Costs of the last mile per delivery/ pick	12 220/
	up	13.33%



SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_35: Average age of freight vehicles	13.33%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY KPI_36: Average utilization of the warehouse or distribution centers		13.33%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_37: Occupancy of (un)loading/parking areas 13.	
URBAN PLANNING (LAND USE, INFRASTRUCTURE, PUBLIC PARTICIPATION)	KPI_17: N. of commercial outlets having a cargo area within a 75 m radius.	6.67%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_41: Constraints identified during the last mile stage	6.67%
ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL IMPACT	KPI_5: Noise level	6.25%

### 5.1.6. KER 8

KER7 is not included in the analysis because it is a KER that aims to: "KER7. Knowledge powerhouse for urban logistics UNCHAIN will set and maintain a knowledge hub to capitalize on expertise from the consortium and its networks (e.g., CIVITAS), and the international state-of-the-art. The platform will consolidate the R&I findings of the living labs and will set up the mechanisms to facilitate capacity building, interactive knowledge sharing, and good practices exchange among project partners, SEG members and external experts. ..."

The participants in the workshop and project partners associate KER 8 primarily with the following KPIs, with an association above 40%:

- KPI\_22: Soft violations (unauthorized parking in loading zones...) (78.57%).
- KPI\_1: Number of sustainable commercial or freight vehicles (LEV, ZEV) (71.43%).
- KPI\_11: Number of loading/unloading areas public space dedicated to urban logistics (71.43%).
- KPI\_15: Time window in city for urban logistics (57.14%).
- KPI\_3: GHG emissions (50.0%).
- KPI\_19: Congestion (50.0%).
- KPI\_24: Km traveled by commercial vehicles (42.86%).





Figure 22. Categories to which the KPIs most associated with the KER 8.

The most important KPIs are part of the Traffic Management category (35.71%) and Urban Planning category (25.0%).

Table 48.	KPIs	most	associated	with	KER 8.

TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT	KPI_22: Soft violations (unauthorized parking in loading zones)	78.57%
ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL IMPACT	KPI_1: Number of sustainable commercial or freight vehicles (LEV, ZEV)	71.43%
URBAN PLANNING (LAND USE, INFRASTRUCTURE, PUBLIC PARTICIPATION)	KPI_11: Number of loading/unloading areas - public space dedicated to urban logistics	71.43%
URBAN PLANNING (LAND USE, INFRASTRUCTURE, PUBLIC PARTICIPATION)	KPI_15: Time window in city for urban logistics	57.14%
ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL IMPACT	KPI_3: GHG emissions	50.00%
TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT	KPI_19: Congestion	50.00%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_24: Km traveled by commercial vehicles	42.86%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_23: Customer satisfaction with the delivery	35.71%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_37: Occupancy of (un)loading/parking areas	35.71%
ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL IMPACT	KPI_2: Fuel consumption	28.57%
ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL IMPACT	KPI_8: Carbon footprint of deliveries	28.57%
TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT	KPI_18: Percentage of freight vehicles in total vehicular traffic	28.57%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_39: Time spent to find parking/(un)loading area	28.57%



URBAN PLANNING (LAND USE, INFRASTRUCTURE, PUBLIC PARTICIPATION)	KPI_12: Policy related	21.43%
URBAN PLANNING (LAND USE, INFRASTRUCTURE, PUBLIC PARTICIPATION)	KPI_17: N. of commercial outlets having a cargo area within a 75 m radius.	21.43%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_25: Loading/unloading time - time per delivery	21.43%
URBAN PLANNING (LAND USE, INFRASTRUCTURE, PUBLIC PARTICIPATION)	KPI_10: Number of logistic centres, platforms, hubs, lockers	14.29%
URBAN PLANNING (LAND USE, INFRASTRUCTURE, PUBLIC PARTICIPATION)	KPI_13: Stakeholder engagement	14.29%
TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT	KPI_20: Freight-related accidents (accidents, people injured, vehicles involved, etc.)	14.29%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_30: Costs of the last mile per delivery/ pick up	14.29%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_40: Reservation of parking areas	14.29%
ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL IMPACT	KPI_4: Particles (PM2.5 and/or PM10)	7.14%
TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT	KPI_21: Severe violations (Speed violation, drivers testing positive on alcohol or drugs)	7.14%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_33: Hours that vehicles are in service, e.g. deliveries, pick ups, transporting, weighting, loading/unloading over 24 hours	7.14%

## 5.1.7. KER 9

The participants in the workshop and project partners associate KER 9 primarily with the following KPIs, with an association above 40%:

- KPI\_11: Number of loading/unloading areas public space dedicated to urban logistics (100.0%).
- KPI\_1: Number of sustainable commercial or freight vehicles (LEV, ZEV) (90.91%).
- KPI\_22: Soft violations (unauthorized parking in loading zones...) (72.73%).
- KPI\_37: Occupancy of (un)loading/parking areas (60.0%).
- KPI\_3: GHG emissions (54.55%).
- KPI\_15: Time window in city for urban logistics (54.55%).
- KPI\_19: Congestion (54.55%).
- KPI\_18: Percentage of freight vehicles in total vehicular traffic (45.45%).
- KPI\_39: Time spent to find parking/(un)loading area (40.0%).





Figure 23. Categories to which the KPIs most associated with the KER 9.

The most important KPIs are part of the Traffic Management category (36.36%) and Urban Planning category (28.41%).

Tuble 49. KFIS MOSt ussociated with KEN s	7.	
URBAN PLANNING (LAND USE, INFRASTRUCTURE, PUBLIC PARTICIPATION)	KPI_11: Number of loading/unloading areas - public space dedicated to urban logistics	100.00%
ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL IMPACT	KPI_1: Number of sustainable commercial or freight vehicles (LEV, ZEV)	90.91%
TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT	KPI_22: Soft violations (unauthorized parking in loading zones)	72.73%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_37: Occupancy of (un)loading/parking areas	60.00%
ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL IMPACT	KPI_3: GHG emissions	54.55%
URBAN PLANNING (LAND USE, INFRASTRUCTURE, PUBLIC PARTICIPATION)	KPI_15: Time window in city for urban logistics	54.55%
TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT	KPI_19: Congestion	54.55%
TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT	KPI_18: Percentage of freight vehicles in total vehicular traffic	45.45%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_39: Time spent to find parking/(un)loading area	40.00%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_23: Customer satisfaction with the delivery	30.00%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_25: Loading/unloading time - time per delivery	30.00%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_40: Reservation of parking areas	30.00%
URBAN PLANNING (LAND USE, INFRASTRUCTURE, PUBLIC PARTICIPATION)	KPI_10: Number of logistic centres, platforms, hubs, lockers	27.27%

Table 49. KPIs most associated with KER 9.



URBAN PLANNING (LAND USE, INFRASTRUCTURE, PUBLIC PARTICIPATION)	KPI_13: Stakeholder engagement	27.27%
ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL IMPACT	KPI_5: Noise level	18.18%
ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL IMPACT	KPI_8: Carbon footprint of deliveries	18.18%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_24: Km traveled by commercial vehicles	10.00%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_27: Increased utilization of load capacity of vehicles	10.00%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_33: Hours that vehicles are in service, e.g. deliveries, pick ups, transporting, weighting, loading/unloading over 24 hours	10.00%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_35: Average age of freight vehicles	10.00%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_36: Average utilization of the warehouse or distribution centers	10.00%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_38: Privacy	10.00%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_41: Constraints identified during the last mile stage	10.00%
ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL IMPACT	KPI_2: Fuel consumption	9.09%
ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL IMPACT	KPI_4: Particles (PM2.5 and/or PM10)	9.09%
URBAN PLANNING (LAND USE, INFRASTRUCTURE, PUBLIC PARTICIPATION)	KPI_12: Policy related	9.09%
URBAN PLANNING (LAND USE, INFRASTRUCTURE, PUBLIC PARTICIPATION)	KPI_17: N. of commercial outlets having a cargo area within a 75 m radius.	9.09%
TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT	KPI_20: Freight-related accidents (accidents, people injured, vehicles involved, etc.)	9.09%

## 5.1.8. KER 10

The participants in the workshop and project partners associate KER 10 primarily with the following KPIs, with an association above 40%:

- KPI\_11: Number of loading/unloading areas public space dedicated to urban logistics (63.64%).
- KPI\_8: Carbon footprint of deliveries (62.5%).
- KPI\_18: Percentage of freight vehicles in total vehicular traffic (60.0%).
- KPI\_19: Congestion (60.0%).
- KPI\_22: Soft violations (unauthorized parking in loading zones...) (50.0%).
- KPI\_39: Time spent to find parking/(un)loading area (44.44%).





Figure 24. Categories to which the KPIs most associated with the KER 10.

The most important KPIs are part of the Traffic Management category (38.0%) and Enviroment and social impact (20.83%).

lable 50. KPIS most associated with KER 10.		
URBAN PLANNING (LAND USE, INFRASTRUCTURE, PUBLIC PARTICIPATION)	KPI_11: Number of loading/unloading areas - public space dedicated to urban logistics	63.64%
ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL IMPACT	KPI_8: Carbon footprint of deliveries	62.50%
TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT	KPI_18: Percentage of freight vehicles in total vehicular traffic	60.00%
TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT	KPI_19: Congestion	60.00%
TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT	KPI_22: Soft violations (unauthorized parking in loading zones)	50.00%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_39: Time spent to find parking/(un)loading area	44.44%
ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL IMPACT	KPI_1: Number of sustainable commercial or freight vehicles (LEV, ZEV)	37.50%
ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL IMPACT	KPI_3: GHG emissions	37.50%
URBAN PLANNING (LAND USE, INFRASTRUCTURE, PUBLIC PARTICIPATION)	KPI_10: Number of logistic centres, platforms, hubs, lockers	36.36%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_37: Occupancy of (un)loading/parking areas	33.33%
URBAN PLANNING (LAND USE, INFRASTRUCTURE, PUBLIC PARTICIPATION)	KPI_17: N. of commercial outlets having a cargo area within a 75 m radius.	27.27%
ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL IMPACT	KPI_2: Fuel consumption	25.00%

. . . . . . . . . .



SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_29: Freight logistic intensity // delivery productivity	22.22%
URBAN PLANNING (LAND USE, INFRASTRUCTURE, PUBLIC PARTICIPATION)	KPI_15: Time window in city for urban logistics	18.18%
ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL IMPACT	KPI_5: Noise level	12.50%
ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL IMPACT	KPI_6: Gender/ethnicity of workers in freight-related industries & occupations	12.50%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_23: Customer satisfaction with the delivery	11.11%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_24: Km traveled by commercial vehicles	11.11%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_26: Reliability of just-in-time freight deliveries	11.11%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_30: Costs of the last mile per delivery/ pick up	11.11%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_31: Percentage of total vehicle-kilometers that run empty	11.11%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_33: Hours that vehicles are in service, e.g. deliveries, pick ups, transporting, weighting, loading/unloading over 24 hours	11.11%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_36: Average utilization of the warehouse or distribution centers	11.11%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_40: Reservation of parking areas	11.11%
TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT	KPI_20: Freight-related accidents (accidents, people injured, vehicles involved, etc.)	10.00%
TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT	KPI_21: Severe violations (Speed violation, drivers testing positive on alcohol or drugs)	10.00%
URBAN PLANNING (LAND USE, INFRASTRUCTURE, PUBLIC PARTICIPATION)	KPI_12: Policy related	9.09%
URBAN PLANNING (LAND USE, INFRASTRUCTURE, PUBLIC PARTICIPATION)	KPI_14: Energy use and infrastructure available at warehouses, microplatforms, etc	9.09%

## 5.1.9. KER 11

The participants in the workshop and project partners associate KER 11 primarily with the following KPIs, with an association above 40%:

- KPI\_8: Carbon footprint of deliveries (90.0%).
- KPI\_22: Soft violations (unauthorized parking in loading zones...) (77.78%).
- KPI\_15: Time window in city for urban logistics (72.73%).
- KPI\_23: Customer satisfaction with the delivery (66.67%).
- KPI\_24: km traveled by commercial vehicles (55.56%).
- KPI\_12: Policy related (45.45%).
- KPI\_1: Number of sustainable commercial or freight vehicles (LEV, ZEV) (40.0%).
- KPI\_3: GHG emissions (40.0%).





Figure 25. Categories to which the KPIs most associated with the KER 11.

The most important KPIs are part of the Traffic Management category (40.0%) and Urban Planning (25.0%).

Table 51. KPIs most associated with KER 11.		
ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL	KPI_8: Carbon footprint of deliveries	90.00%
TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT	KPI_22: Soft violations (unauthorized parking in loading zones)	77.78%
URBAN PLANNING (LAND USE,		
INFRASTRUCTURE, PUBLIC	KPI_15: Time window in city for urban logistics	72.73%
PARTICIPATION)		
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_23: Customer satisfaction with the delivery	66.67%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_24: Km traveled by commercial vehicles	55.56%
URBAN PLANNING (LAND USE, INFRASTRUCTURE, PUBLIC	KPI_12: Policy related	45.45%
PARTICIPATION)		
ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL	KPI_1: Number of sustainable commercial or freight vehicles (LEV, ZEV)	40.00%
ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL IMPACT	KPI_3: GHG emissions	40.00%
TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT	KPI_19: Congestion	33.33%
TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT	KPI_20: Freight-related accidents (accidents, people injured, vehicles involved, etc.)	33.33%
TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT	KPI_21: Severe violations (Speed violation, drivers testing positive on alcohol or drugs)	33.33%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_27: Increased utilization of load capacity of vehicles	33.33%

Ð	unc	hain
---	-----	------

URBAN PLANNING (LAND USE, INFRASTRUCTURE, PUBLIC PARTICIPATION)	KPI_16: Revenue from LEZ access fee (EUR)	27.27%
TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT	KPI_18: Percentage of freight vehicles in total vehicular traffic	22.22%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_34: Night deliveries	22.22%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_35: Average age of freight vehicles	22.22%
URBAN PLANNING (LAND USE, INFRASTRUCTURE, PUBLIC PARTICIPATION)	KPI_10: Number of logistic centres, platforms, hubs, lockers	18.18%
URBAN PLANNING (LAND USE, INFRASTRUCTURE, PUBLIC PARTICIPATION)	KPI_14: Energy use and infrastructure available at warehouses, microplatforms, etc	18.18%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_25: Loading/unloading time - time per delivery	11.11%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_31: Percentage of total vehicle-kilometers that run empty	11.11%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_33: Hours that vehicles are in service, e.g. deliveries, pick ups, transporting, weighting, loading/unloading over 24 hours	11.11%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_40: Reservation of parking areas	11.11%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_41: Constraints identified during the last mile stage	11.11%
ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL IMPACT	KPI_2: Fuel consumption	10.00%
ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL IMPACT	KPI_4: Particles (PM2.5 and/or PM10)	10.00%
URBAN PLANNING (LAND USE, INFRASTRUCTURE, PUBLIC PARTICIPATION)	KPI_11: Number of loading/unloading areas - public space dedicated to urban logistics	9.09%
URBAN PLANNING (LAND USE, INFRASTRUCTURE, PUBLIC PARTICIPATION)	KPI_13: Stakeholder engagement	9.09%

## 5.1.10.KER 12

The participants in the workshop and project partners associate KER 12 primarily with the following KPIs, with an association above 40%:

- KPI\_24: km traveled by commercial vehicles (100.0%).
- KPI\_3: GHG emissions (69.23%).
- KPI\_8: Carbon footprint of deliveries (69.23%).
- KPI\_15: Time window in city for urban logistics (50.0%).
- KPI\_20: Freight-related accidents (accidents, people injured, vehicles involved, etc.) (50.0%).
- KPI\_11: Number of loading/unloading areas public space dedicated to urban logistics (41.67%).



- KPI\_19: Congestion (41.67%).
- KPI\_21: Severe violations (Speed violation, drivers testing positive on alcohol or drugs) (41.67%).



Figure 26. Categories to which the KPIs most associated with the KER 12.

The most important KPIs are part of the Traffic Management category (36.67%) and Environmental and social impact (29.06%).

Table 52. KPIs most associated with KER 12.	
---	--

SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_24: Km traveled by commercial vehicles	100.00%
ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL IMPACT	KPI_3: GHG emissions	69.23%
ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL IMPACT	KPI_8: Carbon footprint of deliveries	69.23%
URBAN PLANNING (LAND USE, INFRASTRUCTURE, PUBLIC PARTICIPATION)	KPI_15: Time window in city for urban logistics	50.00%
TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT	KPI_20: Freight-related accidents (accidents, people injured, vehicles involved, etc.)	50.00%
URBAN PLANNING (LAND USE, INFRASTRUCTURE, PUBLIC PARTICIPATION)	KPI_11: Number of loading/unloading areas - public space dedicated to urban logistics	41.67%
TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT	KPI_19: Congestion	41.67%
TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT	KPI_21: Severe violations (Speed violation, drivers testing positive on alcohol or drugs)	41.67%
ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL	KPI_2: Fuel consumption	38.46%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_30: Costs of the last mile per delivery/ pick up	36.36%



URBAN PLANNING (LAND USE, INFRASTRUCTURE, PUBLIC PARTICIPATION)	KPI_10: Number of logistic centres, platforms, hubs, lockers	33.33%
URBAN PLANNING (LAND USE, INFRASTRUCTURE, PUBLIC PARTICIPATION)	KPI_12: Policy related	33.33%
ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL IMPACT	KPI_1: Number of sustainable commercial or freight vehicles (LEV, ZEV)	30.77%
TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT	KPI_18: Percentage of freight vehicles in total vehicular traffic	25.00%
TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT	KPI_22: Soft violations (unauthorized parking in loading zones)	25.00%
ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL IMPACT	KPI_4: Particles (PM2.5 and/or PM10)	23.08%
ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL IMPACT	KPI_9: Nitrogen Oxide (NO2)	23.08%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_23: Customer satisfaction with the delivery	18.18%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_25: Loading/unloading time - time per delivery	18.18%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_33: Hours that vehicles are in service, e.g. deliveries, pick ups, transporting, weighting, loading/unloading over 24 hours	18.18%
URBAN PLANNING (LAND USE, INFRASTRUCTURE, PUBLIC PARTICIPATION)	KPI_14: Energy use and infrastructure available at warehouses, microplatforms, etc	16.67%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_27: Increased utilization of load capacity of vehicles	9.09%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_28: Modal split	9.09%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_41: Constraints identified during the last mile stage	9.09%
URBAN PLANNING (LAND USE, INFRASTRUCTURE, PUBLIC PARTICIPATION)	KPI_13: Stakeholder engagement	8.33%
URBAN PLANNING (LAND USE, INFRASTRUCTURE, PUBLIC PARTICIPATION)	KPI_16: Revenue from LEZ access fee (EUR)	8.33%
ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL	KPI_5: Noise level	7.69%

## 5.1.11.KER 13

Finally, the participants in the workshop and project partners associate KER 13 primarily with the following KPIs, with a correlation above 40%:

- KPI\_22: Soft violations (unauthorized parking in loading zones...) (80.0%).
- KPI\_8: Carbon footprint of deliveries (69.23%).
- KPI\_18: Percentage of freight vehicles in total vehicular traffic (56.25%).

- KPI\_11: Number of loading/unloading areas public space dedicated to urban logistics (47.06%).
- KPI\_37: Occupancy of (un)loading/parking areas (43.75%).
- KPI\_39: Time spent to find parking/(un)loading area (43.75%).
- KPI\_17: N. of commercial outlets having a cargo area within a 75 m radius. (41.18%).
- KPI\_2: Fuel consumption (40.0%).



Figure 27. Categories to which the KPIs most associated with the KER 13.

The most important KPIs are part of the Traffic Management category (36.25%) and Urban Planning (22.79%).

Table 53. KPIS most associated with KER 13.		
TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT	KPI_22: Soft violations (unauthorized parking in loading zones)	81.25%
ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL IMPACT	KPI_8: Carbon footprint of deliveries	80.00%
TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT	KPI_18: Percentage of freight vehicles in total vehicular traffic	56.25%
URBAN PLANNING (LAND USE, INFRASTRUCTURE, PUBLIC PARTICIPATION)	KPI_11: Number of loading/unloading areas - public space dedicated to urban logistics	47.06%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_37: Occupancy of (un)loading/parking areas	43.75%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_39: Time spent to find parking/(un)loading area	43.75%
URBAN PLANNING (LAND USE, INFRASTRUCTURE, PUBLIC PARTICIPATION)	KPI_17: N. of commercial outlets having a cargo area within a 75 m radius.	41.18%
ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL IMPACT	KPI_2: Fuel consumption	40.00%
TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT	KPI_19: Congestion	37.50%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_23: Customer satisfaction with the delivery	37.50%

Table 53. KPIs most associated with KER 13.



URBAN PLANNING (LAND USE, INFRASTRUCTURE, PUBLIC PARTICIPATION)	KPI_10: Number of logistic centres, platforms, hubs, lockers	35.29%
ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL IMPACT	KPI_1: Number of sustainable commercial or freight vehicles (LEV, ZEV)	33.33%
URBAN PLANNING (LAND USE, INFRASTRUCTURE, PUBLIC PARTICIPATION)	KPI_15: Time window in city for urban logistics	29.41%
ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL IMPACT	KPI_3: GHG emissions	26.67%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_40: Reservation of parking areas	25.00%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_24: Km traveled by commercial vehicles	18.75%
URBAN PLANNING (LAND USE, INFRASTRUCTURE, PUBLIC PARTICIPATION)	KPI_14: Energy use and infrastructure available at warehouses, microplatforms, etc	17.65%
ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL IMPACT	KPI_5: Noise level	13.33%
URBAN PLANNING (LAND USE, INFRASTRUCTURE, PUBLIC PARTICIPATION)	KPI_12: Policy related	11.76%
TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT	KPI_21: Severe violations (Speed violation, drivers testing positive on alcohol or drugs)	6.25%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_25: Loading/unloading time - time per delivery	6.25%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_29: Freight logistic intensity // delivery productivity	6.25%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_33: Hours that vehicles are in service, e.g. deliveries, pick ups, transporting, weighting, loading/unloading over 24 hours	6.25%
SERVICE EFFICIENCY	KPI_36: Average utilization of the warehouse or distribution centers	6.25%
# **H**unchain

# 6. KERs and datasets

## 6.1. Identification of datasets to feed UNCHAIN services.

UNCHAIN services to be demonstrated in pilot tests, in both living labs and follower cities, require a sort of datasets to feed the algorithms managing the booking services to park the vehicles or the routes' optimization, among others. These datasets will be shared through the IDSA platform, which includes the roles of data PUBLISHERs and data CONSUMERs.

Data PUBLISHERs are the entities providing the datasets, while the data CONSUMERs are the entities employing these datasets to update the algorithms managing the services. Considering the different profiles taking part in the project demonstrations, it is expected that the municipalities and the logistics operators will be the data PUBLISHERs, and the service developers will be the data CONSUMERs. Nevertheless, in order to define a first collection of datasets, considering services are in their development process, we asked to service developers (ETRA, MUNI, and VMZ) to identify the required datasets per KER. As a result of this process, Table 54 presents the collection of datasets generated.

Dataset	KER 4	KER 5	KER 6	KER 8	KER 9	KER 10	KER 11	KER 12	KER 13
Loading and unloading street locations									
Usage info of loading and unloading street locations									
Inhabitants per building or small zones									
Zones for hardware installation									
Special dates calendars									
Delivery planning		<u>~</u>							
Traffic data		<u>~</u>		<u>~</u>					
Road shape and specifications									
Number of available parking space									
Special restrictions based on council land use rules									
Accident hotspots / areas to be avoided									
Forecast data on events related to traffic									
Information on construction sites									
Environmental impacts in the hub's neighbourhood									
Distance to depots of logistics service providers									

Table 54. First collection of datasets, required by KERs, according to service developers.









Population density	
Company density	
Connection to the main road network	
Density of cycle	
infrastructure (length in the area)	
Purchasing power in the delivery area	
Number of possible properties for microdepots	
Availability of commercial space	
Housing development	
Environmental regulations	
Traffic obstructions for larger vehicles	
Commercial rents	

In order to assess this first collection of datasets, by all the partners participating in the pilot test, a workshop was organised during the second General Assembly (GA), performed in Madrid during May 8<sup>th</sup> and 9<sup>th</sup>.

## 6.2. Workshop to assess the first collection of datasets.

The main of the workshop organised during MAD GA was to assess the collection presented in Table 54, and to gather information about the availability of the datasets required by the service developers, in the cities where these services were going to be demonstrated. For this purpose, we produced the table presented in Figure 28. Table produced to assess and to gather information related to datasets..



	CONSUMER		PUBLISHER		
KER4: MAD-FLO-BER		MAD	FLO	BER	DATASETS RESTRICTIONS
(1) Environmental impacts in the hub's neighbourhood	VMZ				
(2) Distance to depots of logistics service providers	VMZ				
(3) Population density	VMZ				
(4) Company density	VMZ				
(5) Connection to the main road network	VMZ				
(6) Density of cycle infrastructure (length in the area)	VMZ				
(7) Purchasing power in the delivery area	VMZ				
(8) Number of possible properties for microdepots	VMZ				
(9) Availability of commercial space	VMZ				
(10) Housing development	VMZ				
(11) Environmental regulations	VMZ				
(12) Traffic obstructions for larger vehicles	VMZ				
(13) Commercial rents	VMZ				

Figure 28. Table produced to assess and to gather information related to datasets.

The table is organised around a KER, and includes all the datasets that this service requires. The datasets are identified by a number, due to the fact that, as *Table 54* shows, some datasets will be employed by diverse products. Note that datasets will be identical per demonstration site, and each demonstration site should have a unique PUBLISHER for that dataset. Indeed, two different KERs employing the same dataset will employ the same file, provided by the same PUBLISHER, but these files can be different for the same KER in two demonstration sites, as the PUBLISHER will be different. For this reason, the table presented in Figure 28. Table produced to assess and to gather information related to datasets. includes a unique column for CONSUMER (the KER developer), and diverse columns for PUBLISERs (one per demonstration site). The table also groups under the term *Work team* the partners involved in the demonstration, according to *usage scenarios* presented in D2.3<sup>3</sup>.

<sup>3</sup> https://unchainproject.eu/content/uploads/2024/06/20240430-IBV-UNCHAIN-D2.3\_Technical-and-legal-requirements-KPIs-and-use-cases\_vf-1.pdf

# **Unchain**

	KERs Dataset	ts. CO	su	MERs & PUBLISHERs, Restri	KERS - PIC		🕀 unchain
	Work team 3: ETRA, FLO, MAD, MEC, PRA	, RIG, D	HL		14 - Not available but		B ak for ter 8 no 15 B like for ter 8 no 15
	KER5: FLO-RIG			KERD - + LO.	collectable - No restriction		2) not relevant for UPS
	(14) Loading and unloading street locations	DHL	VN	(14) Tortes las piectos de la calle son de uno las pertos	KEQ 5-RIG		Privacy ishes +
	(15) Usage info of loading and unloading street locations	DHL	٧N	Sciencel y us which the Solo had que dicitarto. IBBN cashes de calles	15 - Net available		18) Ushel for UPS 19) Ushel for UPS
	(27) Inhabitants per building or small zones			provinción lovaria provinción lovaria los la maso ne l'orde	KERS-RIG		7) whether for us
HL	(17) Delivery planning			purce prair uniter)	27 - Alcourte public		Illegel uk d postufs
	(18) Traffic data	DHL	ET	15) 40 14)	the head beau		• 0
	(19) Road shape and specifications	DHL	ET	st) is in function	KERS-RIG		
	(21) Number of available parking space	DHL		Les (220 m stan extra limera).	10-5-11		
	(22) Special restrictions based on council land us	se rules	DHI	B) THEFTIC LOUNGROUT	available - Socurity	KE	RS - R16
				Folci ou tamp	popile	21-	Not sure
				14) trances - cultar	KERS-RIC	KE	05 -RIC
				21) pot oler , shay have	19- Should be available	07	le la man
				22) Augustable	- Not restriction		10 11 1100
			-				

Figure 29. Flip chart generated by workshop's participants for KER5.

An additional column for *Datasets restrictions* intends to collect information about the restrictions to share data included in the IDSA platform, which are:

- Provide Access. It must be established between which dates the use is allowed.
- Prohibit Access. It must be established between which dates the use is NOT allowed.
- N Times Usage. A lower or equal number of permitted uses must be established.
- Duration Usage. A number of hours of use must be established.
- Usage During Interval. Date range must be set.
- Usage Until Deletion. The date range between which it can be used and the date on which the data will be deleted must be established.
- Usage Logging. No restriction.
- Usage Notification. To add an URL where the use must be notified.
- Connector Restricted Usage. An URL must be added, so only one connector can use that data.
- Security Profile Restricted Usage. It requires to indicate the type of security among three options *Base security, Trust plus Security* and *Trust Security*.

The partners participating in the workshop were distributed in three groups, led by the service developers (ETRA, MUNI and VMZ). The fulfilled charts are presented in Annex 8.6 The contributions of the partners are presented in blue text. It is relevant to note that not only the service developers are interested in being data CONSUMERs, but also the logistics operators (DHL and UPS). In addition, these partners have the two roles, as some datasets, e.g., *Delivery planning*, are under only available for them.



## 6.3. Enrichment of the workshop results.

In order to complete the information collected in the workshop, and considering that the municipalities need to confirm the availability of some datasets, an online process to enrich the charts was launched. All the partners received the workshop results presented in Annex 8.6, and were asked to review and to enrich the contents.

The resulting tables of this process are presented in Annex 8.7. This result is the final collection of datasets for KERs. These tables also include the datasets identified by ULANC, as the required to feed the *Multi Criteria Decision Making* (MCDM) framework, a module that is part of the KER6 and KER11.

A total number of 122 datasets have been identified. 27 of these datasets will be shared among all the KERs included in the pilot tests, and 95 are exclusive of the MCDM. It is further clarified that the data requirements for the development of the MCDM framework, will be further specified with the relevant stakeholders, i.e cities and Urban Logistics Operators (ULOs), as part of the development of the MCDM framework in WP4 and WP5. These refinements are associated with the final selection of KPIs, the types of data needed to measure them, and the type of analysis (decisions) that will be made.

Furthermore, it should be noted that the identification of the required KPIs for each KER and the associated data needed for the measurement of these KPIs, have not considered yet the needs for the evaluation of the demonstrators that will be further defined as part of the evaluation plan development in WP6.

## 6.4. Connectors to exchange the data.

Table 55 presents a list including the partners which are data CONSUMERs and those being data PUBLISHERs, according to results presented in Annex 8.7. The exchange of datasets through the IDSA platform is made by means of a CONNECTOR.

Data CONSUMER	Data PUBLISHER
ETRA	MAD
MUNI	FLO
ULANC	BER
VMZ	MEC
DHL	PRA
UPS	FUN
	RIG
	DHL
	UPS

Table 55. List of data COSUMERs and data PUBLISHERs in the UNCHAIN's IDSA platform.

# **H** unchain

This CONNECTOR is a small piece of software, individual for each partner participating in the IDSA platform. As a PUBLISHER, CONSUMER or even with both roles, partners will connect to the platform, that will facilitate a link between datasets and KERs.

CONSUMER	PUBLISHER	KERs	DATASETs
			(14) Loading and unloading street locations
			(15) Usage info of loading and unloading street locations
			(16) Special dates calendars
		KER8	(18) Traffic data
	MAD	KER10	(19) Road shape and specifications
		KER13	(21) Number of available parking space
			(22) Special restrictions based on council land use rules
			(27) Inhabitants per building or small zones
			(26) Zones for hardware installation
	DHL	KER10	(17) Delivery planning
			(14) Loading and unloading street locations
			(15) Usage info of loading and unloading street locations
			(16) Special dates calendars
		KER5	(18) Traffic data
	FLO	KER8	(19) Road shape and specifications
		KER13	(21) Number of available parking space
			(22) Special restrictions based on council land use rules
ETRA			(27) Inhabitants per building or small zones
			(26) Zones for hardware installation
	UPS	KER5	(17) Delivery planning
	MEC	KER13	(18) Traffic data
			(15) Usage info of loading and unloading street locations
			(18) Traffic data
	PRA	KER8	(21) Number of available parking space
			(22) Special restrictions based on council land use rules
			(26) Zones for hardware installation
			(14) Loading and unloading street locations
			(15) Usage info of loading and unloading street locations
			(18) Traffic data
			(19) Road shape and specifications
	RIG	KER5	(21) Number of available parking space
			(22) Special restrictions based on council land use rules
			(27) Inhabitants per building or small zones
			(17) Delivery planning
			(14) Loading and unloading street locations
			(15) Usage info of loading and unloading street locations
			(16) Special dates calendars
			(18) Traffic data
		KER6	(19) Road shape and specifications
NULINI	FLO	KER9	(21) Number of available parking space
WON		KER11	(22) Special restrictions based on council land use rules
			(23) Accident hotspots / areas to be avoided
			(24) Forecast data on events related to traffic
			(25) Information on construction sites
			(26) Zones for hardware installation
	UPS	KER9	(17) Delivery planning

Table 56. Datasets required by the KERs developers.



			(18) Traffic data
	DED	KEDO	(19) Road shape and specifications
			(22) Special restrictions based on council land use rules
	DER	KERO	(23) Accident hotspots / areas to be avoided
			(24) Forecast data on events related to traffic
			(25) Information on construction sites
			(18) Traffic data
			(19) Road shape and specifications
	MEC	KEDC	(22) Special restrictions based on council land use rules
	IVIEC	KEKO	(23) Accident hotspots / areas to be avoided
			(24) Forecast data on events related to traffic
			(25) Information on construction sites
			(14) Loading and unloading street locations
		KEDO	(26) Zones for hardware installation
	PKA	KER9	(17) Delivery planning
			(21) Number of available parking space
			(14) Loading and unloading street locations
	FUN	KEDO	(26) Zones for hardware installation
	FUN	KER9	(17) Delivery planning
			(21) Number of available parking space
			(18) Traffic data
			(19) Road shape and specifications
	DIC	KEDC	(22) Special restrictions based on council land use rules
	RIG	KER6	(23) Accident hotspots / areas to be avoided
			(24) Forecast data on events related to traffic
			(25) Information on construction sites
			(1) Environmental impacts in the hub's neighbourhood
			(2) Distance to depots of logistics service providers
			(3) Population density
			(4) Company density
			(5) Connection to the main road network
			(6) Density of cycle infrastructure (length in the area)
			(7) Purchasing power in the delivery area
			(8) Number of possible properties for microdepots
			(9) Availability of commercial space
			(10) Housing development
			(11) Environmental regulations
	MAD	KER4	(12) Traffic obstructions for larger vehicles
		KER12	(13) Commercial rents
VM7			(14) Loading and unloading street locations
			(15) Usage info of loading and unloading street locations
			(16) Special dates calendars
			(18) Iraffic data
			(19) Road shape and specifications
			(20) Bike paths and specifications
			(21) Number of available parking space
			(22) Special restrictions based on council land use rules
			(23) Accident notspots / areas to be avoided
			(24) Forecast data on events related to traffic
			(25) Information on construction sites
	DHL	KER12	(17) Delivery planning
	51.0	KER4	(1) Environmental impacts in the hub's heighbourhood
	FLO	KER12	(2) Distance to depots of logistics service providers
			(3) Population density



			(4) Company density	
			(5) Connection to the main road network	
			(6) Density of cycle infrastructure (length in the area)	
			(7) Purchasing power in the delivery area	
			(8) Number of possible properties for microdenots	
			(9) Availability of commercial space	
			(10) Housing development	
			(10) Fourier development	
			(12) Traffic obstructions for larger vehicles	
			(12) Commercial rents	
			(13) continential relias	
			(14) Loading and unloading street locations (15) Usage infe of loading and unloading street locations	
			(15) Osage into or loading and unioading street locations (16) Special datas colondars	
			(10) Special dates calendars	
			(18) Indific Udid (10) Read change and specifications	
			(19) Road shape and specifications	
			(20) Bike paths and specifications	
			(21) Number of available parking space	
			(22) Assidant bates at a famous to be sucided	
			(23) Accident hotspots / areas to be avoided	
			(24) Forecast data on events related to traffic	
			(25) Information on construction sites	
	UPS	KER12	(17) Delivery planning	
			(1) Environmental impacts in the hub's neighbourhood	
			(2) Distance to depots of logistics service providers	
			(3) Population density	
			(4) Company density	
			(5) Connection to the main road network	
			(6) Density of cycle infrastructure (length in the area)	
			(7) Purchasing power in the delivery area	
			(8) Number of possible properties for microdepots	
			(9) Availability of commercial space	
			(10) Housing development	
			(11) Environmental regulations	
			(12) Traffic obstructions for larger vehicles	
	BER	KER4	(13) Commercial rents	
	BER	KER12	(14) Loading and unloading street locations	
			(15) Usage info of loading and unloading street locations	
			(16) Special dates calendars	
			(18) Traffic data	
			(19) Road shape and specifications	
			(20) Bike paths and specifications	
			(21) Number of available parking space	
			(22) Special restrictions based on council land use rules	
			(23) Accident hotspots / areas to be avoided	
			(24) Forecast data on events related to traffic	
			(25) Information on construction sites	
			(17) Delivery planning	
			(14) Loading and unloading street locations	
	MAD	KEDO	(15) Usage info of loading and unloading street locations	
		KER8	(16) Special dates calendars	
DHL	IVIAD	KEK1U	(18) Traffic data	
		KER13	(19) Road shape and specifications	
			(21) Number of available parking space	



			(22) Special restrictions based on council land use rules
UPS	FLO	KER6 KER9 KER11	<ul> <li>(18) Traffic data</li> <li>(19) Road shape and specifications</li> <li>(21) Number of available parking space</li> <li>(22) Special restrictions based on council land use rules</li> </ul>

The Table 56 presents the datasets required by the KERs developers. The data PUBLISHERs (cities and logistics operators), provide the datasets to the IDSA platform through the connector, but these files are employed by the different service developers, that are demonstrating the KERs in their cities.

# **H**unchain

# 7. Conclusions

### Conclusion related gender

The conclusion of the provided information on gender-related issues in the logistics sector highlights the critical importance of collecting and analyzing gender-disaggregated data to address existing gender inequalities and design inclusive policies and practices. The key aspects include labor participation, wages and working conditions, access to training, mobility patterns, and perceptions and experiences within the sector. Examples of such data reveal significant disparities, such as lower female representation in the workforce, a gender pay gap, and reduced access to advanced training for women.

The importance of gender-disaggregated data lies in its ability to inform policies that promote gender equality, improve working conditions, increase female participation, and enhance urban planning and mobility. Furthermore, integrating a gender perspective into key performance indicators (KPIs) ensures that all logistics operations, from sustainable vehicle use to congestion management, consider and address gender differences. This comprehensive approach aims to create a more inclusive, equitable, and efficient logistics sector, benefiting all genders equally.

## Conclusion related Framework platforms

We reviewed the main logistics platforms worldwide to understand their capabilities and features. The platforms assessed include PrepDSpace4Mobility, EuroStat, EU's Open Data Platform, Statista – Transportation and Logistics, Transport/Logistics and Container Tracking Datasets, Cargonaut, Telekom Data Intelligence Hub, Shippeo, FourKites, Intermodal Map, Movement by project44, International Service Reliability (ISR), Commercial Responsibility Database (COREDA), Open Railway Freight EDI User System (ORFEUS), and Web Data Interface (WDI). Additionally, other notable platforms such as TradeLens, CargoSmart, GT Nexus (Infor Nexus), Transporeon, Descartes Systems Group, Project44, FourKites, Samsara, and Convey were also considered. These platforms provide extensive data sharing, tracking, and analytical capabilities essential for improving efficiency, interoperability, and innovation in logistics and urban delivery systems. Their diverse functionalities contribute to a more integrated and streamlined approach to managing logistics operations, facilitating better decision-making and enhanced operational performance.

Some of these platforms have helped us choose the most suitable platform for the UNCHAIN project and how the review of these platforms contributed to the identification of the data types needed in the UNCHAIN project.

## **Conclusion related IDSA**

In conclusion, the IDSA (International Data Spaces Association) was selected as the framework for data sharing in our project after reviewing existing European and global frameworks. The IDSA, a nonprofit organization, emphasizes identity-centric cybersecurity and offers a consortium of experts developing best practices and guidelines. Key advantages of IDSA for urban logistics and delivery include enhanced data security, interoperability, data sovereignty, standardization, scalability, trust, innovation, efficiency, and sustainability. These benefits





Funded by the European Union





facilitate secure, efficient, and innovative data exchanges, optimizing urban logistics and fostering sustainable practices.

#### Conclusions related KPIs, Sub-indicators and datasets

In the analysis of KPIs related to logistics, four primary KPAs were identified: Environment and Social Impact, Urban Planning (land use, infrastructure, public participation), Traffic Management, and Service Efficiency. This study presents a comprehensive list of 41 KPIs and examines each category in detail, defining the Sub-indicators for each KPI, the necessary datasets, and the formulas to calculate them. Aspects such as data accessibility, level of aggregation, and anonymization are also addressed to ensure a holistic understanding of the KPIs and their practical implementation.

Our review has concluded with 41 KPIs distributed across 4 categories, 217 Sub-indicators associated with the KPIs, as well as a total of 661 datasets associated with the Sub-indicators and, in turn, with the KPIs. Now, the most used data, and therefore we assume the most important for logistics, are:

Cod.dataset	Name	Frequency
13	Time and Temporal Data	86
98	Weather Data / Weather and Environmental Conditions Data	35
90	Vehicle Tracking Data	32
93	Geospatial Data / Geospatial and Mapping Data	30
1	Vehicle Type and Classification Data / Vehicle Specifications Data / Vehicle Type and Specifications	27
94	Traffic and Road Conditions Data	25
330	Geographic Information System (GIS) Data / GIS Software or Tools	23
290	Traffic Flow and Density Data	23
293	Road Network Data	21
304	Delivery Time Records / GPS or Tracking Data / Delivery Time Logs /Delivery time data	19
158	Geographic Area Data / Geographic Data / Geographic and Spatial Data / Geographic Coordinates of UL Areas	19
120	Legal and Regulatory Compliance Data / Enforcement and Compliance Data	19
113	Environmental Impact Assessment Data	19
89	Delivery Records / Delivery and Pickup Records	17
17	Fuel Consumption Data	17
389	Customer Feedback Data / User Feedback Data / Complaints and Feedback Data	16

Table 57. Datasets most used for calculating Sub-indicators and KPIs.

# Unchain

96	Delivery Route Data and Address / Route and Network Data / Transport Route Information	16
15	Location (Neighborhood, City, Region, Country etc.)	16
123	Historical Delivery Data / Historical Data	15
99	Community Engagement and Feedback Data / Customer/Consunmer Preferences, Feedback and Satisfaction Surveys / Survey Data	14
316	Vehicle Registration Data	14
390	Logistics Centers/Warehouses Data / Warehouse and Distribution Center Data	11
395	Supply Chain Management Data / Logistics and Supply Chain Data	11
289	Freight Vehicle Data / Freight Vehicle registration / Delivery Vehicle Data	11
294	Historical Traffic Data	11
377	Transportation Infrastructure Data	10
95	Customer Data and Information	10
288	Traffic Volume Data	10
277	Public Transportation Data / Public Transportation Usage Data	9
3	Number of Vehicles / Total Number of Cars	9
16	Population and Demographic Data	9
315	Road Accident Data /Traffic Accident data	9
109	Vehicle Maintenance Records / Vehicle Maintenance and Depreciation Costs	8
421	Fleet Management System Data	8
256	Economic Data / Economic and Market Data / Economic indicators	8
174	Parking Regulation and Policy Data	8
336	Traffic Enforcement Policies and Regulations Data	8
375	Freight Transport Data / Freight Transport Activity Data / Transporting Data / Inland Freight Transport Data	7
106	Environmental Factors Data	7
468	Customer Order Data / Customer Order and Delivery Data	7
469	Delivery Performance Metrics / Delivery Performance Data	7
472	Shipment Tracking Data / Shipment data / Freight Shipment Data / Inbound and Outbound Shipment Data	7
523	Freight Traffic Data / Traffic Data	7
307	Stop Data / stop event logs / event data	7
14	Year	7
322	Law Enforcement Data	7
392	Route Optimization Data	6
398	Market Research and Demand Forecasting Data	6



448	Traffic and Congestion Data	6
455	Loading and Unloading Time Records / Loading and Unloading Records / Historical Loading and Unloading Records	6
484	Freight Delivery Schedule Data / Delivery Schedule	6
531	Inventory Data / Fleet Inventory Data	6
302	Traffic Incident Data	6
394	Transportation and Logistics Operations Data / Freight and Logistics Operations Data / Logistics and Freight Data	5
400	Financial Performance and Cost Analysis Data	5
431	Urban Planning and Zoning Data	5
446	Parking Sensor Data / Sensor Data	5
450	Local Economic and Business Activity Data / Economic Activity Data	5
458	Supplier and Vendor Performance Data / Supplier Data / Supplier and Manufacturer Data	5
21	Fuel Type	5
301	Traffic Speed Data	5
314	Vehicle Data / Vehicle Characteristics Data	5
327	Crime Data / Crime Incident Reports / Crime Mapping Data / Incident Reports	5
328	Drug and Alcohol Testing	5
329	Driver Identification / Driver information / Driver Demographic Data / Driver Characteristics Data	5
332	Violation Records / Violation Data	5

### **Environment and Social Impact**

For the Environment and Social Impact category, the KPIs, Sub-indicators, and associated datasets are explored in depth. A matrix is provided that correlates KPIs and Sub-indicators with the required datasets, facilitating the implementation of a data-sharing platform. This platform aims to guide users in identifying the necessary data for KPI calculation, thereby standardizing concepts, terms, and dataset names. Among the 133 datasets identified, 13 are most frequently used, including Date/Time, Location, Vehicle Type, Total Fuel Consumption, and Environmental Impact Data.

Access levels, aggregation levels, and anonymization of datasets are critical aspects discussed in this study. It is observed that 50% of the data required to calculate KPIs and Sub-indicators in the Environment and Social Impact category is public, while the rest varies between public with limitations and restricted. Aggregation levels vary according to data specifics, and anonymization is significant only in a few cases, with the majority of data requiring little to moderate anonymization.

The study also highlights the key data holders, indicating that transport agencies and researchers hold the majority of the necessary data (61.5%), followed by government agencies



(46.1%) and public entities (38.46%). This distribution underscores the importance of collaboration between various stakeholders to facilitate effective data sharing and ensure the accurate calculation of KPIs, ultimately contributing to improved logistics management and environmental sustainability.

### **Urban Planning**

The analysis presents a comprehensive overview of KPIs, Sub-indicators, and datasets associated with the topic of Urban Planning. It defines the necessary datasets for each Sub-indicator related to Urban Planning, highlighting the importance of understanding the interrelationships between KPIs, Sub-indicators, and the required datasets. The generated matrix will facilitate the future implementation of a data-sharing platform, providing users with clear guidance on the data needed to calculate KPIs, thereby unifying concepts, terms, and dataset names.

From the analysis, a significant number of datasets (170) are identified as essential to understanding and calculating Sub-indicators. Among these, 13 datasets are most frequently used, emphasizing their importance. These include location data, geospatial data, notes/comments, accessibility features, availability, environmental impact data, stakeholder engagement, infrastructure data, warehouse data, energy use data, traffic and road conditions data, and temporal data.

The level of access to these datasets is crucial, with the majority (76.9%) being restricted. This restriction highlights the need for structured access policies to ensure the right stakeholders can obtain the necessary data. Additionally, the analysis identifies the primary holders of the most critical datasets in Urban Planning as public researchers (53.8%) and government agencies (46.1%), indicating a significant reliance on public and governmental sources for data.

Overall, the conclusions underscore the need for a well-organized data-sharing framework that considers access, aggregation, and anonymization levels, ensuring that key stakeholders have the necessary information to effectively utilize and calculate the relevant KPIs and Sub-indicators in Urban Planning.

### Traffic Management

The analysis of the Traffic Management topic identifies the Key Performance Indicators (KPIs), Sub-indicators, and associated datasets, detailing how they are calculated, which datasets are most commonly used, and aspects related to data accessibility, aggregation, and anonymization. A matrix has been generated to link KPIs and Sub-indicators with the necessary datasets, providing a guide for implementing a data-sharing platform to calculate these indicators. This matrix aims to assist users by unifying concepts, terms, and dataset names.

A thorough search identified 105 necessary datasets to understand and calculate the Subindicators for Traffic Management, with 47 datasets being the most frequently used and crucial. These include temporal data, geospatial data, traffic flow data, road network data,



historical traffic data, and others such as weather data, demographic data, road accident data, and law enforcement data. The frequent use of these datasets highlights their importance in accurately calculating KPIs and Sub-indicators.

The level of access, aggregation, and anonymization for these datasets varies. Most of the critical datasets have restricted or confidential access (75.8%), with a significant portion being confidential due to their relation to health, violations, or crime (34.5%). The level of aggregation and anonymization of the data also varies, with only a few datasets having a high level of anonymization (10.34%).

The key profiles holding the most important datasets in the Urban Planning category include traffic management authorities (31.0%), urban planners (24.1%), and law enforcement (20.7%). This distribution underscores the collaborative effort required among different stakeholders to effectively manage and utilize traffic management data.

### Service Efficiency

The analysis of Service Efficiency highlights the importance of key performance indicators (KPIs), Sub-indicators, and the associated datasets. A matrix was developed to relate KPIs and Sub-indicators with necessary datasets, which is essential for the future implementation of a data-sharing platform. This platform aims to unify concepts, terms, and dataset names, thus aiding users in calculating KPIs accurately.

A thorough examination identified 365 datasets required to understand and calculate Subindicators, with 27 being the most frequently used. These critical datasets include time and temporal data, vehicle tracking data, GIS data, weather data, traffic and road conditions data, delivery time records, geographic area data, customer feedback data, delivery route data, legal compliance data, historical delivery data, environmental impact data, vehicle specifications data, community engagement data, fuel consumption data, and others. These datasets play a crucial role in achieving service efficiency.

Access levels, aggregation levels, anonymization, and data ownership were also analyzed. The findings reveal that 44.4% of the essential data have restricted access, while 25.9% are publicly accessible. Most of the data used in calculating KPIs and Sub-indicators have a moderate level of anonymization, with 48.1% falling into this category. Logistic companies have access to 85.2% of the most used data, followed by fleet managers at 44.4% and urban planners at 25.9%.

In summary, the study underscores the complexity and breadth of data required for service efficiency. The development of a comprehensive data-sharing platform, along with clear guidelines on data access, aggregation, and anonymization, is vital for improving service efficiency and ensuring the effective use of KPIs and Sub-indicators.

### Conclusions related KERs and KPIs

When analyzing all the KERs together (KER 4, 5, 6, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, and 13), the most important KPIs, chosen by more than 40% of participants, are primarily related to the Traffic



Management and Urban Planning categories. These key KPIs include the carbon footprint of deliveries, the number of loading/unloading areas, soft violations (such as unauthorized parking), congestion, the percentage of freight vehicles in total traffic, the number of sustainable commercial or freight vehicles, and GHG emissions.

For KER 4, participants in the workshop and project partners primarily associate it with KPIs such as the number of logistic centers, the percentage of freight vehicles in total vehicular traffic, congestion, fuel consumption, the carbon footprint of deliveries, and the number of commercial outlets having a cargo area within a 75-meter radius. The most important KPIs for KER 4 fall under the Traffic Management and Urban Planning categories.

KER 5 is primarily associated with KPIs including the number of loading/unloading areas, soft violations, congestion, the carbon footprint of deliveries, kilometers traveled by commercial vehicles, and the number of commercial outlets having a cargo area within a 75-meter radius. Again, the Traffic Management and Urban Planning categories are the most significant for KER 5.

For KER 6, the KPIs with the highest preference include the percentage of freight vehicles in total vehicular traffic, policy-related KPIs, congestion, the number of sustainable commercial or freight vehicles, the carbon footprint of deliveries, the time window in the city for urban logistics, revenue from LEZ access fees, and night deliveries. As with the other KERs, Traffic Management and Urban Planning are the dominant categories. Across all KERs, Traffic Management consistently emerges as the most significant category, underscoring its critical role in urban logistics and planning.

For KER 8, participants and project partners primarily associate it with KPIs such as soft violations, the number of sustainable commercial or freight vehicles, the number of loading/unloading areas, the time window in the city for urban logistics, GHG emissions, congestion, and kilometers traveled by commercial vehicles. The most important KPIs for KER 8 belong to the Traffic Management and Urban Planning categories.

In the case of KER 9, the key associated KPIs include the number of loading/unloading areas, the number of sustainable commercial or freight vehicles, soft violations, the occupancy of loading/unloading areas, GHG emissions, the time window in the city for urban logistics, congestion, the percentage of freight vehicles in total vehicular traffic, and the time spent finding parking/loading areas. Similar to other KERs, the most significant KPIs for KER 9 fall under the Traffic Management and Urban Planning categories.

For KER 10, the primary KPIs are the number of loading/unloading areas, the carbon footprint of deliveries, the percentage of freight vehicles in total vehicular traffic, congestion, and soft violations. The most important KPIs for KER 10 are part of the Traffic Management category, with a significant focus also on environmental and social impact.

For KER 11, the participants in the workshop and project partners primarily associate it with KPIs such as the carbon footprint of deliveries, soft violations, the time window in the city for urban logistics, customer satisfaction with delivery, kilometers traveled by commercial vehicles, policy-related KPIs, the number of sustainable commercial or freight vehicles, and



GHG emissions. The most important KPIs for KER 11 are predominantly part of the Traffic Management and Urban Planning categories.

Regarding KER 12, the key KPIs include kilometers traveled by commercial vehicles, GHG emissions, the carbon footprint of deliveries, the time window in the city for urban logistics, freight-related accidents, the number of loading/unloading areas, and congestion. The most important KPIs for KER 12 are found in the Traffic Management category, with a significant portion also related to environmental and social impact.

Finally, for KER 13, the KPIs most associated with it include soft violations, the carbon footprint of deliveries, the percentage of freight vehicles in total vehicular traffic, the number of loading/unloading areas, the occupancy of loading/unloading areas, the time spent finding parking/loading areas, the number of commercial outlets having a cargo area within a 75-meter radius, and fuel consumption. As with the other KERs, the most critical KPIs for KER 13 are part of the Traffic Management and Urban Planning categories.

### Conclusions related KERs and datasets

A list of datasets required for each KER, to be demonstrated in a pilot test (KER4, KER5, KER6, KER8. KER9, KER10, KER11, KER12, and KER13), have been produced. This dataset list has been initially proposed by the service developers (ETRA, MUNI and VMZ) and the MCDM module developer (ULANC). In a second stage, the dataset list has been assessed and enriched by all the consortium, including the cities.

It is worth noting here, that since the KERs are still under development and the consultation between the KER developers and the KER users is on-going, it is expected that further refinement of the data needed might emerge during the KER development and implementation process. Furthermore, the identified KPIs and associated data sets have not considered yet the WP6 data requirements. These requirements will emerge during the development of the WP6 evaluation process.

A collaboration framework to share the dataset required to feed the UNCHAIN services has been defined. Based on the IDSA platform this collaboration framework includes KERs developers and the MCDM module developer as data CONSUMERs, the Living Labs abd the Follower Cities as data PUBLISHERs, and the logistics operators as both, data CONSUMERs and data PUBLISHERs.

The data CONSUMER profile withdraws data from the platform to feed algotithms, while the data PUBLISHER provides data, generated by systems monitoring operations (logistics operators) and events (Living Labs and Follower cities).

The data required to feed the services and the MCDM module is exchanged through a platform, where datasets are stored by the PUBLISHERs, and withdrawn by the CONSUMERs. The data exchange has some restrictions, that normally will fix the PUBLISHER.

The number of datasets identified to feed the services seems to be low (27), but this is deceiving, as datasets having the same name are different among the cities participating in services' demonstrations.



Each partner involved in the data exchange (KERs developers, cities and logistics operator), will communicate with the IDSA platform with a connector, that is unique for both, publishing or consuming data. This connector is part of the exchange platform, and will be a required link to communicate with the UNCHAIN partners, within the collaboration framework.



8. Annex (next document)